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Financial Summary

SUMMARY OF RESULTS
HE12B31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
AREBTRT AREBTRT AREBTRT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
K Revenue 28,591,271 28,257,432 25,230,613 22,761,822 22,019,737
EF) Gross profit 8,711,731 8,187,917 8,218,910 8,065,931 7,918,290
BRPTSATREF Profit before income tax 2,239,924 1,730,829 2,141,842 2,326,459 1,971,360
FrigiiBE Income tax expenses (572,864) (508,672) (641,127) (700,756) (605,148)
FE&A Profit for the year 1,667,060 1,222,157 1,500,715 1,625,703 1,366,212
KATRZIFBEAN  Profit for the year
FE{LEEEF] attributable to
the equity holders of
the Company 1,667,060 1,222,157 1,500,715 1,625,703 1,366,212
KRE Dividends 1,833,769 1,466,588 1,800,859 1,625,703 1,366,212
AR¥S AR#S AEEBS NG %) AR &S
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
SREARF Basic earnings per Share 38.60 28.30 34.74 37.64 31.63
"12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARETRT ARBETT AREBFTRT ARETT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
mEE Total assets 22,134,218 21,784,355 22,065,346 22,104,371 21,757,042
wmaE Total liabilities 8,751,841 8,603,002 8,300,045 8,217,838 8,124,112
FERABEE Total equity 13,382,377 13,181,353 13,765,301 13,886,533 13,632,930
REKMIELEEY  Cashand
cash equivalents 931,995 108,519 285,573 486,300 1,056,780
TE (BfE) /EE  Netcurrent
R RE (liabilities)/assets (370,186) 494,708 (319,284)  (1,504,978) (623,190)

iF— ¥ hE PG A R/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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ETREBSE

Chairman’s Statement

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its

» o« ” o« » oo«

subsidiaries (together as the “Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our” or
“us”) adheres to the corporate vision of “Honesty and Diligence;
Innovation and Excellence GRE®h3E BT K#) " and upholds
the principle of “Value Marketing (fB{E=#H)”. With a focus on
operation, we are always vigorous in creating brand value, pursuing
steady operation and aligning to “Healthy Practice (f2EE$21E)”,
with an aim to evolve into an enterprise boasting “Integrity (F1&) ",

“Brand (F&h#)” and “Taste (Falkk) ”.

In 2023, the first year of post-pandemic economic recovery,
consumption habits and concepts of the general public evolved,
posing challenges to business operation as well as new
opportunities for growth. The Group demonstrated unparalleled
resilience during the pandemic. Leveraging on its experienced
management team, robust profit-making model and risk
management mechanism, the Group has continuously optimised
its organisational and operational structure to properly cope with
the systemic risks brought about by market fluctuations. Since the
outbreak of the pandemic in 2020, the Group’s revenue has been
growing at a compound annual growth rate of 7.9%, in which the
compound annual growth rate of the beverages even reached
12.3%.

In 2023, the Group’s revenue continued to set another record
high, reaching RMB28,591.3 million, representing an increase of
1.2% over last year, and post-tax profits amounted to RMB1,667.1
million, representing an increase of 36.4% over last year. In
particular, “The King of Tomato (i1 £) " continued to enjoy favorites
from markets and doubled the compound annual growth rate of its
revenue in the past three years; “Kai Xiao Zao (Bg/)\}t)” continued
to promote Chinese culinary culture and launched a range of new
products under the brand name of “Private Kitchen (FAFRE32)”,
actively expanding its product matrix; “Uni Green Tea (#i—4%%%)”
persisted in the innovation and optimisation of its product strength
to build up its brand assets and develop a national brand of quality
and healthy tea; “Haizhiyan GE2Z &) " seized the new consumer
opportunities in the post-pandemic era and achieved a high
double-digit year-on-year growth in revenue; and “Uni Assam Milk
Tea (Wi —PRIFESRYNZS) ” further diversified its drinking scenarios and
secured its leading position in the industry.

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§
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Chairman’s Statement
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#H—1b ¥R EERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

With the steady recovery of China’s economy in 2023, we have
been more proactively integrating into this dynamic market. The
Group will continue to focus on its operation and strive to build
a long-term competitive barrier of brands through the building
of brand power; make freshness control a fundamental policy
for its operation and maintain healthy inventory levels in its sales
channels; continue to expand and cultivate diversified offline
and online channels to deepen market penetration and extend
consumption scenarios, so as to get closer to the consumers;
continue to promote its digital transformation, so as to empower its
business operation in all aspects; and keep building up brands and
cultivating future trendy products with a long-term perspective, and
continue to create value for consumers by upholding the corporate

philosophy of “Three Goods and One Fairness (ZiF—2A &) "

FINAL DIVIDEND

Based on the Group’s overall performance in 2023, and having
accounted for, including but not limited to, the Group’s surplus,
overall financial condition and capital expenditures, the board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company will propose
to declare a final cash dividend of RMB42.45 cents per share
(amounting to a total dividend of approximately RMB1,833.8 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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ETREBSE

Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECT

2023 was the “Consumption-Boosting Year CHEIRIRE)" in
China, consumption-promoting policies were rolled out intensively
in many places across the country to promote the development of
the consumer market, which played an important supporting role
in boosting consumer confidence, driving industry development,
and stabilising the uptrend of consumer spending recovery. Looking
ahead, “seeking progress while maintaining stability, promoting
stability through progress, and establishing the new before
abolishing the old (B9 3K ~ LUE(EFE ~ S %K) " will become
the main theme of the economic work of the “Consumption-
Promoting Year GHE{E#4E)” in 2024. Under the new economic
landscape, the Group will continue to adapt to the changing needs
of consumers and continue providing consumers with safe, high-
quality and innovative products, so as to achieve greater success
in the highly competitive market and to strive for better operating
results for the benefit of all shareholders.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

6 March 2024
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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ANALYSIS ON ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2023, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) recorded a year-on-year
increase of 5.2% and total retail sales of consumer goods grew
by 7.2% year-on-year, demonstrating the resilience and vitality of
China’s economy as well as the emergence of consumption as a
major driver of economic growth. The year 2023 was positioned
as the “Consumption-Boosting Year GHE12#x4F)”. The PRC
government actively rolled out a series of policies and measures to
promote consumption, focusing on expanding domestic demand
and unleashing the potential of consumption. The consumer market
continued to recover and demonstrated a trend of steady growth.

In 2023, the food and beverage industry encountered fluctuations in
the prices of related raw materials. The global economy continued
to face multiple risks such as rising inflation, geopolitical tensions
and fluctuations in energy and commodity prices. Under such
background, the Group continued to pay attention to the changes
in the external environment, constantly enhanced its organisational
coordination and risk management capabilities, fully utilised its
advantages in supply chain and research and development, and
maximised its resource utilisation efficiency under the principle of
improvement in efficiency.

After the pandemic, consumers have become increasingly
concerned about product quality, health and convenience, become
more rational in consumption decisions, and focused on products
with good value for money, while paying attention to quality and
practical needs in pursuit of products that satisfy their emotional
value. Consumption appeared more polarised, with high-end and
affordable products each having their own market. Moreover,
consumer demand has become increasingly personalised,
diversified and scenario-based. New consumer channels, such as
020, community e-commerce, interest-based e-commerce and live
broadcast, were under rapid development. The rapidly changing
market has gradually highlighted the importance of omni-channel
expansion. The Group upholds a value-based marketing strategy,
continues to cultivate offline and online diversified channels,
develops products with ingenuity, and insists on innovation to
satisfy consumers’ needs in different scenarios.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group continues to improve its social responsibility
management mechanism, incorporating sustainable development
into its overall business strategy to implement social responsibility
risk management and advance its sustainable development
goals. We have comprehensively strengthened economic, social
and environmental management, and implemented improvement
measures on key corporate responsibility issues, including climate
change, water resources management, green production, product
safety and quality, product nutrition and safety, customer service
quality, employee development, occupational health and safety, and
giving back to the society, in order to enhance the standards for
corporate sustainability.

The Group follows the goal and strategy of “sustainable
development Gk#& 25 R) ", and while pursuing performance growth,
the Group always practices its social responsibilities. With respect
to the Group’s policies, measures, actions and achievements
in corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) for the year ended 31
December 2023, please refer to the CSR Report published by the
Group, which can be viewed or downloaded on the website of
HKEXnews (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.uni-president.com.cn).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, the Group adhered to its core philosophy of focused
operation, striving to uphold the strategy of brand building and
value-based marketing through continuous healthy operation
and strengthened freshness management. The Group actively
accumulated brand assets on a long-term basis and continued to
optimise product strengths and product mix. We achieved record-
high revenue while maintaining sound operation, and relentlessly
pursued innovation, upheld the spirit of honesty and diligence,
focused on the brands’ core messages, explored and responded
to the nature of consumer demand, proactively expanded
consumption scenarios, and built diversified channels in line with
the ever-changing consumer trends.

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§
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The Group recorded a revenue of RMB28,591.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, representing an increase of 1.2% as
compared with that of last year. Performances of the Group’s core
businesses are as follows:

Food Business

With an aim to satisfy the needs of consumers, the Group was
committed to managing product quality, continuously optimising
product flavours and enhancing product strengths to create
a perfect consumption experience for consumers. We strived
to diversify consumption scenarios by offering products to be
enjoyed by consumers in different occasions, while focusing on
taste and convenience. The Group adhered to the value-based
marketing strategies to enhance brand awareness and loyalty,
while accumulating brand assets. The Group recorded a revenue of
RMB9,846.8 million from the food business in 2023.

Instant Noodles Business

In 2023, as the pandemic receded, consumption witnessed steady
expansion, with gradual recovery of the market demand along
with more rational consumption decisions. The development of the
instant noodles market underwent significant and drastic changes,
mainly embodied in the shift in the consumption scenarios.
However, products with good value for money continued to be the
mainstream of consumption. At the same time, consumers had
also been placing more emphasis on health, safety and innovation.
The Group’s instant noodle business is committed to catering for
the public’s needs, adheres to product quality, and significantly
enhanced product strengths with continuous empowerment. At
the same time, we have carried out continuous innovation for our
products in response to the personalised and diversified needs
of consumers. We are committed to delivering an outstanding
consumer experience while creating unique value for consumers.
The Group recorded a revenue of RMB9,594.3 million in 2023 from
the instant noodles business.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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As the pioneer and leader of nourishing soup
noodles, “Soup Daren (5% A)” stayed
true to its initial inspiration and insisted on
improving the products with ingenuity to give
consumers the ultimate product experience.
In terms of products, the Group actively
expanded the sales market of the nourishing
soup. The sales of “rice noodles CK4%)”
products under “Soup Daren GHZE A)”
increased rapidly, receiving recognition from
many consumers. In terms of communication,
Group inherited the brand assets of “Soup
Daren Genki Music Festival CBZA TR S
#457)”, and held the Genki Music Festival (T4 2 4450) in Orange
Isle, Changsha, at which the number of people on the scene and
online exposure reached record highs, which significantly improved
brand awareness and reputation. In terms of channels, the Group
resolutely maintained the stability of market price and the freshness
of products, and improved the purchasing and usage experience of
consumers.

“Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Noodles (4%—
EEEEAALE)” is committed to the ideology of making good
noodles with our heart and insisting on price stability. In particular,
Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Noodles (EIiBREIZ4ALE),
one of the flagship products, centred around the brand slogan of
“Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Noodles, the key to choice
is Uni-president Brand (EEBEF NI REHK— @B
and the super IP “Grandpa Lao Tan (E18F:&:)" to reshape the
brand and as a brand privatisation asset, continuous investments
were made on the IP. Product strengths are from five aspects,
namely ingredients, formula, Lao Tan, processing method and
patent, from which we strictly control quality, ensure significant
f advantages in product strength
and build a differentiation barrier.
In terms of communication, the
Group promoted the disclosure
of information, launched 24-
hour continuous live broadcasts
more than twice a month, and
disclosed the production lines and
the fermentation jar rooms on the
Weibo platform to consumers. The
revenue gradually recovered due
to increasing trust towards and
intimacy with the brand.

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§ 1 1
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With the brand positioning of “Pioneer of Tomato Delicacy (&
EKFAEE) ", “The King of Tomato (i 2)” continued to explore
the delicious taste of tomatoes. Starting from product strength,
it kept managing and controlling key technological processes

and managing the “3Ys” (stability, continuity and consistency)

of products to continuously bring consumers a sweet, sour and

@M

HiREFRE

sunshine healing experience.
We renewed, upgraded,
and introduced the brand
visual symbol, which further

enhanced its brand recognition

and reduced the cognitive
costs. The advertisements on
mainstream media together

with the fiery promotion of
offline activities in key markets,
as well as the popular brand
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slogan of “Xinjlang Tomato is a
Treasure and You Can’t go wrong with a bowl of The King of Tomato
FrEEmeEE  REMEE TS T)" have greatly expanded the
brand customer base and contributed to the steady growth of the
brand’s revenue.

“Teng Jiao (F%1B)”
a focus on the development and innovation of rattan pepper-

adhered to the branding of products with

flavoured products to strengthen the fresh and spicy flavour
characteristics. The carefully selected fragrant vine pepper
seasoned with a variety of ingredients have brought consumers
a fresh, spicy and tongue-dancing experience with its spicy and
numbing, fresh and attractive taste.

A mER
&)" as the core appeal, “Imperial Big Meal (in/EA%)" continued

With “Craving Meat? Imperial Big Meal's For You (180Z A

to improve its product to provide consumers with a high-end sense
of quality and ritual. In terms of communication, with a focus on the
taste of Taiwanese beef noodles, we promoted the product using
a platform matrix including Douyin, Weibo, Bilibili and Xiaohongshu
to strengthen the public awareness of classic flavour and large beef
noodles from Taiwan.
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Other Products

“Kai Xiao Zao (B
/) upheld the
vision of becoming

L4 RULCER 1301

—rer B

o ha R et ¥
FEFELTGTL
R

e

A i the social kitchen for

" R 20022023 G s e Ay

L the Chinese. As for

products, the Group
actively expanded

LR LT T
wan

into the frozen food
segment to promote

the Chinese culinary
culture. We launched “Private Kitchen (FAFE%2)” and frozen fried
rice series, which received positive feedback from consumers
due to the outstanding products. The frozen fried rice series were
awarded the Innovative Product for the Instant Food Industry in the
PRC in 2022-2028 after its launch. During the Double 11 Shopping
Festival in 2023, the products of “Private Kitchen (FAR=3%)” and
frozen fried rice series secured the first place in several categories.
In mid-December 2023, “Kai Xiao Zao (Bi/)\tt) " entered the Spring
Festival gift box market by launching the “Private Kitchen (FAR=3%) "
gift box, which facilitated the Group to capture the opportunities
arising from the high-end gift market.

Looking ahead to 2024, the gradual recovery and revitalisation of
the consumer market will bring new opportunities and challenges
to the industry. The products with good value for money will
continue to dominate the mainstream of consumption, while
innovative products in the new era should pay more attention
to health, safety and characteristics to bring emotional value to
consumers. The Group adheres to a consumer-oriented approach,
staying true to its original aspirations without compromising its
quality. The Group will gain in-depth understanding of consumers’
preferences and needs and continue to polish products to improve
quality with the aim of providing consumers with more satisfactory
experiences. The Group will give full play to its own advantages
to integrate healthy food ingredients into the national flavour, and
carry forward the profound Chinese culinary culture to satisfy the
personalised, diversified and healthy needs of consumers. The
Group will establish a strong emotional connection with consumers
by conveying the brand concept to consumers through products to
gain emotional resonance, ultimately becoming a trusted partner of
consumers.
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Beverages Business

The Group adhered to the philosophy of brand building for creating
brand value, and actively communicated and interacted with
young consumers in depth to convey our unique brand concept.
We focused on the core markets to actively expand to diversified
consumption scenarios, such as dining, family and gift scenarios,
etc. We actively pushed forward with the efficient expansion
of terminal point-of-sale, continued to enhance sales of frozen
products, empowered by digitisation, and continued to focus on
product freshness management to fulfil the diversified needs of
consumers through multiple channels and multiple scenarios. The
beverages business recorded a revenue of RMB17,775.5 million
in 2023, representing an increase of 8.4% over last year. The
performance of various major beverages businesses in 2023 is set
forth as follows:

Tea Business

In 2023, revenue from the tea drinks business amounted to
RMB7,579.5 million, representing an increase of 9.0% over last
year, which maintained a stable growth momentum. In 2023,
under the themes of “expanding domestic demand (&R3E) " and
“promoting consumption ({8 E &) ", the consumer market in China
demonstrated its vitality, and encountered more new consumption
opportunities and room for development. The Group’s tea drinks
business closely monitored the changes in consumption trends and
market trends, and was committed to providing products of higher
quality and more outstanding services to meet the ever-changing
needs of new channels, new scenarios and new consumer groups

for drinks.

“Uni Green Tea (Jt—#:%%)” continued to build a
brand recognised by young people across the nation
in 2023 through taking “Real tea extraction (B & %
EY)” as the core benefit, and delivering the brand
concept of “Uni Green Tea, providing bonus to health
(—k 2 RERME) .

a core people-oriented approach, focusing on

The Group adopted

Xiaohongshu, Tencent, Cainiao Station and other
popular platforms. Through the launch of sugar-free
green tea, the Tencent S+-level variety show, and the
public welfare activity of “Send coolness to delivery
riders (&/NEHERINED) ", the Group strengthened
the brand’s health attribute and sense of value, and
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created the brand image of national healthy tea. In the future, the
Group will continue to expand the young drinking group through the
development of low sugar and sugar-free product lines to create
national tea products with good value for money.

In 2023, the product strength of
“Uni Ice Tea (#—KAL%)" was
upgraded by adding “real lemon juice
(EEEH5T)” to enrich the taste
of product, attracting and cultivating
new generations of consumers with
“Real lemon, true youth (&5 B&
Z&)". At the same time, the Group was
committed to realising the brand vision
of “Ice Tea for the New Generation (¥t
HARBIKAIZ)” by communicating
the emotional value with an authentic
youthful attitude. In the first half of
the year, the Group carried out VI
visual rejuvenation by integrating differentiated selling points. In the
second half of the year, we rode on the summer vacation marketing
season to focus on Bilibili favoured by the Z generation to tap
into the communities of ACG (ZZ7t), and continued the user’s
assets deposition of the brand in the ACG (Z X 7t) communities
to expand the brand’s exposure and influence. In 2024, “Uni Ice
Tea (B —7KALZY) " will gain insights into the pain points of the
product category in response to the needs of the new generation
of consumers to upgrade the product strengths by adding special
black tea to strengthen the tea flavour and bring a more dominant
and smooth drinking experience. The Group will create a brand
marketing event of one million bottles of sampling with a focus
on product upgrade in an attempt to attract new consumers and

increase the frequency of drinking.

In 2023, “Uni Plum Green Tea
(#— B2 quickly
captured consumers’
attention and consolidated
its market position by
continuously highlighting
its unique selling point of
“Grade A plums (A#RER#Y
AAIHE)” in its promotion.
We exclusively sponsored

Bilibili's graduation concert
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for 2023 to enhance brand awareness in target groups, leveraging
on which we created the Traditional Chinese Graduation (Bl & £ 2£
ZX) |P. At the same time, the Group cooperated with Youku S+-level
Chinese style shows to expand the brand
communication volume, further shaping
the brand’s differentiated image of “Plum
Green Tea with Chinese Taste (1§&
F 3 e AERR) ", and accumulating
brand assets. In 2024, the Group will
continuously promote “Grade A plums
(ABREUR; AHKIME) " in order to capture
consumers’ attention.

In 2023, “Uni Shuangcui Lemon Tea (4
—EX@BIRE)" was fully renewed and
upgraded to create a lemon tea that
one is never tired of drinking through the
innovative concept of “Double Tea Base
with 7-minute Extraction (8 E [ »
EV743$%)”. From June to August 2023,
the Group joined hands with Tencent
TME music platform matrix to create and
launch the “Double Extraction Golden
Song — Tea Escort” and MV, in order
to create the brand image and characteristics of Cantonese-style
lemon tea with unique regional and humanistic characteristics,
aiming to actively explore the market of the new young generation
and rapidly enhance brand awareness and reputation.

In 2023, “Classmate Xiaoming /N EE)” continued to
focus on the group of students, with the core concept
of “Only Real Tea Tastes Good (EZA%9F)”, to attract
and cultivate the younger generation of students by taking
advantage of the ACG culture. The Group focused resources
and commenced in-depth cooperation with Bilibili, an ACG
platform, and leveraged the popular Chinese comics IP “Link
Click (BF LI A) " as an opportunity to enter into the hearts
and minds of the ACG group by attracting the attention of
comics fans in order to reach out to the target groups.
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With the core appeal of “a sweet taste came after just
like it’s freshly brewed (BIHF&3IRE)”, “Chai Li Won
(3#Z= F)” has continued to improve its products and
is committed to providing consumers with a sense of
quality and experience of good tea. In 2023, we continued
to optimise product strength and made innovative
breakthroughs in tea-making process. The first fresh
leaf juice was used in the green tea category to further
strengthen product characteristics, enhance freshness and
deliver a good tea taste with “a sweet taste came after just
like it's freshly brewed (Bl H FLEIRE) ", In 2024, “Chai Li
Won (22 F)” will cooperate with the heir to endorse the
brand from a professional and authoritative perspective. In
terms of communication, we will integrate the customs of tea areas,
tea-making techniques, and the brand story of “the three steps
of selection, production and taste (—#~ “fE~ = &) " to enable
consumers to experience the process of good tea-making in all
aspects, and convey the brand’s attitude of dedication to making
good tea.

In the post-pandemic era, the health awareness of the general
public has increased significantly. In 2023, the Group actively
responded to the needs of target consumers by continuously
upgrading its products and strengthening the health attributes of
its products to enhance consumers’ purchasing incentive, thereby
driving the performance growth. At the same time, the Group
actively developed the sugar-free market to meet the diversified
needs of different people for tea drinks. Looking ahead to 2024,
the Group’s brands of tea drinks will continue to strengthen their
product strengths and carefully polish products that meet the needs
of the public and the era. Meanwhile, the Group will further expand
its presence in multiple scenarios by enhancing development and
resources investments in family, catering, O20 and other channels.
While maintaining sales growth and improving resilience, the Group
will actively capture market trends, and discover and embrace new
opportunities.

Juice

In 2023, revenue from the juice business of the Group amounted to
a total of RMB3,404.2 million, representing an increase of 13.3%
over last year and accounting for 19.2% of beverage revenue, a
seven-year high. Always adhering to the idea of providing tasty
and healthy juice to consumers, the juice business continued
to optimise product flavours and benefits. We concentrated our
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business strategy on diversifying specifications and scenarios to
cater for the mass taste. On the premise of steady operation in
the ready-to-drink scenario, the Group deepened the expansion
of the dining scenario and accelerated the development of gift box
scenario and family scenario, so as to rapidly expand the juice
market share.

“Uni Orangeate (#i—fi5%)”
continued to deliver the orange
juice image of “More Fiber (%
#)” and “More Vitamin C (%C)”.
In the ready-to-drink and family
scenarios, the Group highlighted
the visual image of “Fiber (44)” on
the product packaging, together
with outdoor media campaigns,
to continuously reinforce the
benefits of products with rich
dietary fibre. In terms of the dining
scenario, we continued to increase the number of points of sale
of canned products, in conjunction with promotion through social
media platforms, to reinforce Orangeate’s image of being the “go-
to beverage”. With respect to the gift box scenario, we launched
gift boxes of different specifications to meet the pricing needs of
different markets, while focusing on the media campaigns in rural
and county markets to strengthen consumers’ awareness of the
attributes of Uni Orangeate as gifts.

“Haizhiyan (82 =) " grasped the trend in the post-pandemic era
to accurately position the category of electrolyte drinks. In 2023,
the revenue growth rate and the compound annual
growth rates of revenue for the past three years
achieved high double-digit growth. In 2024, we
will continue to focus on the promotion of “Drink
Haizhiyan after sweating CR;T#tI8/8 2 =) to
accumulate brand assets, and take “containing
potassium ions, sodium ions, etc., with refreshing
juice, which tastes fresh and helps you rehydrate
and replenish electrolyte loss (&5 $REEF - i
BrF BRERR T OREH EM-ERR
KHIKDFIEREE)” as the basis to continue to
communicate with consumers, emphasise the
consumption reasons and capture consumers’
attention. Meanwhile, we actively deployed the
electrolyte drinks market and expanded different
drinking scenarios to create a new driver for growth.
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“Uni Guo Yang (#—2%)" continued to build up the brand
image of “Outstanding with Sweet and Sourness (B&&H k)"
and provided consumers with a wide variety of product flavours
to choose from in response to market demand. In 2023, a new
flavour “Uni Sweet-sour Plum Juice (88 —E£#585%) " was launched,
inheriting the ancient techniques for re-innovation to make plum
juice not only sweet and sour, but also more refreshing and non-
greasy, which became a new driver for incremental growth due
to its excellent market performance since its launch. Meanwhile,
in 2023, the Group continued to cobrand with the popular
IP “Heaven Official’s Blessing CKE 8" comics. Through
a variety of bottle marketing, the brand conveyed the brand
value of “Becoming More Outstanding with Sweet and Sourness
(BEEEEHEE BB 1K) ” and “Becoming More Outstanding with
Refresh and Sourness (B&E&3RRFE LK) ", so as to cultivate the
new generation of consumers and consolidate the loyal consumers.
The Group captured the selling opportunities in various scenarios
offline and expanded the sales in e-commerce and 020 platforms
online. The diversified sales channel penetration and marketing
strategies continuously improved the brand awareness and
reputation.

With the key appeal of “Moisten and Soothe Your Heart (— 78
0 BE)”, “Uni Crystal Sugar Pear Drink (4 — A #EZ 5L ” conveyed
its core value of “Moist () ”. In 2023, we continued to enhance
product quality, optimise packaging vision and flavour, and
highlighted the visual presentation of “Moist ()" through the
expression of different scenarios in order to attract the attention and
love of young consumers.

“Vitality Awakening GtRZ) " delivered
the brand slogan of “Vitality is awakened
every day by the freshness and sweetness
of naturally fully-ripened fruits (B ZA5E 74
A TREEXKE)", promoted
positive energy and conveyed the brand
identity of “Full of vitality and awakening
new power (GtRomm  BEMNI2)".
We carefully and strictly selected naturally
fully-ripened fruits and vegetables and
completely replicated the freshness and
sweetness of naturally fully ripened fruits
and vegetables. In terms of channels, we continued to focus on
cultivating 100% juice market in key first-tier cities by developing
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the contemporary system and e-commerce platforms. We rode on
the trend to expand online platforms such as O20 and groceries
delivery services, launched gift boxes to meet the traditional needs
of festive gift-giving, and fully captured the opportunities of family
consumption. Vitality Awakening 100% fruit (vegetable) juice was in
response to consumers’ demand for healthy life, actively creating
new growth driver for the juice business.

In 2024, the Group’s juice business will continue to ride on the
changes in consumption demand and market trend. We will insist
on the core value of our juice products’ health benefits, seize
the definite growth opportunity from the existing products, and
quickly turn them into mass products in multiple specifications and
scenarios. At the same time, the Group will actively explore new
opportunities for product category and accelerate the launch of
upgraded product series with better taste and health benefits, so as
to facilitate the Group to continue to expand its market share in the
juice market.

Milk Tea

In 2023, the milk tea business of the Group generated revenue of
RMB6,305.2 million, representing an increase of 5.0% over last
year. As a leading brand in the market, “Uni Assam Milk Tea (4%
— BRI FEIEYES) " has always insisted on putting products first and
managing the freshness well to bring consumers the best drinking
experience. The business empowerment boosted the mood of
more third and fourth tier consumers with smooth and tasty Assam
Milk Tea anytime and anywhere. In 2023, in response to the market
trend, we launched a new product “CITEA milk tea (=4 A5
to continuously improve the milk tea brand matrix and to challenge
and defend ourselves.

“Uni Assam Milk Tea (#t— P&
W %) " continued to explore
new opportunities in the drinking
scenario and introduced new
flavours to meet consumer needs
in line with the times. The Group
launched cans and tetra packs
in 2023 to capitalise on the gift
box sales opportunity, while
continuously promoting large
packs and small but beautiful
products. With respect to product
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strength, Fruit Milk Tea was popular among young people for its
differentiated flavours and has become a new growth point for
revenue. In terms of communication, we centred on the brand’s
core value of “Smooth and Good Mood (B35 ¥FC\5) ”. During the
Spring Festival, it focused on the drinking scenario of the reunion
and conveyed the brand’s new year appeal of “Happy New Year
(IB5 KEVE)”. Through our exclusive title sponsorship of the
variety show “Friends Together (RIFAAA B AR) ", Assam milk
tea was embedded in various scenarios of young consumers’
lives, enhancing the connection between Assam milk tea and good
mood. The continuous and effective communication with target
consumers proved to be conducive to brand rejuvenation.

The Group continued to identify market opportunities and launched
“CITEA milk tea (FF&FZ )" in the fourth quarter of 2023
to provide young people with “sweet but not greasy, flavourful
and aromatic” milk tea
products, in a hope to
become a new choice for
the younger generation
of consumers. In terms
of product, “CITEA milk
tea (BHFILE)" uses
an innovative slow-boiling
technique and carefully
selects the original leaves
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of Da Hong Pao and
High Mountain Black Tea
for slow-boiling of 12
minutes, which stimulates

the attractive roasted and
floral aroma, while adding imported milk to deliver thick, mellow,
rich and full-flavored taste. On the communication side, “CITEA milk
tea (FFEFILEY) " is committed to delivering the brand concept of
“the companion of slow life in the city”, hoping that young people
can slow down the pace in busy schedules and enjoy a 5-minute
slow life anytime, anywhere.

Coffee

In 2023, the coffee business continued to focus on the “A-Ha
(BP8)” brand strategy by optimising its product portfolio and
actively exploring new markets. It actively tried to extend its
products in line with consumer trends, in order to provide the new
generation of consumers with a wider variety of flavour choices.
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In terms of product, the new flavour of Raw Coconut Latte was
well received by the new generation of consumers and has initially
established a certain market base. Regarding communication,
consumer participation in the integrated marketing campaign
has far exceeded expectations. Coupled with the outdoor media
advertisements in key cities, the brand appeal of “Getting Started
with Vitality! CE77H2%)” has been effectively accumulated. On
the operation front, the Group focused on enhancing the channel
penetration of “A-Ha (#15)”. Focusing on key cities, we have
advanced the operations in potential markets and achieved initial
results.

In 2024, the coffee business will continue to promote the “A-Ha
(FEMR) " brand and focus on expanding its base. On the product
side, we will serve the secondary market of iced coffee through
a two-wheel drive, and strive to cultivate consumers of Raw
Coconut Latte. In terms of communication, we will continue to
focus on key cities, and arrange theme marketing campaigns,
elevator media and other outdoor advertisements to precisely
reach out to the target group and continue to expand the brand’s
customer base.

Bottled Water

The water business of the Group focused on the operation of
“ALKAQUA (B35)”
of ALKAQUA was upgraded strategically, and was aware of the

natural mineral water. In 2023, the brand

prevailing consumer sentiment of anti-involution and anti-anxiety
in pursuit for a simple life. The brand integrated the natural
characteristics “simple (f§88)” of ALKAQUA: transparent bottle
body, quality water source and minimalist blue label design. We
communicated emotionally with consumers through our brand
proposition of “Just keep it simple, ALKAQUA (25 R » G 8 nt
#¥)” to advocate for a simpler lifestyle. Family scenario has become
a major focus for drinking water sales due to ever-changing
purchasing patterns of consumers. In line with this trend, ALKAQUA
launched a 5L water barrel in December 2023. The product will
focus on the e-commerce channel, aiming to open up the family
drinking water market at an extremely cost-effective price, making it
a new growth point for the brand.
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In 2024, ALKAQUA will

ALKAQUA &2 continue to cultivate the
Shanghai market, focusing

E% ﬁJ"‘ % on communication with

£ ke four highly “involuting (7

IEﬁ % ?JE yg #%)” groups of people,
-] including gold-collar
workers in the workplace,
sophisticated mothers,
students and their families
and practitioners as well
as urban couples, in order
to continue to cultivate the
momentum of revenue
growth. We will strengthen channels construction in line with the radius
of people’s lives and work, focus on core locations to create a
strong area and follow the trend of online consumption to create
a market for the family drinking scenario in order to make a new
breakthrough in growth.

Bottle Can Drinks

The Group continued to use bottle cans as an effective vehicle
to expand beverage choices and gained further insights into
consumer needs in an effort to satisfy a wider market. “Keep Sweet
(IEZE )" took the Cantonese dessert “Mango & Pomelo
Sweet Soup (1B HEE)” as its classic flavour,
and selected the raw materials through the
technological craftsmanship of the bottle
cans. The Group continued to develop its
e-commerce platform, and formed a closed-
loop management of sales and promotion
through short videos and the recommendation
of influencers in a continuous effort towards the
combination of quality and effectiveness.

In addition, given the changes in lifestyles of
young consumers and demands of the new
era, the scale of consumer market for all kinds
of ready-to-drink wine have undergone gradual
growth in recent years. In 2023, in response to
the new consumption trends of young people,
we launched four types of flavoured 8-degree
sparkling wine under the brand name of “Uni-
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Wonder”,
refreshing bubbles and unique flavours, creating a relaxing drinking

which was based on the classic cocktail style, with
moment in leisure life.

Under the development of diversified channels, in order to meet the
ever-changing consumer demand for ready-to-drink beverages and
in response to the increasing market popularity in the club store
system, the Group’s premium coffee brand “MANYA (48%) " newly
launched CAFE Au Lait (BRE) with the perfect combination of tea
+ coffee. Such innovative product was exclusively launched in the
Sam’s system to satisfy the needs of different consumer groups.

E-commerce

The Group’s online business is committed to enriching customers’
purchasing channels and creating a convenient, safe and efficient
business model that continuously brings more convenience to
consumers. While maintaining the traditional e-commerce business
foundation, in 2023, we explored two major business models:
deepening the 020 new e-commerce represented by Meituan
Grocery (EEE%Z), and meeting most consumers’ demand for
“purchasing high-quality products instantly and affordably (B[ B X
FEMBEFIFET) " furthermore, we have strategically deployed
our resources into the field of universal interest-based e-commerce,
which is represented by platforms like Douyin Shop (£} & i)
and Pinduoduo (3#%%). We have also set up three themed
livestreaming rooms to meet the emerging demand of most users
for “cost-effectiveness (&L ”
more emotional value while creating new promotional platforms for

. We are committed to providing

various brands within the Group.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

As 2023 was the first year of the post pandemic era in the
consumer market, various market players planned to innovate,
which resulted in increasingly fierce market competition. The
Group’s business research institute adhered to the philosophy of
satisfying consumer needs and insisted on value innovation. On
the one hand, it continued to empower its featured products by
securing supply; on the other hand, it captured the trend, grasped
the competitive landscape of the industry, and developed new
products to facilitate steady growth of the Company’s revenue.
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In order to continuously build up an advantageous technological
barrier, the Group has made the establishment of core patented
technologies as one of its regular and important tasks. As
of December 2023, the Group’s research and development
has accumulated 164 licensed patents and 48 patents under
applications, continuously building competitive barriers.

Continuously Empowering Featured Products

The Group’s top priority in research and development throughout
2023 was to empower the existing featured products, focusing
on major flavours of billion level. The Group maintained its
competitiveness in the market by continuously refining its product
strengths with the spirit of “attaining knowledge by investigation of
things” to bring better consumption experience to consumers.

“Uni Assam Milk Tea (%t —PFIFEEIIZ) " promotes all-
around product quality improvement through front-end
management of tea raw material quality, refined control of
production process, and sound finished product monitoring
and control standards. In 2023, the new flavours of White
Peach Guanyin (H#k¥i5)and Green Grape Jasmine
(F1RFF)) further satisfied the diversified needs of
consumers’ tastes. In addition, in order to open up the
family consumption scenario, Assam Milk Tea products
were developed and launched in small and beautiful gift
boxes in response to the consumption trend.

“Uni Green Tea (#t—#%%%) " establishes a monitoring system and
standards covering from the source to the finished product to
ensure stable product quality. On the raw material side, the Group’s
plant management system with two-tier upward traceability has
completed the supplier assessment of more than 20 tea processing
factories. In terms of craftsmanship, each batch of production
process data is monitored and controlled to ensure the consistency
and stability of the product quality of each production plant. In
response to consumers’ demand for sugar-free products, we have
timely launched sugar-free green tea.

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§
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With the increase in consumer health awareness after the
pandemic, the market share of electrolyte drinks has increased
rapidly. The Group’s business research institute, in cooperation
with industry associations, actively participated in the formulation
of national electrolyte drink standards, thereby contributing to
the development of electrolyte drinks in China. “Haizhiyan (&2
=) " grasped the trend of electrolyte drinks and developed a new
“isotonic (%38) " version of electrolyte drinks.

“Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Noodles (4% —
EIERESAFASE)” has strengthened the monitoring and control
of the source of pickled cabbage to ensure that each batch of raw
materials meets the quality requirements of food safety and flavour.
It has continued to optimise and refine the traditional fermentation
craftsmanship and strengthened the fermentation craftsmanship
of Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage to provide consumers with authentic
fermented flavour, which in turn enhances the sour characteristics
of the product to keep it more abreast with the appeal of sourness.

Through the establishment of safety fence technology for
tomato products and the continuous optimisation of production
craftsmanship, “The King of Tomato (Ji2)” has constructed
product technology barriers to achieve a balance between safety
and deliciousness. The new product “Tomato Bolognese
Instant Pasta of The King of Tomato (i £ & =, 35 it U 45 3
%H)” is a replication of the ltalian classic, which has been
well received by the young consumer group. By leveraging
on the advantages of raw materials of tomato from the
Xinjiang factory, and ensuring the stable supply and quality
of raw materials of tomato, “The King of Tomato (Fi £)”
will become a popular tomato-flavoured gourmet with good
value for money among the young consumer group.
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Active New Product (Category) Deployment

Leveraging on the development trend of street beverage store
products, “CITEA milk tea (FF&FZLZY)” was launched in 2023,
with two flavours of Da Hong Pao and Rose. Through differentiated
positioning, the tea base is made of real milk, simmered with
original tea leaves. The comprehensive upgrade of craftsmanship
stimulates unique roasted and floral aroma, delivering a rich
and non-greasy texture and replicating the original flavour of
the milk tea. “CITEA milk tea (F #4235 " understands the
new generation of young people better, and has become their
companion in casual slow life.

The brand name “Uni Shuangcui Lemon Tea (4t —#Z gl
)"
from black tea + oolong tea. The Ya Shi Xiang (B&FRZ)is highly
recommended, with the flavour positioning at the authentic
Cantonese lemon tea. The two kinds of tea base, together with

comes from the double extraction of selected tea base

fragrant lemon juice, delivers moderately sweet and sour and tea
flavour that is never tired of drinking. The product is characterised
by a sense of cultural identity with the Cantonese style, and
provides consumers with a refreshing and non-greasy drinking
experience.

“In Love With Tomato (2 i &7i)” 100% NFC tomato
juice is a type of tasty tomato juice, which was newly
launched in January 2024. A bottle of “In Love With
Tomato (B & &E#m)” consists of juice from about 24
cherry tomatoes. In order to optimise the taste, we
carefully select 100% NFC tomato juice from different
latitudes, production areas, seasons, across distances
and time in China and accurately proportion it to obtain
the golden sugar-acid ratio and texture. It is sweet
but not greasy, and adopts NFC non-concentrated
reduction process to present a strong tomato aroma and
freshness.

Konjac, a functional ingredient with rich dietary fibre, low calorie
and satiety, has been recognised by the public and is in line with
the trend of casual snacks development. “Little Raccoon High Fiber
Konjac (VN BES B 3) " enters the new consumption scenario
of casual snacks. It is made with a secret recipe, with a chewy
texture and a spicy and refreshing taste. The product is rich in
dietary fibre, which helps maintain normal intestinal function, striking

a balance between casual snacks and health.
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Due to the continuous expansion of the family scenario, which
is one of the new consumption scenarios, pre-cooked cuisine
has been considered as a convenient, fast and tasty choice,
and has gradually been favoured by consumers at homes. In
response to this trend, the Group has launched the “Kai Xiao Zao
Private Kitchen (B/\MFAE )" series. With the chef’s skill, the
world’s delicacies are supplemented with humanistic flavours for
consumers to enjoy at their tables. The core ingredients of the
products are frozen under -30°C to maintain the colour, aroma,
taste and shape, which are nutritious, delicious and highly restored
as if they were freshly cooked.

Building Core Technologies and Collaborative Innovation

To ensure our long-term competitiveness,
the Group’s business research institute has
continued to build moat for its technologies.

taskbane \CH

H&F & In 2023, it continued to work on more than 10

core technology projects through internal and
external collaborative innovation and independent
innovation, in which, the research on tea roasting
and aroma-keeping technique was successfully applied to sugar-
free beverage products such as “Chai Li Won Raw Green Tea
(FEEEELEZ)” and “Uni Sugar-Free Green Tea (#i— 4
#EAEZS)”, and the moulding processing technique of konjac
products was successfully applied to “Little Raccoon High Fiber
Konjac (JVRBESMIEZE)”. In addition, by leveraging on the
resources of domestic and overseas research and development
centres of strategic manufacturers and professional research and
development consultants, we have rapidly developed and launched
new products such as “Kai Xiao Zao Private Kitchen (B8/)\ktFA
50" series and “CITEA milk tea (&% 3% " series through
collaborative innovation.

Promoting Digitalisation of Research and Development

In order to ensure more effective management of research and
development intellectual property, the research and development
digital management system was launched in 2023, optimising
the digital management of research and development projects
from initially partial process to currently full process of digital
management, which effectively improved the efficiency of research
and development and facilitated the inheritance of research and
development intelligence.
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With respect to consumer research, through the alliance with
Tmall new product innovation centre and the use of Alibaba’s big
data model, we have realised a research method that integrates
“big data + small samples”, which empowers product innovation,
quickly understands the market dynamics, accurately reaches out
to the target consumers, and enables consumers to participate
in the research and development process, so as to achieve joint
creation and use with consumers.

Looking forward to 2024, the Group’s business research institute
will continue to build moat for its product strengths with continuous
innovation and progress to satisfy consumers’ needs and create
products with good value for money for consumers.

INSISTING ON FOOD SAFETY

We uphold the philosophy of “Three Goods and One Fairness (=
Y—/A38)”, i.e. Good Quality, Good Credit, Good Service and Fair
Price (B~ ERE RFBIF B8 Q) , and with the mission
of producing products that consumers will “be comfortable and
happy to eat (118220~ 12188907, we offer safe, healthy and
delicious food to consumers. We have set up the Food Safety
and Quality Committee with our General Manager as its Director.
The Committee serves as the organisation with supreme power to
design and optimise the food safety and quality assurance system.
The members of the Food Safety and Quality Committee cover
all relevant departments including the business research institute,
procurement resources management office, the production
management group, food safety and management office, etc. The
Committee holds meetings periodically to discuss food safety and
quality assurance management issues. Besides, we have set up
the Food Safety and Management Office as the food safety and
quality assurance management department to establish a food
safety and quality assurance system, implement and put in place
policies, deepen food safety risk assessment, provide warning and
monitoring, etc.

We have established three lines of defence for food safety, namely,
qualification review, field assessment, and food safety testing. By
managing suppliers’ food safety from multiple perspectives, we
have effectively controlled the food safety risk brought by suppliers
and ensured food safety of suppliers.
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We adhere to three controls to ensure quality and prevent
abnormity in quality: quality control on product development and
design, quality control of production process, and quality control
of the finished products. Our products strictly abide by relevant
laws and regulations such as the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China. Besides, the food safety of all products are
strictly monitored to ensure they comply with laws and regulations

e

and are “comfortable and happy to eat (1218 Z )~ IZ18E50)) 7.

The Group’s Food Safety and Management Office has set up a
Food Safety Testing Centre to provide strong support for food
safety risk control. Since 2005, the Centre has passed the annual
China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment
(CNAS accreditation). As of 2023, 173 projects of the Group have
been approved. Meanwhile, the Group has a number of national
patents for utility models and more than 700 perennial independent
testing projects. The scope of assessment on the Group’s food
safety projects covers drinks, food, water, additives, grain and oil,
and packaging materials.

The Group’s plants have established a complete food safety
management system according to ISO 22000, FSSC 22000
and Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP). As of 2023,
26 subsidiaries of the Group were accredited with the ISO
22000 International Standard Food Safety Management System
Certification, one with the FSSC 22000 certification, and six with
the HACCP certification.

PRODUCTION STRATEGIES

The Group spared no effort in its operation, and in research and
development and innovation of its products, aiming to meet
different customer needs. In order to strike a balance between the
supply chain risk brought by the pandemic and the transportation
cost, and to achieve synergistic effects in production efficiency
and operational support, the Group did not solely rely on its
own production resources, but also outsourced its production to
other professional beverages manufacturers (including external
independent third parties and related-party companies). A strategic
alliance was formed under long-term co-operation with the external
manufacturers, enabling the Group to outsource production to
adjust production capacity in addition to the basic production
capacity, providing the Group with production flexibility. Thus, the
Group was able to fully utilise its resources on core operation and
optimise its efficiency.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded revenue of RMB28,591.3 million, representing an increase
of 1.2% from RMB28,257.4 million for 2022. Revenue from the
food business amounted to RMB9,846.8 million, representing a
decrease of 10.6% as compared with the corresponding period
of last year, which accounted for 34.4% of the Group’s total
revenue, and revenue from the beverages business amounted
to RMB17,775.5 million, representing an increase of 8.4% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year, which
accounted for 62.2% of the Group’s total revenue. During the
Year, gross profit of the Group increased from RMB8,187.9
million for the corresponding period of last year to RMB8,711.7
million, representing an increase of 6.4%, while the gross profit
margin increased by 1.5 percentage points from 29.0% for the
corresponding period of last year to 30.5%, which was mainly
due to the decrease in the cost of certain raw materials and the
optimisation of product mix.

During the Year, the selling and marketing expenses increased by
approximately RMB391.3 million to RMB6,277.9 million (2022:
RMB5,886.6 million) as compared with the corresponding period
of last year. The increase in selling and marketing expenses was
mainly due to the year-on-year increase in the scale of brand
building, the depreciation of marketing assets and the remuneration
for sales representatives. During the Year, administrative expenses
amounted to RMB1,065.9 million (2022: RMB1,041.0 million),
representing a slight increase of approximately RMB24.9 million
as compared with the corresponding period of last year, which
was mainly attributable to increase in employee remuneration and
travelling expenses.

The operating profit was RMB1,996.5 million for the Year (2022:
RMB1,495.8 million), representing an increase of 33.5% as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the one-off gain from the disposal
of land use right of a piece of land located in Hefei, the PRC
of RMB351.4 million and the growth in operating profit of core
businesses. The share of profits of investments accounted for using
the equity method amounted to RMB49.9 million (2022: RMB26.1
million) during the Year, which was mainly due to the increase in
income from investments in associates. Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the Year was RMB1,667.1 million
(2022: RMB1,222.2 million), representing an increase of 36.4% as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. Earnings per
share during the Year were RMB38.60 cents (2022: RMB28.30
cents).
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash at bank and on
hand of RMB7,565.5 million (31 December 2022: RMB6,654.2
million), among which 99.90% was denominated in Renminbi,
0.05% was denominated in Hong Kong dollar, 0.03% was
denominated in New Taiwan dollar, and 0.02% was denominated
in United States dollar. The Group mainly financed its operation
and capital expenditures with internally generated cash flow.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total financial liabilities
amounted to RMB1,079.4 million (31 December 2022: RMB869.5
million), representing an increase of 24.1% as compared to the
corresponding period of last year, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in short-term borrowings. The short-term working
capital was relatively sufficient to repay bank borrowings. 100%
of borrowings under the Group’s total financial liabilities was
As at 31 December 2023, all of the
Group’s financial liabilities bore floating interest rates. As at 31

denominated in Renminbi.

December 2023, the Group did not have any secured bank
borrowing (31 December 2022: Nil).

Financing

The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure. The
gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022 were as follows:

2023 2022

AREFTT AR®TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HEE (BEREaR) Total borrowings (including lease liabilities) 1,079,435 869,496
B IRIT R FEIRE (MIEE1) Less: cash at bank and on hand (Note 1) (7,565,454) (6,654,208)
N5 Net cash (6,486,019) (5,784,712)
MR Total equity 13,382,377 13,181,353
BERBELER (fE2) Gearing ratio (Note 2) (48.47%) (43.89%)

iF— ¥ hE PG A R/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Note 1: As at 31 December 2023, cash at bank and on hand excluded the
Group’s purchase of financial products issued by four big domestic
banks and other commercial banks. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group had financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
RMB1,618.7 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,018.5 million).

Note 2: The gearing ratio is computed as net cash divided by total equity.

The Group reviewed its gearing ratio on a monthly basis. According
to the capital plan for the future, the Group tried to maximize
revenue for its shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind.
Capital structure was constantly adjusted according to changes in
the operational environment.

Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a year-on-year
net increase in cash and cash equivalents of RMB823.5 million,
mainly comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of
RMB3,053.5 million, net cash outflow from investing activities of
RMB947.0 million and net cash outflow from financing activities
of RMB1,282.5 million. The Group’s capital expenditure (including
lease right-of-use assets) for the Year was RMB1,078.8 million
(81 December 2022: RMB545.9 million), which was mainly due to
investments in marketing assets for sales channels and investments
for replacement of outdated facilities with new ones and for re-
development.

Analysis of Operating Efficiency

The Group stringently controls and manages the levels of trade
receivables, trade payables and inventories. Sales to most
customers are made on a delivery on payment basis. Trade
receivables are generated from credit sales to credit customers
from modern channels and e-commerce business (including but not
limited to food and groceries stores, stalls and department stores)
with credit terms normally ranging from 60 to 90 days. During
the Year, net trade receivables decreased by RMB234.1 million to
RMB585.8 million (831 December 2022: RMB819.9 million). The
decrease in net trade receivables was mainly due to the delay in
product preparation for Chinese New Year subsequently as a result
of Chinese New Year for the Year being later than the previous
year while product preparation for Chinese New Year last year was
moved up to December 2022 and the increase in the aforesaid
products preparation by customers led to an increase in sales.
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The Group’s inventories mainly comprised raw materials, packaging
materials, finished goods and low-value consumables. As at 31
December 2023, the inventories balance decreased by RMB396.6
million to RMB2,125.9 million (31 December 2022: RMB2,522.5
million) as compared to the beginning of the Year, which was
attributable to the delay in the products preparation for the
Chinese New Year as compared to the same period last year. The
inventories turnover days decreased by two days as compared with
that of 2022. The Group’s trade payables mainly arise from credit
purchases of raw materials and finished goods. During the Year,
trade payables decreased by RMB552.4 million to RMB2,122.6
million (31 December 2022: RMB2,675.0 million). The decrease in
trade payables was mainly due to the delay in product preparation
for Chinese New Year as a result of Chinese New Year being later
than last year. The following table sets out the major turnover days
for the past two years ended 31 December.

HE12H31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 2022
B E Z R B B R Trade receivables turnover days 9 9
FERERH Inventory turnover days 42 44
FENE SR BERH Trade payables turnover days 43 43

BEEBEZERNAEBRASFNERE SR
WEN R EREFNTIOERUEXE B
FeAFARE -

FERABRESTNEFNREREFEREGRN
FHERUEENS  BRUFARE-

BNEZRRNABRUSNEME SR
B FA) R F R AERB T ERRE S A
BRUERXR#K-
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Trade receivables turnover days were calculated based on the
average of trade receivables balances as at the beginning and the
end of the year divided by revenue multiplied by the number of days
in the year.

Inventory turnover days were calculated based on the average of
inventory balances as at the beginning and the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by the number of days in the
year.

Trade payables turnover days were calculated based on the
average of trade payables balances as at the beginning and the
end of the year divided by cost of sales multiplied by the number of
days in the year.
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The Group reckoned that trade receivables turnover days, inventory
turnover days and trade payables turnover days in the distribution
channel helped the Group in understanding the efficiency of
inventory liquidity and the sales and cash conversion cycle.
Through reviewing and improving the turnover days, the Group
could further improve its revenue, profit and the ability of on-going
growth for the sake of enhancing operational efficiency.

Financial Management

The Group adheres to the principle of financial prudence. It seeks
to control risk variables and moves forward prudently by moderately
adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according to market
conditions, and making appropriate capital expenditures to
optimise and expand the infrastructure and marketing assets for
sales channels. The Group’s finance department has formulated
financial risk management policies based on the policies and
procedures approved by the Board and guided by the executive
Directors. These policies are reviewed by the Group’s internal audit
department and internal control department regularly. The Group’s
financial policy aims at reducing impacts of interest rate and
exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial position,
as well as minimising the Group’s financial risk exposure.

The Group’s finance department provides centralised financial risk
(including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow
management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and its
members. During the Year, the Group has maintained an automated
reconciliation system, which significantly improved capital efficiency
and accounting treatment effectiveness.
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Treasury Policy

It was the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in
any highly risky investment or speculative derivative product and
not to invest the working capital in financial products with significant
underlying leverage or risks, including hedge funds or similar
financial products. The Group continued to adopt a conservative
approach to financial risk management during the Year. Most of
the Group’s receipts and payments were denominated in Renminbi
since a majority of its revenue was derived from operations in the
PRC. The Group may use foreign exchange forward contracts,
when appropriate, for risk aversion when it is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from assets or liabilities, such as cash and
cash equivalents and borrowings, which may be denominated in
other currencies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not hold any significant
investments with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 20283.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge on group assets as at 31
December 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual report,
there was no plan for any material investment or to acquire capital
assets other than those in the Group’s ordinary business of
manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of employees of
the Group was 33,539. The Group adhered to the policies of
focused and streamlined operation, and organisational structure
and staff structure were improved on a continuous basis to build
a stronger and efficient enterprise. In terms of recruitment, the
Group was streamlining its administration and progressing towards
meritocracy. The Group insisted on building a stable and robust
team through mechanisms including comprehensive training and
humane care. Internal training, regular position transfer, external
exchange and part-time study and other measures enhanced
our overall performance and provided talents for key positions
of the Group steadily. Meanwhile, priorities were given to internal
promotion over external recruitment, and performance appraisal
and other measures were implemented to keep the current
management team ambitious and strong. To achieve the Group’s
annual goals, the Group had performance bonuses and incentive
schemes in place to commend and encourage employees at all
levels to make outstanding contributions to the Group’s business.
Performance bonuses were distributed on the basis of the realised
earnings and profits objectives of individual business units and
the Group as a whole, as well as the performance appraisal of the
employees.

The Group’s remuneration policy rewarded our employees and
directors with reference to their performance, qualifications,
demonstrated capabilities, market comparable information and the
performance of the Group. As part of the Group’s remuneration
policy, the Group entered into individual employment contracts
with each of its employees, which covered wages, social security
benefits, workplace safety and hygiene environment, confidentiality
obligations on trade secrets and termination conditions.

During the Year, total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were RMB4,474.7 million (2022: RMB4,324.3 million).
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of 31
December 2023 are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 101 of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB42.45 cents per share of the Company for the Year (the
“Proposed Final Dividends”), amounting to a total dividend of
approximately RMB1,833.8 million. The Proposed Final Dividends
shall be declared in RMB and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The actual
amount of dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be calculated
based on the average central parity rate of RMB against Hong
Kong dollars as published by the People’s Bank of China for the five
business days in Hong Kong immediately preceding the date of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “Annual
General Meeting”).

The Proposed Final Dividend, subject to the approval of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on or around Friday, 31 May 2024, will
be paid on or around Wednesday, 19 June 2024 to Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Tuesday, 11 June 2024.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 105 of the annual report and Note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB7,742,119,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB3,646,056 (2022: RMB16,119,570).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and as at the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Ms. Chien Chi-Lin (appointed on 8 March 2023)
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 63 to 67 of
the annual report.

The names of Directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and up to
the date of this report are available on the Company’s website
“www.uni-president.com.cn”.

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Chen Johnny, will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Mr. Su Tsung-Ming
will not offer himself for re-election due to his plan for retirement
and he will retire from his office as a non-executive Director from
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. Each of Mr. Chen
Sun-Te and Mr. Chen Johnny being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting.
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There is no service contract entered into between each of Mr. Su
Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Chen Johnny and the
Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Particulars of Directors seeking re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting are set out in the related circular to the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence with reference
to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the
Company considered all of them to be independent. Please refer
to the details disclosed in the section headed “Independent Non-
Executive Directors” in the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 (formerly known as
Appendix 10) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Interest of as at
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name of its relevant shareholder Owner 18 or spouse Total 2023
H—¥BMAERAT  Uni-President Enterprises

Corporation
BEST Lo Chih-Hsien 4,059,095 93,402,447 97,461,542 1.72%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and which
may be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts or letters of appointment entered
into with the Company and the agreements as disclosed under
the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of
this Report of the Directors, during the Year, no other contracts of
significance, transaction and arrangement to which the Company,
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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BE,/ XE Long positions/short positions
1420235
1283102
%18 &3 FATREEREE KBS
Percentage of
shareholding
Number of as at
ordinary shares of 31 December
Name Capacity the Company 2023
(BE4Y)
(Approximate)
H—EERMHBRAS (1) ZEREEED 3,146,830,983(L) 72.85%
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation* (Note 1) Interest of controlled
corporations
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (FffzE 1) EREBA 3,044,508,000(L) 70.49%

Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (Note 1)

L ETRRERERBINGFE -

P EE

1. WRZAAF]3,146,830,983/ A& 1% (TR 151)
Hrh>3,044,508,00088 B2 15 A Cayman
President Holdings Ltd. (FCayman
Presidentl) »#—ERHBERRE (M
—trE I CEREZEWNBAR) FE
22,528,983k & 17 HPresident (BVI)
International Investment Holdings Ltd.
(TPresident (BVI)J ' #i— ¥ EFAE
69.37 % 2 A F) £ 79,794,0008% i
AN EBVVRERRAR (TFlABVI)]
B—rEBBEXERBZRA) FE R
It RFEBESRBEGRA f—EWER
2R Cayman President~ President (BVI)
KA EBV)REBZMERNDFER#ER -

B EatiFEE & SN o 1R2023FE 128331 H » &
HMEZERRIHIA LT (RRARDESHEET
B A BRIN RAA B R AR R B 10 o
BRRESES RIAEKRGIE336KERER
BENECMA RN BRI LR -

*

For identification only

Beneficial owner

(L)  denotes a long position in the shares of the Company.

Note:

1. Out of 3,146,830,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
3,044,508,000 Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd.
(“Cayman President”), which is a direct wholly- owned subsidiary of
Uni- President Enterprises Corporation* (“UPE”), 22,528,983 Shares
were held by President (BVI) International Investment Holdings
Ltd. (“President (BVI)”), which is indirectly-owned as to 69.37% by
UPE and 79,794,000 Shares were held by Kai Yu (BVI) Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Kai Yu (BVI)"), which is indirectly wholly-owned by UPE.
Accordingly, UPE was deemed to be interested in all the Shares
respectively held by Cayman President, President (BVI) and Kai Yu
(BVI) by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no other
substantial shareholder or person (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Report of the Directors, (i) there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance subsisting
during or at the end of the Year in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director is or was materially interested, either
directly or indirectly; (i) no other contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries with its controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the Year; and (iii) there is no other contract of
significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities and/or actions. During the Year and as at the date of this
annual report, permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9
of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of
the Laws of Hong Kong)) was and is being in force for the benefit of
the Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not being exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the
Listing Rules are set out below:

(i) Framework Sales Agreements dated 25 March 2020
and 8 March 2023

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2020 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure members of the Group to agree to sell, on a non-
exclusive basis, to UPE Group, certain beverages, instant
noodles and bakery products and such other products, as
may be agreed in writing by the Group and UPE Group and/or
their respective members from time to time for a fixed term of
three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both
days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other terms of the
sales transactions contemplated under the 2020 Framework
Sales Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in the ordinary course of
business on normal commercial terms, negotiated on arm’s
length basis between the parties thereto and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties by the Group
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2020 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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The 2020 Framework Sales Agreement was expired on
31 December 2023. Foreseeing the continual demand for
the Group’s food and beverages products from UPE Group,
on 8 March 2023, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2023 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
certain beverage, instant noodles and bakery products and
such other products as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2026 (both days inclusive). The terms
and conditions of the 2023 Framework Sales Agreement
(including the pricing policies) are substantially similar to those
of the 2020 Framework Sales Agreement. Further details of
the 2023 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 March 2023.

Framework Purchase Agreements dated 25 March
2020 and 8 March 2023

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement (‘2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase or procure members of the Group to
agree to purchase, on a non-exclusive basis, from UPE Group
certain raw materials, packaging materials, finished goods
and such other goods as may be agreed in writing by the
Group and UPE Group and/or their respective members from
time to time for a fixed term of three years from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive). The pricing
basis and the other terms of the purchase transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in the ordinary course of
business on normal commercial terms, negotiated on arm'’s
length basis between the parties thereto and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to the Group by independent third parties
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 25 March 2020
and 22 May 2020 and the circular of the Company dated
7 May 2020.
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(iii)

The 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement was expired on
31 December 2023. Foreseeing the continual demand for
the raw materials and other goods by the Group, on 8 March
2023, the Company entered into a framework purchase
agreement (the “2023 Framework Purchase Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase or
procure the purchase of, on a non-exclusive basis, from UPE
Group certain raw materials, packaging materials, finished
goods and such other goods as may be agreed by the Group
and UPE Group for a fixed term of three years from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2026 (both days inclusive). The terms
and conditions of the 2023 Framework Purchase Agreement
(including the pricing policies) are substantially similar to those
of the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement. Further details
of the 2023 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 8 March 2023
and 2 June 2023 and the Circular of the Company dated 9
May 2023.

Framework Logistics Service Agreements dated 25
March 2020 and 6 March 2024

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement (the “2020 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE
agreed to provide or procure members of UPE Group to
agree to provide, on a non-exclusive basis, to the Group
transportation and logistics services (including, but not
limited to, storage services, design of, and the provision of
technical support service to, logistics systems) and such
other logistics-related ancillary and support services as may
be agreed in writing by the Group and UPE Group and/or
their respective members from time to time for a fixed term
of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
(both days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other terms
of the transactions contemplated under the 2020 Framework
Logistics Service Agreement shall be subject to the terms
and conditions contained therein and determined in the
ordinary course of business on normal commercial terms,
negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties thereto
and determined in accordance with the internal control
procedures of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no
less favourable to the Group than those offered by suppliers
who are third party independent of the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the 2020
Framework Logistics Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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The 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement was
expired on 31 December 2023. In view of the forecasted
business needs of the Group, on 6 March 2024, the
Company entered into the 2024 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement (the “2024 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE agreed to
provide and procure members of UPE Group to provide, on
a non-exclusive basis, certain transportation and logistics
services (including but not limited to storage services,
design of, and the provision of technical support service to,
logistics systems) and such other logistics-related ancillary
and support services as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group and/or their respective members in writing from
time to time to the Group for a fixed term from 6 March
2024 to 31 December 2026 (both days inclusive). The terms
and conditions of the 2024 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement (including the pricing policies) are substantially
similar to those of the 2020 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement. Further details of the 2024 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 6 March 2024 and 21 March 2024.
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(iv)

Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
dated 25 March 2020 and 8 March 2023

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement (the “2020 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide and procure
members of the Group to agree to provide, on a non-
exclusive basis, to UPE Group technical support and
management services (including but not limited to the human
resources management services) and such other technical
support services as may be agreed in writing by the Group
and UPE Group from time to time for a fixed term of three
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both
days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other terms of
the transactions contemplated under the 2020 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement shall be subject to
the terms and conditions contained therein and determined
in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial
terms, negotiated on arm’s length basis and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties by the Group
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2020 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 March 2020.

The 2020 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
was expired on 31 December 2023. In view of the continual
demand from UPE Group of the Group'’s technical support
services, on 8 March 2023, the Company entered into a
framework technical support service agreement (the “2023
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide or
procure the provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE
Group technical support and management services (including,
but not limited to, the human resources management
services and such other technical support services as may
be agreed by the Group and UPE Group) for a fixed term
of three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026
(both days inclusive). The terms and conditions of the 2023
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement (including
the pricing policies) are substantially similar to those of the
2020 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement.
Further details of the 2023 Framework Technical Support
Service Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 8 March 2023.
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The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2023
(the “Revised Annual Cap”) as approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company (for 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement) or the annual cap (the “Annual Cap”) as set by
the Company (for 2020 Framework Sales Agreement, 2020
Framework Logistics Service Agreement and 2020 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement) and the total actual
transaction value in respect of each of the 2020 Framework Sales
Agreement, the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement, the 2020
Framework Logistics Service Agreement and the 2020 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement (collectively, the “2020 CCT
Agreements”) for the Year are set out below:

RIETHNEE
x5 2020 FFERAER B % BRRXZEE LR FELIR
Actual Revised
Transaction Annual Cap/
Transaction 2020 CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
ANEBBE&T ANREBBET
(RMB million) (RMB million)
2020 ERIHE & 2020 Framework Sales Agreement
HEIHEBE Total sales value 181.0 300.0
2020 ER IR BE T 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement
RIREEE Total purchase value 5,560.5 7,200.0¢
20205 HEZRYDM AR 75 17 58 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
MR ZEE Total transaction value 0.1 40.0
2020 ERFATZ 1R 2020 Framework Technical Support
AR5 & Service Agreement
B 5EE Total transaction value 49.4 140.0

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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u Due to the increase in the price of raw materials and the expected
business growth of the Group, the aggregate value of the continuing
connected transactions under the 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement for the Year 2023 was expected to be higher than that
as envisaged at the time of entering into of the 2020 Framework
Purchase Agreement, and the initial 2023 Annual Cap was not
sufficient to meet the business needs of the Group. In view of the
aforesaid, on 8 March 2023, the Board resolved to revise the initial
2023 Annual Cap in respect of the 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement, and was approved by independent Shareholders on
2 June 20283. The terms of the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement
remain unchanged and be in full force and effect. Further details
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 March
2023 and 2 June 2023 and the Circular of the Company dated 9 May
2023.

When determining whether the above transactions have been
conducted in accordance with the pricing policies under the
relevant 2020 CCT Agreements, the management of the Company
would obtain sufficient market intelligence to ascertain the relevant
prevailing market rate, payment terms and practices, as well as
the latest market and independent third party information. For
example, the management would review quotations from at least
two independent suppliers or service providers and evaluate
them from a commercial perspective, so as to ensure that the
products or services to be procured from the UPE Group are of
comparable prices for such products or services being offered by
the independent third parties of the same period. Where there are
no sufficient comparable transactions available, the prices of such
products or services would be determined on arm’s length basis
with reference to historical prices and cost analysis. Likewise, the
management would also determine the prices of the products or
services to be provided to the UPE Group by reviewing market
information to ensure that they are of comparable prices for such
products or services being offered to independent third parties by
the Group.
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The internal audit team of the Company has reviewed the
continuing connected transactions based on the relevant
documentations and internal control procedures and have provided
findings to the independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors consider that the
methods and procedures established by the Company were
sufficient and effective to ensure that the transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial to the
interests of the Company and its minority shareholders, and that
appropriate internal control procedures were in place. In the opinion
of the independent non-executive Directors, the above transactions
conducted pursuant to the 2020 CCT Agreements were carried
out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms and were in accordance with the relevant
2020 CCT Agreements and the pricing policies of the Company,
and on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Group and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding the
continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that:

— the continuing connected transactions as disclosed above
have not been approved by the Board;

—  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, such transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

—  the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

— the transaction amount of the continuing connected
transactions as disclosed above have exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company or approved by the independent
Shareholders (as the case may be).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 33(b) and Note
33(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that the UPE Group has not breached any of the terms
of the non-competition deed entered into between the Company
and UPE on 23 November 2007.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five largest
customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue.
In addition, The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 46.1% of the Group’s total purchases while the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 24.5% of
the Group’s total purchases.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, who is ()
a Director and (ji) the chairman and group chief strategy officer of
UPE, a substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
SFO), held an insignificant shareholding interest of approximately
1.72% in UPE.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business, financial
key performance indicators and performance and indication of
future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
Those discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

There are a number of factors which may affect the results and
business operations of the Group, some of which are inherent
to beverages and instant noodles business and some are from
external sources. Major risks are summarized below.

()  Consumer preferences risk

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. The Company’s failure to
anticipate, identify or react to the changes in consumer
preferences could result in reduced demand for the Group’s
products, which would, in turn, lead to excessive inventory
levels and lower sales volume. The Group will continuously
introduce new products throughout the seasons and will
further shorten the product development cycle in order to
improve our portfolio of products to satisfy consumers’
changing preferences.

(i)  Competition risk

The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to
a significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish
its products from those of the Group’s competitors by
providing high quality products at reasonable prices that
appeal to consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s
competitors have varying abilities to withstand changes in
market conditions. Some of the competitors, which have
larger market shares in the PRC with respect to beverages
or instant noodles products, have operated their respective
businesses longer than the Group has and have wider
geographical coverage for their products and/or stronger
distribution networks in the PRC, therefore they may have
substantially greater financial and other resources than the
Group has and may have better established in the market.
Should the Group’s competitors manage to seize a larger
market share, the Group’s sales volume may be adversely
affected. To manage competition risks, the Group will
continue to conduct research and development on new
technology, introduce new products as well as maintain a high
level of quality of its existing products for a better competitive
edge.
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(i)

(iv)

Economy and financial markets risk

The food and beverage industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level
of disposable income, which translated into lower demand
for the Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of
operations. As a result, the global and local economies,
including the PRC economy, could continue to experience
significant volatility. Significant volatility or another downturn
in the PRC and global economy in the future could have an
adverse effect on the food and beverage industry in the PRC
and the demand for the Group’s products, which may affect
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition. With a relatively stable cash flow in the food and
beverage industry, the Group will continue to launch new
products to boost revenue, strictly control costs, and maintain
a stable and appropriate capital structure to reduce the
impact from global economic and financial market volatility.

Supply chain risk

All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s food products and a large percentage of packaging
materials used in the production of its beverage products
are supplied by independent third parties or related party
suppliers. In the event these independent third parties or
related party suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot
meet the Group’s demand for such packaging materials, or
the Group is unable to reach agreement upon reasonable
terms with them in relation to such continued supply, the
Group may be unable to find a comparable substitute supplier
of packaging materials, which in turn may lead to delay in the
delivery of its products to customers. Such delivery delay may
affect the Group’s results of operations. The Group strives to
maintain stable and cooperative relationships with suppliers
in respect of the procurement of essential raw materials
and to develop long-term strategic partnerships as well as
productivity strategies with three or more suppliers to reduce
the risk on being over dependent on a single supplier.
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(v)  Purchase Risk

Most of the raw materials and packaging used in our
beverage and food business are commodities that may
experience price volatility caused by external conditions such
as commodity markets fluctuations and currency fluctuations.
Unexpected commodity price increase which may result
in increase in costs and therefore causes an impact on
operating income. To manage purchase risks, the Group will
continuously review the deviation of the purchase unit price
every month, monitor the real-time market information and
adjust the purchase strategy from time to time.

Key Relationships

The Group’s success also relies on the support from its key
relationships with employees, suppliers, distributors and customers.

() Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages and
food products in the PRC, the Group has been recruiting
talented professionals from time to time. In respect of
the new low-level staff, the Group devotes considerable
resources in staff training and monitor their development
and progress in a timely manner in order to ensure the
employees possess the skills and capabilities to fulfill the
relevant job requirements. Meanwhile, the Group recognises
the value of its key personnel in maintaining team morale and
competitiveness. To promote career advancement and to
attract qualified candidates to join the Group, the Group fill in
vacant positions from time to time through internal promotion
and/or external recruitment with competitive remuneration. On
the other hand, the Group ensures the continuity of the senior
management by grooming management talents by offering
continuous internal training, appropriate job rotation as well as
external on-the-job training.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they
understand the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. To
achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
suppliers, the Group carefully selects suppliers in conformity
with the food safety requirements of “three lines of defense”
(i.e qualification audits, on-site evaluation and food safety
testing), through inviting quotations from suppliers to be
procured to the extent that those products are of comparable
nature, quality, quantity and condition via open tender.

Distributors

The Group sells products to end customers through third-
party distributors. The Group works with distributors like
business partners with the same interest, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
growth. The Group requires distributors and sub-distributors
to comply with its policies, including but not limited to
retail selling price, promotional activities and standardised
application of the Group’s system.

Customers

The Group is committed to offer tasty, differentiated and
trendy products to customers. The Group provides safe,
healthy and delicious beverages and instant noodles to
consumers. The Group also stays connected with customers
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preference
through various channels including the Company’s website,
customer hotlines, marketing promotion and social media.
In the instant noodles and beverages industry, the Group’s
vast number of customers are from modern channels
(including but not limited to food and groceries stores, stalls
and department stores) which are scattered and separated.
Therefore, the Group does not have major customers which
account for a significant part of the Company’s revenue. The
credit terms and subsequent settlement for customers are
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Analysis of operating
efficiency” in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
31 December 2018 to enhance the transparency of the Company
and to facilitate its shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and investors
to make informed investment decisions relating to the Company.

According to the Dividend Policy, in addition to final dividends, the
Company may declare interim dividends or special dividends to the
Shareholders from time to time.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board will take into account, inter alia, the Group’s
general financial position, current and future operations, working
capital requirements, liquidity position and any other factors it may
deem relevant from time to time. Any payment of the dividend by
the Company is also subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association.

Subject to the factors set out above, the final dividends to be
declared and paid by the Company shall be not less than 20%
of the Group’s audited consolidated profit attributable to the
Shareholders in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time
and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or that the Company is
obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from time to time.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC while the shares of the Company are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by the respective
laws and regulations of the PRC and Hong Kong. During the Year
and as at the date of this annual report, we have complied with
the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and Hong Kong that
have significant impact on the Group. In particular, as a food and
beverage manufacturer, the Group’s operations are regulated by
the applicable food safety and environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the year under review, the Group
did not have any material non- compliance with such laws and
regulations.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

To support environmental protection, the Group initiates and
strives to minimize environmental impact by using water-saving
facilities, conserving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other resources. The Group also requires factories
of an original equipment manufacturer (OEM) to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary environmental-related permission and
approval from the PRC regulators. A further discussion of the
environmental policies of the Group is contained in the Corporate
Social Responsibility Report of the Company.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

The discussion of future development of the Company business
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

6 March 2024
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Dlrectors Profile

Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (% %), aged 67, is the chairman and
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director and/
or the chairman of the board of directors of most of the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in September 1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He has over 38 years
of experience in the food and beverage industry and is currently
the chairman of President Chain Store Corporation (4% —#874
A ABR/AST), Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (i—EX£RBRMNERAD
&)), TTET Union Corporation (K&t @5 BRAR), Prince
Housing & Development Corp. (K F R ZRH BRAE) and
ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. (BE®ERHBREAFD), all of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also
the director of Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. (fB523%1T
BRI BFR/AT), a company listed on the Taipei Exchange. He is
also the chairman and group chief strategy officer of Uni-President
Enterprises Corporation (#i— 12 KRMBERAE) (“UPE"),
a substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)), and the director of 101 companies associated with UPE
and its subsidiaries. Mr. Lo holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of California, Los Angeles, the
U.S.A. His spouse is Mrs. Shiow-Ling Kao, a director of UPE.

Mr. LIU Xinhua (Z#7%E), aged 53, is the president of the Group
and the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd. (#—1b2 (FE) LEBRLQE) (“‘Uni-President
China Investments”). He has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. He has
over 30 years of experience in strategic marketing in the food and
beverage industry. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 1994 and since
then has been involved in sales and marketing for the Group. He
acted as the sales general manager for the Sichuan province of
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (B&B#— ¥ &
Sa A BR/AE)) from November 2006 until August 2008. From August
2008 to September 2014, he acted as the general manager of the
food business department of Uni-President China Investments.
From October 2014 until June 2016, he acted as a general
manager of the marketing planning office and convener of strategic
marketing committee of Uni-President China Investments. Mr. Liu
holds a doctoral degree in business management from Southwest
Jiaotong University (F8 328 A2 in the PRC.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (Bf5288), aged 66, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Su joined the Group in August 2007.
He joined UPE Group in August 2000. He is currently the president
of President International Development Corp. and a director of
President Chain Store Corporation (4 —i&B & B R/AS) and
ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. (8&#[ERNBIRAE), all of which
are members of UPE Group and are listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation. Mr. Su is also a director of 13 members of
UPE Group. He has over 38 years of experience in banking and
financial management. Before joining UPE Group, he was the vice-
president of the Taipei branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial
specialist of Seibu Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and
the senior specialist of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in
1990. Mr. Su holds a master of business administration degree
from the University of lowa, the U.S.A..

Ms. CHIEN Chi-Lin (82 E#4), aged 61, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Ms. Chien joined the Group in March 2023.
She has over 26 years of experience in the financial field. She
is currently a director of Uni-President Enterprise Social Welfare
Charity Foundation* (i — XM ERAESETEEEF). Ms.
Chien was a director of the private banking department of UBS AG,
Hong Kong Branch from April 2005 to December 2014. Ms. Chien
was a deputy director in S.G. Warburg Securities, Taiwan Branch
office* (EEEHEEH AT from July 1990 to April 2005. Ms.
Chien obtained a Bachelor's degree in Economics from National
Taiwan University. Ms. Chien also holds a certification of the trust
professional assessment awarded by the Trust Association of the
Republic of China (FERBETEBERETD).

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (BRE¥E) , aged 55, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in May 2011 as the
chief financial officer of the Group and is also a director and/or
supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in
the PRC. He is also the chief financial officer of UPE. Mr. Chen
worked in UPE from November 1997 to April 2011. He was
appointed as an executive director of the Company between
August 2013 and June 2017. He is currently a director or a
supervisor of 5 wholly-owned subsidiaries/joint ventures of the
Group. Mr. Chen is also a director of 5 members of UPE Group
and a director of President Securities Corp. which is listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He has over 27 years of
experience in financial management. Mr. Chen holds a master’s
degree in business administration from University of Strathclyde in
the United Kingdom.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (BRE2{®), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Chen has over 41 years of experience in the banking and
financial industry. He is currently an independent director of Lion
Travel Services Co., Ltd., a director of Taiwan Cement Ltd., and an
independent director of USI Corporation. Prior to that, Mr. Chen
was the chairman of Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank during the
period from October 2016 to June 2023, an independent director
of China Telecom Corporation from March 2012 to July 2019, the
president of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. (North Asia and
Greater China regions) between 2005 and 2012, the president
of Chinatrust Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (now known as CTBC
Financial Holding Co., Ltd) in 2005, the chairman of Chinatrust
Securities Co., Ltd. between 2003 and 2005, the country officer
and country head of the corporate bank in Taiwan of Citigroup
between 2001 and 2003 and the regional head of financial markets
in Asia Pacific of Citigroup between 1998 and 2001. He gained
extensive financial management experience from various positions
held with finance related companies and has acquired general
knowledge about the food and beverage industry through dealing
with clients in such industry.

Mr. Chen holds his MBA degree from University of Missouri, the
U.S.A. and BA degree from National Chengchi University, Taiwan.
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Mr. CHEN Johnny (BREZR), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Chen Johnny joined the management of Zurich Insurance
Group (“Zurich”) in 2005. He worked in Zurich from March 2005
to February 2015 in multiple senior managerial roles in the Asia-
Pacific region. His last position in Zurich was the chairman of
the life and general insurance business in China. Prior to joining
Zurich, Mr. Chen Johnny was an executive member of the Greater-
China Management Board and the Operating Committee of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), as well as a managing partner of
PwC'’s Beijing office.

Mr. Chen Johnny is also an independent non-executive director of
Alibaba Pictures Group Limited (stock code: 1060) and China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 308),
all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chen Johnny was the chairman of Convoy Global Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1019) (“Convoy”) from December 2017 to
March 2021, during which, he was also the executive director of
Convoy from December 2017 to December 2020 and had been re-
designated as an non-executive director of Convoy from January
2021 to March 2021. From February 2009 to May 2023, he was
an independent non-executive director of Stella International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny holds a Master of
Science Degree in Accounting from the University of Rhode Island
and a Bachelor Degree of Accounting from the Johnson & Wales
University and is a U.S. certified public accountant.
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Dr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony GE{Z3£), aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of Asialink
Capital Limited and also an independent non-executive director
of Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited (stock code: 563),
China Dili Group (formerly known as Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited) (stock code: 1387), CITIC Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1205), China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (stock code: 1062), Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882), Neo-Neon Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1868), Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (stock code: 981) and Haitong Securities
Co., Ltd.* (stock code: 6837). Dr. Fan is also currently a non-
executive director of Hilong Holding Limited (stock code: 1623).
Dr. Fan had been the independent non-executive director of Tenfu
(Cayman) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6868) (“Tenfu”)
since August 2011 and was re-designated as an executive director
of Tenfu in May 2021. Dr. Fan was an independent non-executive
director of Raymond Industrial Limited (stock code: 229) from
December 1994 to May 2021. All of the said companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Dr. Fan holds a master’s
degree in business administration from the U.S.A. and a PhD
degree in Economics.

Mr. LO Peter (BRE£), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in November
2007. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of
Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 538), and from March
2011 to June 2018, he was the chairman and an executive director
of China Outfitters Holdings Limited (stock code: 1146), both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo
has over 30 years of experience in the business field and holds a
bachelor’s degree in mathematical economics and econometrics
from the London School of Economics and Political Science, the
United Kingdom.

*  For identification purpose only
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2)¥%), aged 53, was appointed as the
president of the Group since 1 July 2016 and an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. Mr. Liu's
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Directors’
Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. LIU, Tzu-Chiang (81 ¥3%), aged 54, has acted as the chief
financial officer of the Group since 1 July 2017. He also serves as
the deputy general manager and the chief financial officer of the
Group from 1 January 2024. Mr. Liu also acts as a supervisor of
certain of the Group’s wholly owned subsidiaries in the PRC. Mr.
Liu has over 30 years of experience in financial management. Mr.
Liu joined the Group in June 1998. He served as the manager and
supervisor of the finance department at Uni-President Enterprises
(Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd. GiisB#— =B MmARA =), Nanchang
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BE#HK—TEBRELRT),
Shenyang President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (B84 —t2BRA
&]), Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (B & & — 12
B AR/AT)and Zhengzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (ZF
M — 1> ZEHEAF) between June 1998 and September 2014,
all being the subsidiaries of the Group. From August 2007 to May
2012, he was also the administrative director of the Group in the
Northeast region and Southwest region of the PRC. From October
2014 to June 2017, he was the chief accountant of the Group.
From July 1994 to April 1998, Mr. Liu had served in UPE Group.
Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in business administration from
National Cheng Kung University, Taiwan.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (#:& &), aged 47, joined the Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (ELL#KE—TE2EBREREA
&J) from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed
as the general manager of the bottled water business of the
Group since October 2006. He has been a general manager of the
combined drinks business of the Group since October 2014. He
has been a general manager of the combined drinks business of
the Group since October 2014. He was a general manager of the
marketing planning office of the Group from August 2021. From
1 January 2024, he serves as the deputy general manager of the
Group and concurrently as the general manager of the marketing
planning office and the tea business group. He has more than 25
years of experience in the food and beverages industry and holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime University,
the PRC.
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Senior Management’s Profile

Mr. HUANG, Wei (ZF#), aged 42, joined the Group in June
2004. From June 2006 to October 2009, he was responsible for
the planning and brand marketing of the food product business.
From 2010 to 2013, he served as the manager of the marketing
department at Beijing President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (3t
R#FE—BHEAMRAT) and Kunshan President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (EW#A—BMABEMRAE). From 2013 to 2014, he was
responsible for brand management of the Instant Food Department
of the Group. From 2014 to 2016, he was employed as the
general manager of the E-commerce Department of the Group
and concurrently served as the strategic development director
of the marketing strategy office. Since September 2017, he has
been the general manager of the business unit of the Life and
Food Business Department and the E-commerce Department of
the Group. He is currently the general manager of the Life and
Food Business Department. Mr. Huang holds a master degree in
business administration (MBA) from the School of Management,
Fudan University, the PRC.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (3Rf%), aged 55, joined the Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(FEE#m—1E¥AIR/AT]), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. (B4 — 1B R/A5F)and Wuhan President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd. (RZ#—1TX2B8RAEMRLT). In January
2010, Mr. Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food
Department of the Group and was promoted to the position
of General Manager in October 2014. Mr. Zhang has over 29
years working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang holds
a bachelor’s degree of engineering from the Hankou College of
Huazhong Institute of Technology of the PRC (now renamed as
Huazhong University of Science and Technology) and a master’s
degree in EMBA from Wuhan University, the PRC.
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Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen (Bf¥%%F), aged 52, joined Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. (BMN#—E AR A E]), a subsidiary
of the Group, in February 2009 and was responsible for the
management of marketing functions of Guangzhou President
Enterprises Corp. (BMN#— 122 FERAF) and Wuhan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (RE#—TEXBREBRAT),
subsidiaries of the Group, prior to October 2011. She was re-
designated as the deputy general manager of the head office of the
Group’s tea business in October 2011 She served as the general
manager of the tea business department in July 2013, and was
re-designated as the general manager of the ice and green tea
business department under the tea business group of the Group
in September 2023. She has 28 years of experience in the food
and fast moving consumer goods industries. Before joining the
Group, she engaged in marketing in various companies such as
Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan Branch, Ting Hsin International Group (T8
HEIFREE) and YFY Gk ZER) . In 2006, she started to work in the
Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan Foods Corporation (&
2BEHmIERMABIRAT)of Ting Hsin International Group (JBH
il PR £ ) and has since gained 19 years of work experience in the
Mainland China. Ms. Chen holds both master’s degree in nutrition
and health sciences from Taipei Medical University in Taiwan and
EMBA (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s National Chung Hsing University.

Mr. ZHAO Jinhui (88 £ #8), aged 46, joined the Group in August
1998. From 2001 to 2010, he successively served as the sales,
planning supervisor and marketing manager of Kunshan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. and Hefei President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd., and had been re-designated to the Marketing Planning
Supervisor of the Combined Drinks Business of the Group
in October 2014. He served as the general manager of the
combined drinks business department in August 2021, and was
re-designated as the general manager of the Assam business
department under the tea business group of the Group in
September 2023. He has 25 years of work experience in the food
and beverage industry and holds a university degree from Ludong
University (formerly Yantai Teachers College).
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries as the “Group”) is committed to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance practices and procedures and
appreciates that good corporate governance is crucial to enhance
investors’ confidence in the Company. In the opinion of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the
Company has complied with all code provisions of the corporate
governance code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out
in Appendix C1 (formerly known as Appendix 14) to the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) then in
force during the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Ms. Chien Chi-Lin (appointed on 8 March 2023)
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

As at the date of this annual report, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship) exist amongst
the Directors. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Profile” in this Annual Report. In addition,
an updated list of Directors of the Company with their roles and
functions is available on our website and that of the Stock Exchange.

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance were
arranged for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code, any new Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at the first
general meeting of the Company after the appointment.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors’ remunerations are determined with reference to
the Director Nomination Policy (as defined below) and the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below), the Directors’ qualifications,
duties, responsibilities and experiences, and the prevailing market
conditions.

On 8 March 2023, Ms. Chien Chi-Lin (“Ms. Chien”) was appointed
as a non-executive Director. Ms. Chien was appointed before Rule
3.09D of the Listing Rules becoming effective, therefore, such rule
was not applicable to the appointment of Ms. Chien.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment and
strategic decisions, maintaining the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring the
performance of the Group. There are currently four committees
established under the Board, being the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the investment, strategy and development
committee (the “Investment, Strategy and Development
Each committee has its terms of reference and
reports to the Board regularly.

Committee”).
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The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the president of the Group (“President”),
Mr. Liu Xinhua. The roles of the chairman of the Company (the
“Chairman”) and the President are performed by separate persons.
The Chairman, Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, is responsible for ensuring that
the Directors perform their duties properly and ensuring discussions
on material matters take place on a timely basis. The power and
authority to carry out day-to-day operations and implementation of
the strategies and directions set by the Board are delegated to the
management team of the Company (the “Management”) which is
led by the President. The Management assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operation of the Group.

Continuing updates in relation to the obligations of the Company
and the Directors under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on the applicable ordinances,
rules and regulations are provided to Directors from time to time.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year complied with the
requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of the minimum required number of independent non-
executive Directors which shall be at least one-third of the Board
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Pursuant to the Code Provision B.2.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix C1 (formerly known as Appendix 14)
to the Listing Rules, if an independent non-executive Director has
served the Company for more than nine years, such Director’s
further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders of the Company. Each of Mr. Chen
Sun-Te, Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter has served as
the independent non-executive Directors for more than nine years
since 2016. The re-election of Mr. Chen Sun- Te was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the AGM held on 21 May 2021
and the re-election of each of Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo
Peter was approved by the shareholders of the Company under
separate resolutions at the AGM held on 27 May 2022.
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The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered
that each of the independent non-executive Directors, with a
diverse business and professional background as well as his in-
depth understanding of the Company’s operations and business,
have brought his valuable experience to the Board and, alongside
the other independent non-executive Directors, contributed to
ensuring that the interests of the Company’s shareholders were
taken into account and that relevant issues were subject to
objective and dispassionate consideration by the Board.

By virtue of the above, the Board considers that all four
independent non-executive Directors as at the date of this report,
namely, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Dr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter are independent having regard to the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function including (i) developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance, (ii)
reviewing and monitoring training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company,
(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements and (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees
of the Group and the Directors. During the Year, the Board reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and the disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with and they are also entitled to
have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they
are able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties
and responsibilities.
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SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
trainings for the Directors. All Directors have been given relevant
guideline materials regarding the roles, duties and responsibilities
of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of the Group.
They have also been updated on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. A procedure has been approved by the
Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at
the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that they have
complied with Code Provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code on continuous professional training. During the Year, all of the
Directors have participated in continuous professional development
in connection with their roles, duties and responsibilities in the
Company by attending seminars, in-house briefings, conferences,
forums, online trainings and/or reading materials on the following
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each
Director has provided relevant records of training to the Company
and is summarised as follows.

FREEZINER (15D
Topics on training covered (Note)

BEREE (ZFE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) A B, C
RIS HEARIE) Mr. Liu Xinhua (President) A B, C
IR [ &8 5 &= Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui A B, C
BWEML LT Ms. Chien Chi-Lin A B
BRIt Mr. Su Tsung-Ming A B
FRED(EfL 4 Mr. Chen Sun-Te A B
RE 7 o Mr. Chen Johnny A B
BlERLT Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony A B
REE5LE Mr. Lo Peter A B
M - Note:

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

(A)  Corporate governance/regulatory

(B)  Finance

(C)  Industry-specific
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Board meetings were held at regular intervals. During the Year,
the Board has held four board meetings for, among other matters,
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance
of the Company; reviewing and approving non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year; reviewing and
approving the disclosures in the interim and annual reports and
the environmental, social and governance report with regards to
the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and Corporate
Governance Code; reviewing the Company’s progress in
implementing the corporate governance requirements as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code; making recommendation of
the final dividends for Shareholders’ approval at the next annual
general meeting of the Company; and considering and approving
the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance of individual Board members at the Board and
Board committees meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in the table below:

HE/ BITEERY (1)
Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

EE ERZEE REZEE HWEEE REEHEK
] ] ] 2% ZRZE9EE RFEBEAET RERHAS
Investment,
Strategy and
Audit Nomination Remuneration  Development Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General General
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
BEERE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 4/4 - 2/2 2/2 2/2 1 1
AmELL Mr. Liu Xinhua 4/4 - - - 2/2 11 11
FRITEE Non-executive Directors
BRENELE Mr. Chen Kuo Hui 4/4 - - - 2/2 11 11
BEHM L Ms. Chien Chi-Lin 3/3 2/2 - - - 1/1 1/1
BR#LE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 4/4 3/3 - - 2/2 11 11
BUHHTEE  Independent Non-executive Directors
RERKE Mr. Chen Johnny 2/4 1/3 0/2 - 1/2 11 11
BREEL L Mr. Chen Sun-Te 4/4 3/3 - 2/2 2/2 11 11
BLEREL Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 4/4 3/3 - 2/2 2/2 11 11
BEELE Mr. Lo Peter 4/4 3/3 2/2 - 212 on on
M - Note:
1. REFELFERHL2BEESAEMAANL 1. Attendances during the Year were stated by reference to the number

TEZORHEIIR-
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of meetings held during the Directors’ respective tenures.
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In addition, in compliance with code provision C.2.7 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Chairman of the Board held
an annual meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of the other Directors in December 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
comprised Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Chen
Sun-Te and Mr. Lo Peter, being independent non- executive
Directors and Ms. Chien Chi-Lin and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, being
non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Dr. Fan
Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the
respective website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the interim and annual financial statements and the effectiveness
of the internal control practices of the Group. Save for Mr. Chen
Johnny, all other members of the Audit Committee attended all
of the meetings held during the Year. A summary of the work
performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the interim and annual financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 and for the Year respectively;

(i) met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and

findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;
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(i) reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control

systems and the internal audit function of the Group;

(iv) approved the audit plan for the year ending 31 December
2024;

(v)  reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors;

(vi)  reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee; and

(viij approved an internal pre-approval policy of the Group for
non-audit services of the external auditors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) comprised two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Johnny and Mr. Lo Peter; and
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Peter.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individuals nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong and the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings.
Save for Mr. Chen Johnny, all other members of the Nomination
Committee attended all of the meetings held during the Year. A
summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed the size, composition and structure of the Board;
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(i)  assessed and reviewed the independence of each of the
independent non-executive Directors and consideration was
given to independent non-executive Directors who have
served on the Board for more than nine years;

(i)  reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee;

(iv)  reviewed the board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and director nomination policy of the
Company (the “Director Nomination Policy”);

(v)  reviewed the policy in relation to independent views available
to the Board (the “Policy in relation to Independent Views
Available to the Board”).

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company needs to cope with the
business demand, grasp opportunities, tackle challenges and/or to
comply with the applicable laws and regulations. The Nomination
Committee has adopted the Director Nomination Policy since
13 December 2018, which serves to improve the transparency of
the process and criteria in selecting and recommending candidates
as Directors for the Board’s approval from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The Directors and the
Nomination Committee will consider and nominate candidates,
according to the Director Nomination Policy based on objective
criteria with due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in
the Board Diversity Policy, to the Board for approval. In identifying
individuals and making recommendations for nominations, the
Nomination Committee considers whether such individuals have
the appropriate qualifications, abilities and perspectives that would
enable them to effectively fulfil their roles and responsibilities as
Directors. The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee (as
further set out in its terms of reference) form the key part under the
Director Nomination Policy.
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Where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, his/her independence will be assessed
in accordance with, among others, the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as
may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/she
has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise for filing the office of an
independent non-executive Director as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (as amended on 27
May 2022) which aims to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
composition.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, in order to achieve a diversity of
perspectives, skills and experience within the Board, a number of
factors will be considered when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, skills, professional experience, regional and
industry experience. In forming its perspectives on Board diversity,
the Company will also take into account its own business model
and specific needs from time to time.

The Board considers that gender diversity is vital in order to achieve
a diverse Board composition. To achieve gender diversity within the
Board, the Board’s objective is to have at least 1 female director
in its composition. Immediately after the appointment of Ms. Chien
as a non-executive Director on 8 March 2023, out of the 9 Board
members, 8 of them are male and 1 of them is a female.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 33,539
employees (including senior management). The following sets out
the gender distribution in the workforce of the Group:

Percentage

of the total

Number of workforce of

¥ B 893 BV e B Employment by gender employees the Group
EEEREET

EEHE MY B DL

B Male 19,197 57.2%
Z Female 14,342 42.8%
BEBEH Total number of employees 33,539 100%
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In addition, the composition, experience and balance of skills
on the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains core members with long-standing knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring
fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness, and will propose and recommend any amendments
to the Board Diversity Policy as it thinks fit to the Board for
consideration and approval. Please refer to the Company’s website
for details of the Board Diversity Policy.

The names of the current Directors and their biographies (including
their roles as well as their skills and experiences) are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.
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POLICY IN RELATION TO INDEPENDENT
VIEWS AVAILABLE TO THE BOARD

The Board adopted the Policy in relation to Independent Views
Available to the Board which aims to ensure independent views are
available to the Board of the Company.

The Policy in relation to Independent Views Available to the
Board also served as a guideline on the requirements in relation
to independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors shall satisfy the independence criteria under
the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange. In this connection, each
independent non-executive Director is required to confirm in writing
to the Company and the Stock Exchange his/her independence
upon his/her appointment as a director of the Company with
reference to the independence criteria in the Listing Rules. Each
independent non-executive Director is also required to inform the
Company and the Stock Exchange as soon as practicable if there
is any subsequent change of circumstances which may affect his/
her independence and must provide an annual confirmation of
his/her independence to the Company. An annual review shall be
conducted by the Company to assess the continuing independence
of independent non-executive Directors, with attention to ensuring
that they remain independent in character and judgement, and
continue to present an objective and constructive challenge to the
assumptions and viewpoints presented by the management and
the Board.

The implementation and the effectiveness of the Policy in relation to

Independent Views Available to the Board are subject to review by
the Board on an annual basis.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te
and Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony; and one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Chen Sun-Te throughout the Year.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management, to determine on behalf of the Board the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
and to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available for inspection upon request
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
and on the respective website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
Year. Al members of the Remuneration Committee attended the
meetings during the Year. A summary of work performed by the
Remuneration Committee is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the non-executive Directors;

(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the independent non-executive

Directors;

(iiy  reviewed the current remuneration structure/package of both
the Directors and the senior management of the Company;

(iv) assessed the performance of senior management of the
Group; and

(v) reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the range of remuneration payable to the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group is
set out below:

AZ

Number of

HENEEE Remuneration range persons
AR #1,000,000 7t E AR #1,499,9997¢ RMB1,000,000 to RMB1,499,999 2

AE#1,500,000 75 £ A K #2,000,00070
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RMB1,500,000 to RMB2,000,000

INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee comprised Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr. Liu Xinhua, being
executive Directors, Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
being non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Chen
Johnny, Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, being
independent non-executive Directors. The Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The primary functions of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee are to review the investment and development plans
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong.

The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held two
meetings during the Year. Save for Mr. Chen Johnny, all other
members of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
attended all of the meetings held during the Year.

DIRECTORS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC”), are independent and therefore
have recommended the Board to re-appoint PwC as the external
auditors of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming AGM.

During the Year, the fees paid or payable by the Group to PwC in
respect of the audit and non-audit services rendered to the Group
amounted to RMB5.5 million and RMBO0.6 million respectively.
The non-audit services represent (i) environmental, social and
governance report consulting service; and (i) other business
solutions consulting services rendered to the Group by PwC.

The following table sets out a reconciliation of the auditors’
remunerations as disclosed above and in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

ARMETF T
RMB’000
AEBBNRENE I AENZEEME S Auditor's remuneration paid or payable by the
Group to PwC 5,450
AEBENREMNZEAERNEATRM Auditors’ remunerations paid or payable by the
BHAE B IZRFEHINEZEET B Group to external auditors (other than PwC)
B LGN BIAZ BEM BN & who provided local statutory audits
to subsidiaries of the Group 1,844
ZE BN S 4858 (4R & ISR =M 516 Total auditors’ remunerations (as disclosed in
Frif &) Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements) 7,294

XEE UEMRBEIRKBERAREFR
RHZIFEZEBARB AT ERTHM -

non-audit related service to the Company during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C38 (formerly known as Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules to regulate
the Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have fully
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the code for securities
dealing adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than
the Model Code, when dealing in the Company’s shares.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and is designed to help the Group to identify and manage
significant risks to achieve the Group’s overall business objectives,
determine the Group’s risk profile, oversee risk management
framework structure, review key risks and mitigation strategies
and to ensure risk management effectiveness and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported
by key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-
down approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively
identified, prioritised and properly addressed by key business units
to accomplish the Group’s objectives. The management team
regularly monitors emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based internal audit
plan and periodically assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk assurance
purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and control framework.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained and
applicable legislation and regulations are complied with. During the
Year, through discussions with the management, the internal audit
team and external auditors and with reference to a report submitted
by the internal audit team, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system in various perspectives, including,
among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each
review covers a whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board, the guidance of the Audit Committee
and co-ordination with the external auditors. It regularly reports
to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and
recommendations on internal control. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than to eliminate risks
of failure in the Group’s operational systems and to achieve the
Group’s business objectives.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
During the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
considers them effective and adequate. Based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied
with the present risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and considers them effective and adequate. During the
Year and as at the date of this annual report, nothing has been
found which requires substantial improvement.
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The Company adopted a policy for the Directors, senior
management and other employees of the Group on disclosure of
inside information to ensure that inside information is handled and
disseminated properly. During the Year, the Company regarded
information of an event as inside information if such event might
impact the price or trading volume of the shares of the Company.
Should public disclosure of inside information be required,
announcements in relation to inside information, being approved
by the executive Directors under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time, would be published by the Company as soon
as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10
of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions (as
defined under the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO”).

The Group has also adopted an internal policy for certain
employees who, because of their office in the Company, may from
time to time encounter inside information (as defined in the SFO).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates
with the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following
ways: (i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general
meeting(s) (the “EGM”), if any, which may be convened for
specific purpose and provide opportunities for the shareholders
of the Company to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules which provide
updated information of the Group on the website of the Stock
Exchange at “http://www.hkexnews.hk”; and (iii) the provision
of the latest information of the Group and, if appropriate,
press releases of the Company at the Company’s website at
“www.uni-president.com.cn”.
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The general meetings of the Company provide opportunities for
constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was held on
2 June 2023. Members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
(Chairman), Mr. Liu Xinhua (President), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui,
Ms. Chien Chi-Lin, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Chen
Sun-Te and Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, were present at the AGM
to answer questions raised by the shareholders of the Company
at the AGM. The Company’s external auditors and the Company
Secretary also attended the aforesaid AGM.

During the Year, an EGM was held on 2 June 2023 for approving,
among others, certain non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company and the estimated maximum
aggregate annual transaction values for the years commencing
1 January 2024 and ending on 31 December 2026, details of
which have been summarised in the section headed “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Report of the Directors and
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 March
2023, 2 June 2023 and 21 March 2024 and the Circular of the
Company dated 9 May 2023. In addition, members of the Board,
namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman), Mr. Liu Xinhua (President),
Mr. Chen KuoHui, Ms. Chien Chi-Lin, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen
Johnny, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, were
present at the EGM to answer questions raised by the independent
shareholders of the Company. The independent financial advisor
appointed for the said continuing connected transactions and the
Company Secretary also attended the aforesaid EGM.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
(1) Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, an EGM may be
convened on the written requisition of any one or more
members of the Company holding together, as at the date of
deposit of the requisition, shares representing not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carry
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. The
written requisition shall be deposited at the principal office of
the Company, specifying the objects of the meeting and the
resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and signed
by the requisitionist(s).
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of the deposit of the requisition
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can be
directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.
Shareholders may send their enquiries in respect of other
matters to the Company Secretarial Office by post to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or
by email to ir@pec.com.cn.

Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at general meetings under
the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”) and
Articles of Association or the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do so, they
may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above and
specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a member of the Company (not being the person to be
proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company did not amend its constitutional
documents.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established and adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy which sets out the provisions with the
objective of providing shareholders of the Company with ready,
equal and timely information on the Company for them to make
informed assessments of the Company’s strategy, operations
and financial performance, and enabling them to engage actively
with the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in
an informed manner. The said policy, which is subject to annual
review by the Board, is available on the website of the Company
at www.uni-president.com.cn. The Company considered that the
implementation of such policy was effective.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
Company’s external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report”
of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the Company did not engage an external service
provider as its company secretary and the role of the company
secretary was performed by Mr. Fung Kwan Ho (“Mr. Fung”), who
is a member of Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, at all times
during the Year. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Fung has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.
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Report
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To the Shareholders of Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 101 to 240, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
ALK G Rt BT EB T - PR PR

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Mt : +852 2289 8888 » HH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

° Deferred income tax assets
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93



94

I WYR Y S GRS

Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwec

Key Audit Matter
RSBt EE

B Rop ki

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KBt R IR RS H1E

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Wzt BT Baa i &

Refer to Note 2.20 (Summary of material
and other accounting policies) and Note 5
(Revenue and segment information) to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
F2REEEGEMBRRME2.20 (X
REMESFTHERE) kWS (W ko8
BH o

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group recognised revenue from sales of
goods amounted to RMB28,591 million.
B E2023F12A31HILLEE BEEERIHE
mif E W mH st AR 28,591 B & T o

Revenue is recognised when the Group
satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring the control of promised good
or service to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for that
good or service.
EEEENTRAE R EEEAEERIRS
EHIENBNERT BFFRSERREER
TEHRRRRZEEmRBZERESHNA
B> 7 AU o

We focused on this area due to the huge
volume of revenue transactions generated
from sales of numerous kinds of products to
a large number of customers, including direct
customers and distributors in many different
locations.

BMAIE—FEH HDHREEERARENS
mIFEXZWERRNAHERSZNEFR
HEBER @EIMRAEAMENEREE
PSR o
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We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls in
respect of the Group’s sales transactions. In addition, we tested the
general control environment of the Group’s information technology
systems and the automated controls that were related to revenue
recording.

BMTHR - FHRIRSEEEHEERRRHEERZ 2R 1t
Sh BPAE EEBE RN AR 2 —REFIIRIE  10RI 5 8 UK
whaCEk s B 2 B a1 o

We conducted testing of revenue transactions on a sample basis by
examining the relevant supporting documents including customer
contracts and orders, goods delivery notes and good receipt
records. In addition, we circularised confirmations on a sample
basis on trade receivables balances as at the balance sheet date.
EMBeETERERAAKITE - REERRFENRGCHRTN
RAERAE AN H I T 32 Z E 1T HECRIE « o AN EE B
R EEE R RN B AR A BR &S AR R o

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date, by reconciling recognised
revenue with the goods delivery notes and good receipt records,
to assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct reporting
periods.

s TP B A E BRI B REABANEER ZETRE &
W sl B G B ~ S EC SR T AL » U FT (N i B 1T IEFERY
RS HARIMEST

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s revenue from
sales of goods being tested were supported by the evidences that
we obtained.
RBEHRMFAAITHES T MR A EEBMAEEREEN
w R MEENEERSZ o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM Bt EIER =T B8

Deferred income tax assets

BEFFREE

Refer to Note 2.17 (Summary of material and
other accounting policies), Note 4.1 (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and
Note 19 (Deferred income tax) to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
FR2REEEREMBREWTE2.17 (EX
REMEFEREGE) M54 RS sHE
BRBR) KMsE19 CGRIEFTER) o

As at 31 December 2023, deferred income tax
assets of approximately RMB106 million were
recognised for tax losses that can be carried
forward in respect of certain subsidiaries in
Mainland China, to the extent that, realisation
of the related tax benefits through the
availability of future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of approximately RMB225 million
in respect of tax losses that can be carried
forward but the availability of future taxable
profit is not probable.

R2023%F 128318 EEBEREBERKIARR
BUAEBSRNEMNRFEE MPRAES
FTHBABHEAKPH I EE L RIEEIE
BRIEIEFIIEMEESTENA ARE106H
Br-ESEEREMUAE BN EARKIEH
FEMNIRFT ISR MBS BRI ENE
EHNARIE225FE T o
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We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors.

BMTREEEBERDIBEMSREES BN ESIKT L8
2o WiEdERM T REEENREZEE REMATREEZN KT
R IR E K EERERIMBITE R o

As part of our risk assessment in this area, we compared the
current year actual results with the prior year forecast to consider,
with hindsight, whether key assumptions included in that forecast
had been subject to management bias and assessed the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process.
ERRBRFTEN—HD RN FEFEEREXERUAIFE Y
BATERA URNERAGRFBIFZARBRESFTEERE
RRI L EEEMBENE N

We then evaluated and challenged management’s profit forecasts
for the next five years of individual entities that have accumulated
tax losses. Our assessment focused on certain key assumptions,
such as revenue growth rates and gross profit margin, by
comparing them to these entities’ historical operating results
and future operating plans, together with economic and industry
forecasts, where appropriate. We also considered the potential
impact of reasonably possible downside changes in these key
assumptions.
EMTEREREEEH AR NEBENERERAENR
REFHAFBAZ B - ERMOTEPEEATETEARRKR
Ho AR REMENR BRLEREMERNELLS =
BRAREETE WASHKBERITEZTRA (HEBER) - B4
ErthEH EREARRER O EESN T EEBRH QB EEMBR
BT R BET G-
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KBt R IR RS H1E

Significant judgement is required in
determining the recognition of deferred
income tax assets, considering whether
future taxable profit will be available against
which the accumulative tax losses can be
utilised. Management prepared a 5-year profit
forecast to assess the probability of generating
sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable
future. The major assumptions involved were
revenue growth rate and gross profit margin.
RIEFTISMEENETI I REEZHIE T
RBEIRREZDEEL EHHEARFTISEEN
ARBNEARBEE - EEEGRE LT A
FIFER > LSTHE R Al FE RS SR E L B H &R
MOHFNETENE  FE2RBS RINGFIERE
REMEK

We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity of the model, and high degree of
uncertainty and subjectivity of the estimations
on the forecast of the availability and timing
of future taxable profits, including the key
assumption of revenue growth rates and gross
profit margin.

EMEAIE—FE HHRZERAXS+59
B BHBRRREMNRSEITERY
RERBENGET (BFHBAE EXMNEF
EKEENRRRR FEaEAEEMMNE
o
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We have also verified the existence and amounts of tax losses,
together with their expiry dates, and the income tax rates applicable
to the entities by examining the tax returns submitted by the
relevant entities and reviewing the correspondences with the tax
authorities.

B EeBEZEMERERE FAREUREFERBIREAE
B UREENFEENEFERSE JREU RS ERBEROM
BRI

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to the
recognition of deferred tax assets in the context of HKFRSs.
BPRBEESRAMBREETEAMBEREEREBEEENIRERZ
BRE-

Based on our work performed, we found that management’s
judgement and estimation for the recognition of deferred tax assets
were supported by the evidences that we obtained.
BBEHFIPTRITNES T KRR BIREHHBEIIEILER
IHE EZ FIE R st AR PIEIS BB o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B KRk 1

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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B Rop ki

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S.C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 March 2024
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Consolidated Income Statement
B E2023F 1283318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
B 5F AREFT AR®&TFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue S 28,591,271 28,257,432
THE AR Cost of goods sold 6 (19,879,540)  (20,069,515)
EH Gross profit 8,711,731 8,187,917
HthH1§— 2% Other gains - net 7 413,600 54,297
H A Other income 8 351,273 336,556
Hsx Other expenses 6 (133,953) (148,946)
HEKRMIGHEERS Selling and marketing expenses 6 (6,277,942) (5,886,596)
TEREX Administrative expenses 6 (1,065,856) (1,041,026)
THEERERIBFEE Net impairment losses on
financial assets 3.1(b), 6 (2,393) (6,385)
RE T Operating profit 1,996,460 1,495,817
RRE WA Finance income 252,671 269,396
Gy Finance costs (59,121) (60,526)
B WA —FEE Finance income — net 10 193,550 208,870
MR EARZ Share of profits of investments
FE{L I E R accounted for using
the equity method 18 49,914 26,142
PRER1S IR A F) Profit before income tax 2,239,924 1,730,829
Frigf Income tax expenses 11 (572,864) (508,672)
TATEEFEA Profit for the year attributable to
FE1L & E iR A the equity holders of
the Company 1,667,060 1,222,157
FEEXRATEZFEA Earnings per share for profit
FELEF 2 EREF attributable to the equity
MUERAREHE) holders of the Company
during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—BEARKREE — Basic and diluted 12 38.60%) cents  28.30%) cents

F108FE2408 Z Mz B AL 2%
Z—E7e

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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consolidated financial statements.

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§

The notes on pages 108 to 240 are an integral part of these
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
MizE AREBTT AEB®TT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEA Profit for the year 1,667,060 1,222,157
Hhz2mks - Other comprehensive income:
FE[EM D IEEEw ZBEH  Items that may not be reclassified to
profit or loss
BB ENEFNWENSTE  Remeasurements of post-
employment benefit obligations 188 1,262
FEHMZERE Other comprehensive income
—bRMIFEE for the year, net of tax 188 1,262
AT EREIFEAEN Total comprehensive income
FEZEKNELE%E for the year attributable
to the equity holders
of the Company 1,667,248 1,223,419

F108E240B 2 B ZSHEEHTERE  The notes on pages 108 to 240 are an integral part of these
Z—E5e consolidated financial statements.

1 02 H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
12023F12H31H As at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
B 5% ARBFT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERENEE Non-current assets
M~ E KRR E Property, plant and equipment 14 6,489,433 6,662,688
FREEE Right-of-use assets 15 1,565,227 1,702,095
KREME Investment properties 16 237,479 256,417
BmILEE Intangible assets 17 8,007 6,687
MHEEREARZEE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 18 845,597 817,729
EIEFTISMEE Deferred income tax assets 19 255,748 356,104
HhpE U IE Other receivables
—IEBIHAEL - non-current portion 23 17,567 27,592
RHEHER Long-term time deposits 25 5,070,170 3,532,170
14,489,228 13,361,482
MENEE Current assets
=8 Inventories 21 2,125,883 2,522,530
FEUN B 5 IR R 245 Trade and bills receivables 22 585,790 819,877
BAHBE -ZE& Prepayments, deposits and
H g U shIE other receivables 23 755,215 904,888
R R CIFTIE R AR Current income tax recoverable 64,136 35,019
BAFEFAB@mZ Financial assets at fair value
THMEE through profit or loss 24 1,618,682 1,018,521
R& R IRITHER Cash and bank balances 25 2,495,284 3,122,038
7,644,990 8,422,873
WEE Total assets 22,134,218 21,784,355
i EQUITY
EAGIREZEFEA Equity attributable to equity
P&k 1 = holders of the Company
[N Share capital 26 39,764 39,764
R RER Share premium account 26 4,829,899 4,829,899
HAu# B Other reserves 27 4,246,943 3,858,113
REBF Retained earnings 4,265,771 4,453,577
s Total equity 13,382,377 13,181,353

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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HEEERER
Consolidated Balance Sheet
72023%12831H As at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
B =t AR¥ST AR¥TFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
afE LIABILITIES
ERHEE Non-current liabilities
RIEFTISMRaRE Deferred income tax liabilities 19 342,760 322,048
HESE—JEENEE D Lease liabilities — non-current portion 15 62,587 75,650
HMMEMRIE—IERNEASEES  Other payables — non-current portion 29 331,318 277,139
736,665 674,837
mENaf Current liabilities
FET B Z IR Trade payables 28 2,122,561 2,675,047
HMEARIBEKREER Other payables and accruals 29 2,019,652 2,133,160
HEHEE Contract liabilities 5(b) 2,823,147 2,257,836
== Borrowings 30 990,647 767,756
HEaE Lease liabilities 15 26,201 26,090
EHFTEMEas Current income tax liabilities 32,968 68,276
8,015,176 7,928,165
FE=R Total liabilities 8,751,841 8,603,002
RSk aEiE%E Total equity and liabilities 22,134,218 21,784,355

F108E240B 2 M B Z SRS FHE  The notes on pages 108 to 240 are an integral part of these
Z—Eme consolidated financial statements.

F101E240B 2 5 FHHRFREIN 2024453 The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 240 were
HeR&EEeH# £ AR FIATREREZE  approved by the Board of Directors on 6 March 2024 and were

gHEEo signed on its behalf.
BEx EAE TS
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director

1 04 #— ¥ R EERE PR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

KRR REFE AR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

B E2023F 1283318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

B R iEE Hithf# s RERT At
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
Mz  ARBTR ARETrn ARETx ARETR AR®Tn
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2022F1 B 18 2 &5 Balance at 1 January 2022 39,764 4,829,899 3,543,702 5,351,936 13,765,301
2EKE Comprehensive income
FEGT Profit for the year - - - 1,222,157 1,222,157
Hith 2 EM e Other comprehensive income
—%ﬂgﬂﬁ‘?ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ’\] - Remeasurements of post-employment
EifstE benefit obligations - - 1,262 - 1,262
Hitn2mEk A58 Total other comprehensive income = - 1,262 - 1,262
FEZENGAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 1,262 1,222,157 1,223,419
BUEATERE Appropriation to statutory reserves 27(0) - - 313,149 (313,149) -
BN ERRZRE Dividends relating to 2021 - - - (1,807,367) (1,807,367)
120225128318 2458 Balance at 31 December 2022 39,764 4,829,899 3,858,113 4,453,577 13,181,353
#2023F 1B 10 2 & ik Balance at 1 January 2023 39,764 4,829,899 3,858,113 4,453,577 13,181,353
2EKE Comprehensive income
FERT Profit for the year - - - 1,667,060 1,667,060
Hitt 2Bl Other comprehensive income
—%ﬁﬁﬁé?ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ - Remeasurements of post-employment
EifstE benefit obligations = = 188 = 188
Hitr2EWRE A% Total other comprehensive income - - 188 - 188
FEZENGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 188 1,667,060 1,667,248
BRELTHE Appropriation to statutory reserves 27(b) - - 388,642 (388,642) -
2022 BRI Z R E Dividends relating to 2022 - - - (1,466,224)  (1,466,224)
1$2023% 128318 248  Balance at 31 December 2023 39,764 4,829,899 4,246,943 4,265,771 13,382,377

F108FE240B 2 T B2 SF &
2_

BB o

LIRSS ES

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The notes on pages 108 to 240 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
M5 AREBTFT AR®TT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEHMZAETRE Cash flows from operating
activities
EEEL VRS Cash generated from operations 31 3,624,143 2,055,079
BENHERX Interest expenses paid (54,371) (59,759)
BIPTER Income tax paid (516,268) (565,040)
EEEMELEZFRE Net cash generated from
operating activities 3,053,504 1,430,280
REEHZIRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
BEYE -MEKRERELURE  Purchases of property,
KREYE plant and equipment and
investment properties (952,210) (439,432)
HERLEE Purchases of intangible assets (7,721) (5,971)
BEEATEFABRZ Purchase of financial assets at
ETMEE fair value through profit or loss (1,603,000) (700,000)
HEFREEERYE Proceeds from disposal of
TR B2 R 55 45 2 P8 s 8 right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment 624,903 10,546
HERAFEEFABRZ Proceeds from disposal of financial
TMEEZMEMIE assets at fair value through
profit or loss 1,056,760 1,449,768
HEGZEPER Proceeds from disposal of
—EBERTZ investments in joint ventures
KEFSIE and an associate 18 - 18
—EEETLEEFE Proceeds from liquidation of
KRB FT1ERIE investment in a joint venture 18 728 =
BL—EEEREY Proceeds from decrease of
KREMEHRIEAE investment in a joint venture 18 2,392 =
ZREIERITEMRZ (Increase)/decrease in restricted
(gho R bank deposits 25 (5,300) 8,600
FHHE®=EA Increase in time deposits with
EHIFER ZIE 0 maturity more than 3 months 25 (82,447) (761,591)
BEPER—M Dividends received from
BEANRIWEZ IR E joint ventures and an associate 18 18,926 21,294
SERBFAZ RRE Net cash used in investing activities (946,969) (416,768)

106

#— ¥ R EERE PR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &



. nv'F IE@/}H.EE
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
B E2023F 1283318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
B 5 AREBFTT AR®BTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEEHZRERE Cash flows from financing
activities
IRTTREEENIEA Proceeds from bank borrowings 30 18,306,317 13,352,981
BERITEE Repayments of bank borrowings 30 (18,083,426) (12,697,525)
MEMNRZAEHD Principal elements of lease payment (34,360) (38,823)
AARNEERTFTEA Dividends paid to equity holders
ZIRE of the Company (1,470,996)  (1,807,351)
MEEEMBZ FIRE Net cash used in financing activities (1,282,465) (1,190,718)
HRERREEEY Net increase/(decrease)
1, GRisL) H%E in cash and cash equivalents 824,070 (177,206)
FYzRERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year 108,519 285,573
ReKBSEBYTER Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and
(B518) A8 cash equivalents (594) 152
FRZBSKIRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 25 931,995 108,519
F108E240B 2 B ZF S 7IRE  The notes on pages 108 to 240 are an integral part of these
Z2—E3e consolidated financial statements.

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
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1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and sale of beverages and food in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC Beverages
and Food Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the material and other accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

()  Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”) as
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap.622.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

()  Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO (Continued)

HKFRS comprise the following authoritative literature:

o Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

° Hong Kong Accounting Standards

° Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

(i)  Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following:

° certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) — measured at fair value or
revalued amount

° defined benefit pension plans — plan assets
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are material to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

A number of new or amended standards, accounting
guidance and interpretations became applicable for the

current reporting period. The Group did not change its
accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments

as a result of adopting these standards.

HKFRS 17

HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practise
Statement 2
(Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

Insurance contracts
Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

OECD Pillar Two Rules

o Annual Report 2023 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 BAKRHMEBERME 2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
(48) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
21 REEE (B) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
21.1 Bt ERIBEZ 28 (5 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) BB EMEMEEKF2023 (b)  The following new standards and amendments to
F151HBEIIYT R FEEE standards, and interpretations have been issued but
X0 B K eI RN BT HT are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
B R B 2E B R 52 FERIIEET - January 2023 and have not been early adopted:
e Effective for
RN annual periods
ERERLEY beginning on
or after
BREHENFS BENEAEY A4E1B1R HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabiliies as 1 January 2024
(37) b Current or Non-current
BREHENS G EESEE) AUEBIR HKAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current liabilities with 1 January 2024
(37 £ covenants
ERUBRSENZI0S EREAREAE AE1BIA HKFRS 16 Leas liability in sale and 1 January 2024
(7%) (Amendments) leaseback
BREHENSTIRE  MRERERS AUEIR HKAS 7 and Supplier finance arrangements 1 January 2024
HRRRSE HKFRS 7
B (Amendments)
ERenENENE  HZURmM 20551 B1A HKAS 21 Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025
(51%) (Amendments)
BEUBRSENR0T REZAERENT 5T HKFRS 10 and HKAS  Sale or contribution of To be determined
REREHEN yeEhEzEL 28 (Amendments) assets between an
5085 (BF14) BELEARA investor and its associate
or joint venture
ERRREST () WBER.EN-E EERRREE Hong Kong Presentation of Financial Applied when
TAHEREER EHERFS Interpretation 5 Statements - Classification by~ an entity applies
EEEnEEE (BT R (Revised) the Borrower of a Amendments to
iy Term Loan that Contains a HKAS 1
Repayment

on Demand Clause

REBEEETEMTERN RS The Group is assessing the full impact of the new
B~ F5tie5 | AR ENETIN 2 standards and amendments to standards, accounting
Hx o guidance and interpretations.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 1 1 1
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2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(c)  Change in accounting policy on offsetting
arrangement in long service payment scheme in
Hong Kong

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) which will be
effective from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under
the Amendment Ordinance, any accrued benefits
attributable to the employer's mandatory contributions
under mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Benefits”) of an entity would no longer be eligible to
offset against its obligations on long service payment
(“LSP”) for the portion of the LSP accrued on or after
the Transition Date. There is also a change in the
calculation basis of last monthly wages for the portion of
the LSP accrued before the Transition Date.

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical
expedient in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the “practical
expedient”) to account for the offsetable MPF Benefits
as deemed employee contributions to reduce the
current service costs in the period in which the related
services were rendered.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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21 RUEE B 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(c)  Change in accounting policy on offsetting
arrangement in long service payment scheme in
Hong Kong (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” (the “Guidance”) which
provides clarified and detailed guidance on the
accounting considerations relating to the abolition of
the offsetting mechanism. The Guidance clarified that
following the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance,
LSP is no longer a ‘simple type of contributory plans’
to which the practical expedient had been intended to

apply.

By following the Guidance, the Group has therefore
changed its accounting policy and ceased to apply
the practical expedient and reattribute the deemed
employee contributions on a straight-line basis from
the date when services by employees first lead to their
benefits in terms of the LSP legislation in accordance
with HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a). This change in
accounting policy upon the cessation in applying
the practical expedient has resulted in a catch-up
adjustment for past service costs and a corresponding
increase in the Group’s LSP obligations in the year of
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance.

Obligations on LSP accrued was immaterial for the
Group; therefore, the abovementioned change in
accounting policy does not have significant impact to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%
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H E2023F 128318 LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
@  Business combinations (Continueq)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with HKFRS
9 either in the income statement or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to income statement.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%
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2.3 Principle of equity accounting

2.3.1 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.3.2 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are all entities over which the Group
has joint control but not solo control. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.3.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Principle of equity accounting (Continued)
2.3.3 Equity method (Continued)

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.8.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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(@) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘Other gains - net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) are included in the fair
value reserves in other comprehensive income.
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2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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2.6 ME- -BERRE 1) 2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2.7

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other gains — net’,
statement.

in the income

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The Group classifies cash outflows to acquire or

construct investment property as investing and rental
inflows as operating cash flows.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in the income statement or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.9.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the income statement and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the income statement and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the income
statement as other income when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from

other changes in fair value.
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2.9.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for
further details.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 2.9.2 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 2.9.4 and 3.1 (b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.12 Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements where the Company is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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218 EE1EF 2.18 Employee benefits

BT EMRE — TEEHELE Pension obligation — defined contribution plan

EREEAFEALAERR LRI A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
MWABEZRARERETEIEH which the Group pays contributions to publicly or
BE-ENNEEEE 2 EEEM privately administered pension insurance plans on
NZBAREEE - — B HAN a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
B ARERRTEBEIZNEE. Group has no further payment obligations once the
ZEHANENERIZAEER contributions have been paid. The contributions are
FFAsE o recognised as employee benefit expense when they are

due.
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Pension obligation — defined contribution plan
(Continued)

@  Employees of the Group in the Mainland China

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the Mainland China, employees of the Group in the
Mainland China participated in the central pension
scheme (“‘Scheme”), which is a defined contribution
plan administered by the Mainland China government,
whereby the Group is required to make contributions
to the Scheme based on certain percentages of the
eligible employees’ salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.
Contributions made to the Scheme vest immediately.

(b)  Employees of the Group in Hong Kong

In compliance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), employees of the Group in Hong Kong
are required to participate in the Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme of the Group (“MPF Scheme”). The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution plan administered
by an independent corporate trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the Group and the employees are
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligation - defined contribution plan
(Continued)

(c)  Employees of the Group in Taiwan

Pursuant to the Labour Standards Law of Taiwan,
employees of the Group in Taiwan participated in the
Labour Pension Fund, which is a defined contribution
plan managed by the Bureau of Labour Funds as
governed by the Ministry of Labour in Taiwan (“Ministry
of Labour”). Under such plan, the Group is required to
make monthly contributions to the Bureau of Labour
Insurance, Ministry of Labour at 6.0% of the employees’
total monthly wages. Contributions made to such
pension fund vest immediately.

The Group’s contributions under the above-mentioned
defined contribution plans in the Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Taiwan are expensed as incurred and not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the defined contribution plans prior to vesting
fully in the contributions.
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218 BREREF (&) 2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

BIhEEF — EHEEF1E

RBEGESBEEZL FEEN
ETEE2EEEESM—EEHE
A8 (TERBRBAEE) -]
BEBRGEMNFE  BRHREEHNE
E AR R B MR F R R IK
AINERB TR #HAE  MA
EEFESARNEKRESE (TR
BE&) FHERESBBFH2%E
16%HBY R o RIRHRIA R EEIR
HhEEREEEZEENRER
ABEBRT - NEBEVREET
R AEEGHEERAREESN
MEER o MR NEZRIEERT U
RT—EMBRFERRKEES
TRAREZEN  AEEFEEHE
HAGMIRA (S ER

2.19 B

HEEREBLBEEFEXERA
FRNBETEEE MAUEER
BERALUBITZRES  LEH
RS ERTERID B LE
FLARAL E SR FESD B o

HERZBEUERT TSER
ABE ) mOR H LUB BE B H K

BEBZEEEREMETE B
B4R EH P ER — ' AR H
REN@mZEERIR HEHES
e

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 1 35

Pension obligation — defined benefit plan

Certain Taiwan employees of the Group elected to
participate in a defined benefit plan in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law of Taiwan (“Defined
Benefit Plan”). Under the Defined Benefit Plan, pension
benefits are calculated based on the years of service
and average monthly salary of the six months preceding
retirement of the relevant employee, and the Group
is required to make monthly contributions of 2% to
15% of the total monthly wages of the employees to a
pension fund (“Pension Fund”). Pension contributions
are deposited into the Bank of Taiwan in the name of
the pension fund provision supervision committee of the
Group. Before the end of each financial year, the Group
will assess the balance in the Pension Fund. In the
event that the balance in the Pension Fund is insufficient
to pay out pension benefits to retiring employees in the
following financial year, the Group is required to pay up
such difference on its own account.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells beverages and food.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfiled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a period of
time. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is
only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in other payables and accruals) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales. No significant element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit
term of 60-90 days, which is consistent with market
practice.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.21

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amount of
products returned were immaterial. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
for goods return was recognized. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion
activities, the Group did not provide a distinct good
or service to customers and therefore recorded as a
deduction of sales price.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
containing financing components. As a consequence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transition prices
for the time value of money.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.22 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 10 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

2.23 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising

the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability, and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in the income statement. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of

office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 16). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are

included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.



4 A
717 g e |

175 ¥k R M 5E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 EARHEMEEREE
(%)

2.26 Mt stEER

142

2.26.1 EFEE

BABHROARESKSBERR
HERAERREMEE Z KA
WMEETLERE - RFRETS
RS UERFEHR2EFH

22621 TEZTHT R

MEIBERMTEIRGWNEIULE
BEAFENRES HERA
FEREREHREMFAE L
FEREEZH 2 G REIURAN
ZMETARESRIEEAETT
BrUIREERHPTA B
RIEHEAFREZEE - AEEF
FEZNTEEMIRATARTEYH
e ER WIRATES AR
EANAR A EHFEE
AlZzTTEERMIAZATENSR
S RAFRGERERNE
SO 5t ATEAMF)IS —FE]

2263 BT TR

THMEERBEGHERE MmN
BAR LRGN ITEMNBHEE
BETEAABLUFREEEFE
NERSREENSEARR
HFEEERRINKRZFER - ER
LRI B T EMN AT REFA
BEAMERDABESESS
RIEABHEFHHERIRIE E
FER R A% 22 B A S8 B AT o

2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Other accounting policies

2.26.1 Intangible assets

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2-5 years.

2.26.2 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of item being hedged. Derivative instruments
held by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement and
are included in ‘Other gains — net’.

2.26.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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2.26 HMEEER (@) 2.26 Other accounting policies (Continued)
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2.26.4 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and
a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in
the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from
other liabilities in the balance sheet.



4 A
717 g e |

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

3

144

R 75 = MY 5

MRS EE
3.1 BMEEREE

FEBNEHEAEERETRE
MBRER : mEERR (BEINE
R -RERENMQFENRR
%) EERBKRABES AR
FEENEERBREESSED
RERMMBZAARRME T
RERREMEESSER /M
BR\ZBEIFZE -

(a) HiSEEE
0 SMEESE

FEFEBTERLECEE TAR
BREEWRERELNINER
B EBIRMEEBRARE
WEFTHEWB AR ZE7Te 5
ERREERKRBERS BER
BNEERBBUKRINEEREN
REFER-

EEEEMERR BEXERRN
BIEEHINEEKRINERE -
HEEBERKBERZREEIBE
ERGRELENIIERR  £&E
EEREPEUIN S ERER
GR THAERMBREE - EX
RNBEEXSNCEINEENR
BRENTIFEREEENER
sHER  BIg EEINE R

iF— ¥ hE PG A R/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk
U Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the USD for certain
PRC subsidiaries whose functional currency are RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

Management has set up a policy to require Group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. To manage their
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities,
entities in the Group use forward contracts outside the
PRC, transacted by Group treasury. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
0 Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from recognised assets or
liabilities, such as trade and bills receivables (Note 22),
cash and bank balances (Note 25) and borrowings
(Note 30), part of which are denominated in United
States dollar (“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2023 would have been
approximately RMB397,000 lower/higher (2022:
RMB313,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD and HKD
denominated borrowings and cash and bank balances.
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3 MBEEEIRE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
31 HMHBEBEZR (@& 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) WHHEE (4B) (a) Market risk (Continued)
0 SMNERE (B) () Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
J Bz A 4 Exposure
TREIAEEBRRSHERTE The Group’s major exposure to foreign currency risk at
AENINERR UAREF T the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB’000,
&) : was as follows:
BUE A
METHHE MATEHE BiitE
Other
usb HKD currencies

denominated denominated denominated

20235128310 As at 31 December 2023
R Cash 1,345 3,784 2,107
EWEZEX Trade receivables 1,626 3,831 -
20226125318 As at 31 December 2022
Re Cash M 949 24
BB EZRN Trade receivables 1,903 4,252 -
RIEERER 2 SXE Amounts recognised in the income statement
FREREBmRER T ZINE During the year, the following foreign-exchange related
1EREEEE amounts were recognised in the income statement:
2023 2022
AREFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEUA — F5E Finance income — net
—REEHER — Foreign exchange (losses)/
(B518) /Wi e gains on financing activities (5,374) 150
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for long-term time deposits and cash and
bank balances (Note 25) and borrowings (Note 30)
with interest charges and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 24) with expected return
rate, the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 25 and Note 30 respectively.

As at 31 December 2023,
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points

if interest rates on bank

higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB49,311,000 (2022: RMB44,148,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank balances which would offset partially
by interest expenses on borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continueq)

The Group’s cash flow interest-rate risk arises from
wealth management products with variable return
rates, which are mainly structured deposits carried at
FVPL. The Group has not hedged its variable return
rates. The expected return rates and terms of financial
assets at FVPL are disclosed in Note 3.3.1 and Note 24
respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, if expected return rates on
financial assets at FVPL had been 100 basis points
higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB4,528,000 (2022:
RMB3,790,000) higher/lower.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%



iR e M SRR M 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2023F 128318 LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 MBRAKER (B8
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FERRKRERTRRSEE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and at FVPL, and deposits with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding
receivables.

0 Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. As at 31
December 2023, the bank deposits and cash at bank
were deposited in reputable financial institutions which
are considered with low credit risk. The table below
shows bank deposits and cash at bank balances by

A RITIR B A ER counterparties:
2023 2022
ARETT AE®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R2H Counterparties
—PgR A MiIR1T* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 200,731 693,555
—SINEIRTT — Foreign owned banks 5,075,393 4,553,648
—HME R ERT — Other domestic commercial banks 2,286,469 1,405,562
7,562,593 6,652,765
* NS NIRITEFHRET * Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and

FIRTROABRQAE hER
FRTROABRQE PEIR
TRMBRAB R EERIR
TRMABEMRRT -

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.
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RITEAREE DERZFRRE
MEXFRINEARITRAEMT
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FEEREBEIANRERRRS
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BERERRITEH BERERE
RERENERITABTERY
B S 2R FRBURERE » B
BRI R ERB BT ANEKX

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
1] Risk management (Continueq)

If wholesale customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit
limits by wholesale customers is regularly monitored by
line management.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with bills receivables, all of which are bank
acceptance bills since they are substantially deposited
at or issued by state-owned banks and other medium
or large sized listed banks. Management does not
expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for credit
deterioration.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of goods that
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and bank balances, bills receivable and
long-term time deposits are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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3 BHERKBEIE (B) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
31 HBRBEZR (& 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) EEEE (& (b)  Credit risk (Continued)

() ZFEEERNE &) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
FEU & 7 BR R Trade receivables

AEBERASABMBREENSE
SREIE A ZTERBEERE
RYTHRAT > BTERKES
RREGEREFEANNTERE
B-ANERBEEREB BKE
ZIRMERBE#BGEERRRRL
FBRRRE D E T EZE o 0
2023F12H31H &20225F125 31
HEENEKE ZRMNEBER

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022 was determined as
follows for trade receivables:

BHRUT -
H0XA  91E180K 181E365%k  —ELE At
Within 91 to 181 to Over
90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total
2023F12831H 31 December 2023
BEEBELE Expected loss rate 0.60% 13.39% 64.84%  100.00%
WEREE Gross carrying amount
-RWEZERR - trade receivables 541,047 47,141 2,895 10,597 601,680
FEEE Loss allowance 3,247 6,312 1,877 10,597 22,033
POOKA  91E180K 181E365Kk  —HEUE At
Within 91to 181 to Over
90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total
2022F12831H 31 December 2022
BEEBELE Expected loss rate 0.36% 14.56% 67.01% 100.00%
EREE Gross carrying amount
-EWEZERR - trade receivables 761,851 62,624 10,105 1,012 835,592
HiERE Loss allowance 2,745 9,116 6,771 1,012 19,644

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 MBRAKER (@

3.1 BHEBEAER (&)
(b) FEELE (&)
i) EMEERE (&
FEW B 57 8RR ()

R2023FE12831H  FEWE FER
TR G EEFHRAHEEVES

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as
at 31 December 2023 reconcile to the opening losses

BEEIRAOT allowances as follows:
2023 2022
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R1B1HBEY] Opening loss allowance as at 1 January
BEEE 19,644 15,351
FRREBEmKRERDN Increase in loss allowance recognised in
ESIE RN (M5E6)  the income statement during the year
(Note 6) 2,393 6,385
RERTER B B Receivables written off during
TUBHSEAVEURERIE  the year as uncollectible 4 (2,092)
MR12831HMER Closing loss allowance as at
E5IE 31 December 22,033 19,644

EfFAEAKER SEEAE
FEBRTHMBEEKEZ RN T
FEITWENSERANERE
B EDEE GBABELELE
B 7% Rl 2B R 5t B R A S A B
#BE0H E90H RUBRRIEH S XK
(ERH) -

152

iF— ¥ hE PG A R/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 60-90
days past due (credit terms).

o Annual Report 2023 &
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3 HERKEEIE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 HBREBEZE (@) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

b)) EERE G
(i)  LEEEEE B
FEUS B Z 8RR (48

EWE Z RV EBERIEE
B2 R REREFE - H
‘U el SRl EMEERYE BRI FT A
F—I8H -

BREBIEN IR AtMEREE

BEBEA AR A ERMEE
BIEEMFE U RIS o H thE U
ERENZI2EABREEEEIE
REPEREEFBAE "TE
EERMBYRREBEBRRETA XN
BIEMME - WEKRREBEZEE
BFE B 1) 4a i SR e K 1838 0 0
BENEEPEREEREREFEZ-
R2023F K2022FE 1283110 » 1
mEERRBVREREIGM

R2023F 2022128310 » &<
EENEMERRIBETEGIERE
WF B~ FEU R A B R E
o

s RBWFBRBEEARITRHE
iR B R EEERRIHR
AR EHIRITHBENER
R
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(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was
no increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, other receivables
within the Group mainly include interest receivables,
amounts due from related parties and other deposits.

° Interest receivables arise from time deposits
in state-owned banks and other medium or
large sized listed banks institutions which are
considered with low credit risk;
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

° Amounts due from related parties are considered
as low credit risk which mainly arise from
the subsidiaries of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation, ultimate holding company of
the Group, which has a A grade credit rating
issued by Taiwan Ratings Corp., a subsidiary of
internationally renowned credit rating agency S&P
Global Rating.

Historically, all other receivables were collected on
timely basis. Management assesses and concludes that
these receivables are considered to be low credit risk
where they have a low risk of default and have a strong
capacity to meet the contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. And thus, the identified impairment loss
is immaterial.

Net impairment losses on financial assets recognised in
the income statement

During the year, the following losses were recognised
in ‘net impairment losses’ in the income statement in
relation to impaired financial assets:

2023 2022
AREFT AR¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUR B Z R Movement in loss allowance for
BB E) trade receivables 2,393 6,385

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%
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3 HERKEEIE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) EEELE (&)

(i) BAFEFABDHZHE
E

REBBAFESABRENEH
EECEERABRRRKEENTE
HIRTTE R (R “EBEER
REES AEETEEBREN
ERFS U HRERASBE (W
£t24) o

) FEEZEE

BEZABHESEREERREE
RENZRERREEEY B
BURBERERZEEKGEEMER
ENEFIHRAET UETEHN
BEEKRGEEDBBSTZEN &
EEZBRNDER TR ZBAGE
EEMERE UHRFRAEEE
BERVKRBEEZETAHBA-
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3.1 HBREBEZE (@) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL are comprised of
term bank products (principal protected), structured
deposit and investment fund considered to be low risk
investments. The credit ratings of the investments are
monitored for credit deterioration (Note 24).

(c¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out
market positions. The Group’s objective is to maintain
adequate committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient
and flexible funding is available to the Group.
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3 HMBEAMEIRE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.1 MBRBEZR (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) TEEZREE (B (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRAXEBEZEREBED N The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
ZEERNEEBEEE0RHE that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
ZETHREFEN AR A groupings based on the remaining period at the
ARNEE - RAMEESREAS balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
KRR ERE The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

PR-F -EME WERE BRIE st
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AREFT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARKETET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

#2023F128318  As at 31 December 2023

b Borrowings 990,647 - - - 990,647
EEREAT Interest payments on borrowings 6,032 - - - 6,032
HE&E Lease liabilities 28,658 17,875 29,088 21,609 97,230
B ERRD Trade payables 2,122,561 = = - 2,122,561
HitERZIER Other payables and accruals,

E:ER (excluding non-financial liabilities)

O A =l 1,604,382 - - - 1,604,382
HIRHEIHIE  Other long term payables - 333,311 - - 333,311

4,752,280 351,186 29,088 21,609 5,154,163

#2022F12831H  As at 31 December 2022

b Borrowings 767,756 - = = 767,756
BEH AR Interest payments on borrowings 5,569 = = = 5,569
HE&E Lease liabilities 28,957 22,994 29,352 31,213 112,516
ENEZER Trade payables 2,675,047 - = - 2675047
EMEATIER Other payables and accruals,

Bt ER (excluding non-financial liabilties)

(FBEEzHas) 1,532,002 - - - 1,532,092
HARHEMTIE  Other long term payables - 278,591 = = 278,591

5,009,421 301,585 29,352 31218 5,371,571
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:

° safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that they can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, and

° maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net cash divided by total equity.
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3 HMBEAMEIRE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.2 BEXRREMEIRE (B) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
FR20234F » AEERIREE (812022 During 2023, the Group’s strategy, which was
FAERE) B ERB B ERERT unchanged from 2022, was to maintain a gearing ratio
B 50% ° 20234 2022412 below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2023
A31ENEXRER/RLERNT ! and 2022 are as follows:
2023 2022
ARBTT AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
wEsE Total borrowings
(BEEEER) (including lease liabilities)
(M3 5E155 M3 5£30) (Note 15 and Note 30) 1,079,435 869,496
B REAEEAFESUR  Less: long-term time deposits
Re MIRITHER and cash and bank balances
(H5E25) (Note 25) (7,565,454) (6,654,208)
IREFEE Net cash (6,486,019) (5,784,712)
4ERE R Total equity 13,382,377 13,181,353
BARAEHER Gearing ratio -48.47% -43.89%
HARAEERRFRE&RT K The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 was
EEMR2023F12831HNELRE negative since the Group is in net cash position.
BLEEAEEBH-

1 58 H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%



iR e M SRR M 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 MBRAKER (B8

3.3

AFEMLE

TRUGEED TR ATFEIE
ZEMTHR-ZEERERAEMT :

s HMHRBEENERHELTETS
BURME CREREE) (F1E) -

s BRTFIEFRSENEKEN
ZEENBBRZAUBERHA
B I»EE BNFImER)
gfEE (AR B ER) (%2
&) -

s EHENERUTIFKEIEHE
THBEZBAE B
BzuaAB (F3E) -

FEEREEF2EREIERT
BB IR B A R E R o

B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The Group did not change any valuation techniques in
determining the level 2 and level 3 fair values.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2023
and 2022.

20235 20224
12H31H 128310
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
ARBTT AR®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
BAFESt ARG FVPL (Note 24)
(MFzE24)
—53E - Level 3 1,618,682 1,018,521

REE2023F12831HIEEE >
AESmMITIAEAFEMERAF
BEEAETEELEE BHE
REFZEEEBNREAMN
SERMEENDE

3.3.1 BAEATTHEBA B
BAFE (H3/E)

NEBMEETSRMEBETIIAE
EEEENERERGHN &S5
BHNRNEEEBBERARM AR
AFEFABZHNEREE -1
2023F12H31H » KN EH E
mETAFEAENEECRIEE
BE EEEBERMEHRERKE
BEETE IEZEENEAR
BRI EM

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Group enters into the wealth management products
contracts with relatively higher interest rates with
certain financial institutions. These are reflected as
financial assets at FVPL on the balance sheet. As at
31 December 2023, most of the wealth management
products are bought from the major financial institutions
in Mainland China and management has exercised due
care when making investment decision focusing only on
low risk wealth management products.
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B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3

FENFEIETAEH- instruments for the year ended 31 December 2023,
BATESA
£kl
EMEE
Financial
assets
at FVPL
ARBEF T
RMB’000
FR SRR Opening balance 1,018,521
0 Additions 1,603,000
BATEFABTENSREE  Gains on disposal of financial assets at FVPL
HEMNE 35,239
BNFEFABENEREZE  Change in value of financial assets at FVPL
ZEEEE 18,682
WERRY PSRN IE Proceeds received (1,056,760)
FRAER Closing balance 1,618,682
FRFBAZEERBERKT Total unrealised gains for the year recognised in
R 25| FEEaF18 the income statement for assets held at the end
—FRIBETHNFEER of the year, under ‘Other gains — net’
REIFF)F 18,682
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements

using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

1420234
128318 FAHRHAE
it MATE GERM FABRMAE gE - HEATEMNMG
Relationship of
Fair value at Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs
Description 31/12/2023 technique(s) input Range to fair value
AR®F
RMB’000
REFECRIEE 1,618,682 H4IRFEEME TERAEERE 1.50-4.50%  REEIAERERE
HYIRE E NEEEMARE
1,638,0007T ; &I&TE
HEIRERFEATE
AR 12,262,000
TT
Wealth management 1,618,682 Discounted Expected return 1.50 - 4.50% Highest expected
products from cash flow rate return rate would

major financial
institutions
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increase fair value

by RMB1,638,000;
lowest expected
return rate would
decrease fair value by
RMB2,262,000
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B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

120224
12H31H TARR#EAE
it WATE (HER AR HEAE #gE - EATENRG
Relationship of
Fair value at  Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs to
Description 31/12/2022  technique(s) input Range fair value
ARBFT
RMB’000
REFEER 1,018,521 BARMERE fELEIEIESES 1.50-4.70% ReARBRER®
HIEAVIRE E o NREEEMARE
4,126,0007T ; &1&TE
HARIRERE R TE
B AR 158,125,000
JT
Wealth management 1,018,521  Discounted Expected return 1.50-4.70% Highest expected
products from cash flow rate return rate would

major financial
institutions

3.3.2 15188

AEBNMBIFIRE Y
BHREENHBAFES ABED
MEMEEETHE (BES3E
ATE NEK BEEEEGERE
BRpLEAEBERERELEN
BRET—REH BAXERF
FREHE—2e

AEEEANTEFBBAES
BATEHABBHEREES
EH%E AN RERARRHFH
& K0P B E R I DUt 5 i
BTG o

increase fair value

by RMB4,126,000;
lowest expected
return rate would
decrease fair value by
RMB8,125,000

3.3.2 Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuations of financial assets at FVPL
required for financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair values. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the management and the
valuation team at least once every six months, in line
with the Group’s half-yearly reporting periods.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are return
rates of the financial assets at FVPL which are derived
and evaluated based on the yield rate written in
contracts by the counterparties.
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B 3B & 5t (il 5 K F Ef

FEBERBBEIERMNE AR ET
HEERAE  BEEARBER THA
FERAEREMT B ENRKREMHE
HEEEA -

41 FARGSHLEERER

AEBHRRIFHERRMEBR-
BER BHUEMERZGFHELE
BEVEBHAZERERER o i
ERREERNTEYBREFERNZE
EREERABLREERFAEZ
HERRRRS®HNT -

@) HFREREEEFFREE

AEBFERRTEBMARF
Mo ERMEMSRZEBRAF
HEKRHAE -REXH5 KEEA
B RBIRE T EE A BT HEE
BeAEBRBEMGFTRKREDT AN
MEASNMRIE UL TR BB %
FERIER - HAFFEZR
RMBERBEPLSHRARZE
B 2EZRRGTEET
MEMEZ S RIELERERNE
ERhEEe

ERETERUEEERRESE
ZIEEFFSMEECD THD R
AR EEER A IS RRER
Mg A o LU B I 8K AT 35 10 5 B
MERNMIERBIE

HENRENRENERREER
() B/ BREEEBNG
5110% RIARE @B F1gm,RmD
FERIBE E AR 22,463,000
7t (2022%F : AR 122,765,000
JT) ©

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that may have a financial impact

on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/decrease the deferred tax assets by
RMB22,463,000 (2022: RMB22,765,000).
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REZ 1G5 HE

THERERIE BEKRRE

FEWEREmERETHESRE-
AREEBRDREEREEFE
BE =S8R ATEERA
B Ko f 51 o

EEEBANEERESE LA
i CHERENGE (1REEHE
EHRTEREEBEYEEE
WEl () —REEZREERSR
MEHEA W EEEE BI AT EBEE
AR BRREBNEBTERE
MEEMMGANRRBEERER
BERFEZRSE) X ; K(i)ithR
HEERERARERABEEDN
TERR URABRERER
AREEREBENLERER B
EREMLAERFERZRER (8
EREAEAANMRELRR
BRX) A EE) > AT HRERR
THREFREHERTE I
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EREMFTE - MRAEBE LA
ERENARRFEERERAEE
AAHNES ATEEREES
HWm TP ESER
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment

Land use right and property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§

165



EABERENE -
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

166

W a2 3 SR E Y

HOTEZSRRERTBEERRA-
RWITEFEREAEBZABRS > U
FERBERDEER BEEEREZ
SHESNDEEDE -

MR AEEION U L2 HERERE
HRPEET RRTESFTUHERA
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales and
business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a product
perspective, management assesses the performance of
beverages, food, others and unallocated.

Others mainly includes the sales of bottle water, wine,
cosmetics products and other non-beverages or non-food
products. Unallocated mainly includes the cost centers of
the Group, such as corporate department, administration
department, group finance department, human resources
department and information technology department, which
support the whole Group’s activities.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on segment profit or loss. Other information
provided, except as noted below, to the executive directors
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the financial
statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and
no revenue from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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Wz R 73 BRE #} (48) 5
(@) PEEF

H E2023F &2022F12831H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@) Segment information

The segment information for the year ended 31

IEFEEZIERNT ! December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
2023
g Bm Hth RO SE[E
Beverages Food Others Unallocated Group
ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE Segment results
W g Revenue 17,775,543 9,846,833 968,895 - 28,591,271
AEEH/ (FE) Segment profit/(loss) 1,878,380 717,368 66,460 (25,748) 1,996,460
HEWA—FE Finance income - net = = - 193,550 193,550
WA AR Z B Share of profit/(loss) of
RE5H/ (B8 investments accounted for
using the equity method 51,246 - - (1,332) 49,914
PRI R AR Profit before income tax 2,239,924
lfiksitEa Income tax expense (572,864)
FERT Profit for the year 1,667,060
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 736,455 298,466 34,082 62,768 1,131,771
BE Assets 8,281,274 3,641,447 931,081 8,434,819 21,288,621
BRERFARNKZE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 692,271 - - 153,326 845,597
wEE Total assets 8,973,545 3,641,447 931,081 8,588,145 22,134,218
&8fE Liabilities 4,090,463 3,162,645 329520 1,169,213 8,751,841
mak Total liabilities 8,751,841
REERBEE Addition to non-current assets 811,905 215,881 35,730 15,282 1,078,798

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Wz K o EBE L (B8) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(@) PHTEE (&) (a) Segment information (Continued)
2022
gl B Hith xDE AEE
Beverages Food Others  Unallocated Group
ARETFT ARETRE ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEE Segment results
W& Revenue 16,405,389 11,009,440 842,603 - 28,257,432
PEEF/ (58) Segment profit/(loss) 1,828,988 7,634 20,795 (361,600) 1,495817
RMEBEWA—FE Finance income - net = = = 208,870 208,870
bR A A BR 2 FEAG Share of profit/(loss) of
RERN/ (5§58 investments accounted for
using the equity method 56,512 - - (30,370) 26,142
BRETERANER) Profit before income tax 1,730,829
ERES Income tax expense (508,672)
FERF Profit for the year 1,222,157
EREH Depreciation and amortisation 756,026 300,965 31,956 52,093 1,141,040
BE Assets 7,958,824 3,652,724 878,521 8,476,557 20,966,626
BREREARNKE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 669,951 - - 157,778 817,729
mEE Total assets 8,618,775 3,652,724 878,521 8,634,335 21,784,355
afE Liabilities 4,129,443 3,183,113 344,120 946,326 8,603,002
Bef Total liabilities 8,603,002
REERBEE Addition to non-current assets 325,876 192,855 7,910 19,235 545,876

iF— ¥ hE PG A R/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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H E2023F 128318 LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(@) Segment information (Continued)

properties and related right-of-use assets.

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, financial
assets at FVPL, cash and bank balances, investment

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category
comprised primarily of deferred income tax liabilities,

current income tax liabilities and borrowings.

properties and intangible assets.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment

The total of non-current assets located in different

wr countries is as follows:
2023 2022
ARETR AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE (FBIESF  The total of non-current assets other than
TEREEFFSMEE)  financial instruments and deferred income
4a%E tax assets
—HRE A fE - Mainland China 9,145,742 9,445,613
—BINERRME - Overseas countries and territories 1 3
SRTA Financial instruments 5,087,737 3,559,762
BILFIBREE Deferred income tax assets 255,748 356,104
14,489,228 13,361,482
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5 WmkaAMER (B) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

b) EERESHNEBAZEE (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
TEEEERTIHERENE The Group has recognised the following liabilities related
fzafk: to contracts with customers:

2023 2022
AR®BTT AR®ETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEENEEe s Contract liabilities — Beverages 1,884,117 1,459,608
BHNEE-—Em Contract liabilities — Food 922,930 765,661
SHaE-—Ht Contract liabilities — Others 16,100 32,567
2,823,147 2,257,836
() BHEEZEALE () Significant changes in contract liabilities
2023F BN EBEEMIBEER The increase in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly
REBR2022F AEBERDIHE due to the Group'’s requirement for distributors to wire
BEREMEBEETENER the advance payments earlier than 2022.
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5 WmkaapER (B8)

(b)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

HREREHNERZzZEE (8) (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)
(i) BRS#EEEZ KD (i)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
TR E RIS HI BN ER The following table shows how much of the revenue
MNP EAENaNEaERM recognised in the current reporting period relates to
HEEE UREARBEFEFEERTT carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates
HNEAETHEHINEEE to performance obligations that were satisfied in the
prior year.
2023 2022
ARETFT ARFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARV EHNEaRE Revenue recognised that was included
SR = in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year
Bl Beverages 1,459,608 1,888,504
B Food 765,661 1,220,514
Hith Others 32,567 124,026
2,257,836 3,233,044

(i) KEITHIBLIE(F

AEBEERDMATHERS
FOAREBRBEBRBENET R
HAFrBEREBENHRS -
PR e

(i)  Unsatisfied performance obligations

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and
omitted disclosure of remaining performance obligations
as all related contracts have a duration of one year or
less.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 1 71



EABERRNE o
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

6 BMEEITZHX 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
STAHEM A HE RTIZHEMRS Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and
THHAZEREMBEEZHASZ TN marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other
S G expenses are analysed as follows:
2023 2022
ARBTT AR®EFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt A R A7 #EE ~ BLEE AL S Raw materials, packaging materials,
SRERNBENE S consumables and purchased
commodity used 17,388,593 17,637,668
HaaFEES) Changes in inventories of finished goods 127,069 123,168
SNEEERS Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 133,644 66,824
RIEMESER Promotion and advertising expenses 1,320,129 1,181,514
ETEANES  BFEEEHFH Employee benefit expenses, including
(M35%9) directors’ emoluments (Note 9) 4,474,718 4,324,255
EwmEa Transportation expenses 1,338,725 1,361,176
Y RE R EITE Depreciation of property, plant and
(Mf5E14) equipment (Note 14) 1,021,274 1,023,585
FREEERH (fEE15) Amortisation of right-of-use assets
(Note 15) 85,158 92,256
KWEMETE (5E16) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 16) 18,938 19,213
mpEESHE (F:F17) Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17) 6,401 5,986
EHMERS Short-term rental expenses 73,828 68,639
M ERR - MEMRKEM  City construction tax, property tax and
MEER other tax surcharges 266,230 265,125
(B Mo EEZEr 23R (Reversal of)/write-downs of inventories
BE (HEE21) to net realisable value (Note 21) (15,337) 13,894
THEERERIBFEE Net impairment losses on financial assets
(B$5E3.1(b)) (Note 3.1(b)) 2,393 6,385
Z B R B = Auditors’ remunerations
— 2R - Audit services 7,294 7,789
—IERZEAR TS — Non-audit services 610 2,496
HAth Others 1,110,017 952,495
wast Total 27,359,684 27,152,468
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HF1F— 288

7 OTHER GAINS - NET

2023 2022
ARBTFTT ARMFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HERRAFEFTAERN Gains on disposal of financial assets
TREEZTE at FVPL 35,239 35,347
BATEFAEEWEREZE Net fair value gains on financial assets
2R HEWRG P at FVPL 18,682 17,494
HEYE -MEREZHELR  Gans on disposal of property, plant and
FEREEEZFE  FEE equipment, and right-of-use assets, net 351,555 4,211
Hith Others 8,124 (2,755)
413,600 54,297
Htux A 8 OTHER INCOME
2023 2022
ARBTFTT ARHFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 8 BN Government grants 130,709 93,696
THEYE BEKRREUKRE Rental income from lease of property,
B2 BEWA plant and equipment and investment
properties 136,601 142,475
ARSI A (FI5E33(a)) Consultation service income (Note 33(a)) 57,698 60,468
Hih Others 26,265 39,917
351,273 336,556

LA A B WA 15 B B0 % {3 3th 75 BT
WERH M 2 BB (F R AREEK
BRABHWHMMEMECE RERFTE
BRABY O] ¥R o % 5 BUF B B B | AR
TENEARBRENNAE -BH
THERGEBEaRZ THMR AL R
FEsR o

consolidated income statement.

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The income from government grants represented financial
support subsidy received from various local governments
in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their
contributions to the economy and development of the regions
in which the subsidiaries are located. Such government
grants were unconditional and with no future commitment to
be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other income’ in the
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BETREMNEX SR EEH 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
)i INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2023 2022
AREEFT AR¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEKRHE Wages and salaries 3,230,995 3,160,220
BrREREMTEET Pension and other social welfare
(EZEMFETE) (defined contribution plan) 701,391 652,155
ETEa;EFEREEF Staff quarters and housing benefit 244,786 224,471
Hi@A Other benefits 297,546 287,409
4,474,718 4,324,255
HEC023F12H31HIEFEZAEH The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
A EREEHMNATEEMS (20224F : the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 included
M%) B2 HEME R E35@E two (2022: two) directors, whose emoluments are reflected
WZR MR -RERNELZNTFHE in the analysis shown in Note 35(a). The emoluments payable
BR=% (2022F | =%&) BEE#H# A+ to the remaining three (2022: three) highest paid individuals
ZEBNETIWT during the year are as follows:
2023 2022
AREFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EXFHF ERZ H Basic salaries, housing allowances,

R NREYRIG other allowances and benefits in kind 2,845 2,599
fe4t Bonuses 2,185 2,210
BIAREEEHERR Contribution to pension scheme 109 164

5,139 4,973
AE NE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
HEHE Emolument bands:
1,500,0018 % HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000

2,000,000 7t (FBE (equivalent to RMB1,359,331 to

B AR®1,359,3310F RMB1,812,440)

AR %1,812,4407T) 3 2
2,000,001 8TE HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000

2,500,000 7t (& (equivalent to RMB1,812,440 to

N AR®E1,812,4407cE RMB2,265,550)

AR #2,265,5507T) - 1
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B A —F2E

B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

10 FINANCE INCOME - NET

2023 2022
ARBTT ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RMEUA Finance income
—IRERIBITHEERZ — Interest income on cash and bank
FIS WA balances 252,671 269,396
BLE AL A Finance costs
—EBEZHEHZ — Interest expenses on borrowings (50,532) (57,453)
—HHEEGEZMEME — Interest expenses on lease liabilities (3,215) (3,627)
—ER (5518 W EIFEE — Net foreign exchange (losses)/income (5,374) 150
(59,121) (60,930)
—EEREEZEREEEE - Amounts capitalized on qualifying
assets - 404
B HME N Finance costs expensed (59,121) (60,526)
B A — 2R Finance income - net 193,550 208,870
FRiGMAE X 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES
2023 2022
ARETFT ARHFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEAPR SR Current income tax expenses 451,843 482 526
IEIEFTSIRBE S (M9sE19) Deferred income tax expenses (Note 19) 121,021 26,146
572,864 508,672
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20%) BIANFT 1SR
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A EIR16.5% (20224 ¢
16.5%) BITRZERM o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(@ Mainland China corporate income tax (“CIT”)

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject

to CIT at rate of 25% (2022: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice
on the tax policies of further implementation of the
western region development strategy issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation
and the General Administration of Customs” (B4%%
[2011]585% #8173 2% A B I 75 86 A 5 35 By RS A B AR UL
BURRSERIZESN"), companies set up in the western
region and falling into certain encouraged industry
catalogue promulgated by the PRC government will be
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%. Some of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC set up in the western
development region are entitled to the above mentioned

preferential tax rate of 15% during the year.

(b) Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan are subject to
income tax at the prevailing rates of 20% (2022: 20%).

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profit tax rates
by the Inland Revenue Department, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated
in Hong Kong is subject to a tax rate of 8.25% during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 8.25%).
The remaining assessable profits above HK$2 million
will continue to be subject to a tax rate of 16.5%

(2022:16.5%).
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11 FEREAX (&)

HFrSR (&)

A5 B PR AT S TR A 8 I B i p
BRAREHEBEN ZAERE
25% (20224 1 25%) st E 2 B
MIEEZZNT !

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Other income tax (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2022:
25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

follows:

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

2023 2022
ARBTT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRPRISIRATIET) Profit before income tax 2,239,924 1,730,829
BHRBEDAEMRESTE Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate in
Z M the PRC 559,981 432,707
THRBEZMBEFE . Tax effects of:
BEETHWEBASGH Preferential tax rates on the profits of
ZBERE certain subsidiaries (55,259) (36,817)
KRIESVEIEFRSINEE  Tax losses for which no deferred
Z MRIERSIE income tax asset was recognized 24,415 52,278
TBERESRZIIE  Recognition of previously unrecognized
BiE R EME R tax losses and
== other temporary differences (6,062) (6,031)
BEOBECREBZMIE  Reversal of previously recognized tax
E518 losses 5,487 =
BAERRULA Income not subject to tax (12,478) (6,535)
AHNREZ Expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 9,408 19,533
PREE R N0 ET 30 R Additional deduction of research and
development expenses (31,048) (17,943)
FEMEBATREEA  Withholding tax on profits retained by
ZTEINmR PRC subsidiaries 78,420 71,480
TSR Income tax expense 572,864 508,672
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11 PSR (&)
(b) EftFriSH ()

EREMEEWEED ZFER

11

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(b) Other income tax (Continued)

The income tax charge relating to components of other

FEZWT comprehensive income is as follows:
2023 2022
BRigal  MESL Rtk PRIRE MBS Prigte
Before tax Tax charge  Aftertax Before tax Tax charge After tax
AEETR AE®TR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Htrzmbie Other comprehensive
income:
—EEEREER - Actuarial gains on
BEE defined benefit plans 235 (47) 188 1,578 (316) 1,262
ERES Income tax expense (47) (316)

) BIESAFHZRES
(TOECD ) T — 12 &3 81

REBRFTEAE-EBEREE
HEXEY > BROECDEZH &
BRAICEE HERELHH
BEPFEAEREETERZE
EREUEREMTEAAE BB
EEMAEE B2025E BN
2 ERR R 6 R A 4 R K 7 2 R
FoENERALARER B
THEEERR2024FETHENRN
o iRIB2023FES B BMME B
G ERFE125 2 BETFAEE
NEBMEABIARFEASTHC
FIEMERMNREERBEEERE
BERFIIMER
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(c) The Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (OECD) Pillar Two model
rules

The Group has operation in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Taiwan. It is within the scope of the OECD Pillar
Two model rules. As of the reporting date, there is no
public announcement in jurisdictions including Mainland
China and Taiwan. Hong Kong has announced that it
plans to implement the Global Minimum Tax and Hong
Kong Domestic Minimum Top-up Tax starting from 2025
onwards but it is still under public consultation with the
expectation that draft legislation will be published in the
second half of 2024. The Group applies the exception
to recognizing and disclosing information about deferred
tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income
taxes, as provided in the amendments to HKAS 12
issued in May 2023.
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11 FrisHE (8 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

c) B EBE S 1F B R A & (c) The Organisation for Economic Co-operation
(TOECD1) - B A and Development (OECD) Pillar Two model
(48) rules (Continued)
ENREEREAPAEELSEMm Since the Pillar Two legislation in the jurisdictions that
EEAHEHREMHIEEAE the Group operates in was not enacted or substantively
T IE U RBER AL enacted as at the reporting date, and due to the
ENARBE N BB A uncertainty of the announcement of the legislation
BGIoBE (2R MEEMIRESR and the complexities in applying the legislation and
FGloBE 1) WA MBS K& calculating GloBE (the Global Anti-Base Erosion
BEFEEIHZIEEREEE Proposal, or ‘GloBE’) income, the Group is in the
M BB AY J&B B o process of assessing its exposure to the Pillar Two

legislation for when it comes into effect.

12 SKET 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
HAK Basic
EREABANDERFEFERARBIRET Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
BABMERABRUBBITEERINE attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
FHEEE- average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2023 2022

AT LA AEEEA  Profit attributable to equity holders of

(ANR¥F7m) the Company (RMB’000) 1,667,060 1,222,157
BERTEBERINEFHEH Weighted average number of ordinary

(FB) shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334
GEARERT (B AR Basic earnings per share

(RMB per share) 38.609 cents  28.30%) cents
HRARAUEBTHEEER W Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
SREBESRANHEASRERREN —o share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 1 79



R o M B R MY 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 KRR 13 DIVIDENDS
2023 2022
ARBTT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEIKMRIAKRESK Proposed final dividend of
ZiEi AR 42,455 RMB42.45 cents
(20224 : AFE#33.95%)  (2022: RMB33.95 cents)
per ordinary share 1,833,769 1,466,588

R2023FE K2022F » KRB HEE
2022F K2021E12HB31HIEEED
KA B3 Bl A AR 181,466,224,0007T
B AR #1,807,367,0007T ©

EEEN2024FE3H6HBT2EEE
Bk L EEIREEZE20235F12831H
IFFEZRESRARE42.459 (&
HIRE A AR#1,833,769,0007T) °
W 20245831 BRI B RITZ
BREBEAGLREZUFH A LS
MHEBRERAERMILERGRE -

The dividends paid by the Company in 2023 and 2022 for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 amounted to
RMB1,466,224,000 and RMB1,807,367,000 respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023
of RMB42.45 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB1,833,769,000 was proposed by the directors on the
board of directors meeting held on 6 March 2024 and is to
be proposed for approval at the annual general meeting to be
held on or around 31 May 2024. These financial statements
do not reflect this dividend payable.
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HERIE BBIAHf

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

¥ B REREE fEIR ait
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment  Construction
Buildings equipment  and fixtures  in progress Total
ANEETR  ARETR  ARBTr  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2022%1818 At 1 January 2022
A Cost 7,543,130 7,833,161 3,724,109 154,653 19,255,053
REE Accumulated depreciation (2924988 (5,904,126 (3,169,120) - (11,998,234)
Rt RERE Accumulated impairment provision = (263) = = (263)
RESE Net book amount 4,618,142 1,928,772 554,989 154,653 7,256,556
HZE2020F12B31ALEE  Year ended 31 December 2022
ENEmEE Opening net hook amount 4,618,142 1,928,772 554,989 154,653 7,256,556
HE Additions 5,632 79,003 174,977 175,476 435,088
EREE N Transfer upon completion 90,027 143,658 12,223 (245,908) -
e Disposals (341) (1,591) (3439 = (5,371)
& (Mt6) Depreciation (Note 6) (320,002 (521,000) (182,583) 5 (1,023,585)
FREMPE Closing net book amount 4,393,458 1,628,842 556,167 84,221 6,662,688
120225125318 At 31 December 2022
& Cost 7,638,448 8,054,231 3,907,870 84,21 19,684,770
RiHTE Accumulated depreciation (3,244.990) (6,425,126) (3.351,703) - (18,021819)
RitnfEktE Accumulated impairment provision = (269) = 5 (269)
REIE Net book amount 4,393,458 1,628,842 556,167 84,221 6,662,688
HE2020E1283BILEE  Year ended 31 December 2023
ENRESE QOpening net book amount 4,393,458 1,628,842 556,167 84,221 6,662,688
HE Additions 55,379 185,462 483,158 324,250 1,048,249
TREEA Transfer upon completion 29,066 153,637 66,935 (249,638) -
e Disposals (188,537) (5,689) (6,004) - (200,230)
& (W3t6) Depreciation (Note 6) (309,001) (456,988) (255,265) - (1,021,274)
EXREMPE Closing net book amount 3,980,365 1,505,264 844,971 158,833 6,489,433
120235126310 At 31 December 2023
DS Cost 7,534,356 8,387,468 4,451,959 158,833 20,532,616
RitiTE Accumulated depreciation (3,553,991) (6,882,114) (3,606,988) - (14,043,093)
Rt RERE Accumulated impairment provision - (90) - - (90)
RESE Net book amount 3,980,365 1,505,264 844,971 158,833 6,489,433

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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14 YE - -BERKE (B)

TEERCEAREEaRNBRUT -

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2023 2022

AREEFT AR®FT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HE AR Cost of goods sold 699,838 764,610
HE RIS HERER A Selling and marketing expenses 207,127 141,943
THRZ Administrative expenses 114,309 117,032
1,021,274 1,023,585

FERZEFEEMUNPE-

20234 2022912431 H i & i 7
ERYE BB R

REAERETEFHEHEZHEASWRA
# AR 57,200,0007T (2022 1 AR
#%64,700,0007T) Bt ALZEB@mFTH
FTE MU AL (HF5E8) ©

FROAERIESEREENEE
A (20224 : AR #404,0007T) #
REXR-BERARLEE—REEN
MAEF I EF)E (20224 © 3.29%) #
TEAo

The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.

There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB57.2 million
(2022: RMB64.7 million) derived from lease of certain
buildings of the Group is included in ‘Other income’ in the
consolidated income statement (Note 8).

During the year, the Group has no capitalised borrowing
costs (2022: RMB404,000) on qualifying assets. Borrowing
costs would be capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
general borrowings (2022: 3.29%) per annum.
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15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)

iy NEEBEBEREIZEEE () Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
2023 2022
ARBTT ARH¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERAEEE Right-of-use assets
S Properties 90,324 105,026
T E R Land use rights 1,474,903 1,597,069
1,565,227 1,702,095
HEAaR Lease liabilities
LY ES Properties
—BNHA - Current 26,201 26,090
—3JEBNEA — Non-current 62,587 75,650
88,788 101,740
R2023F 2022 F 2 [F HEE Movements in right-of-use assets in 2023 and 2022 are
EZFOMUT : analysed as follows:
EREEE
Right-of-use assets
2023 2022
W LtHERE st MmE TMERE st
Land use Land use
Properties rights Total  Properties rights Total
ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
M1B1H At 1 January 105,026 1,597,069 1,702,095 43,830 1,647,338 1,691,168
RE Additions 22,828 - 22,828 104,817 - 104,817
HE Disposals (1,362)  (73,176)  (74,538)  (1,634) S (1,634)
B (3E6) Amortisation charges (Note 6) (36,168)  (48,990)  (85,158)  (41,987)  (650,269)  (92,256)
128318 At 31 December 90,324 1,474,903 1,565,227 105,026 1,597,069 1,702,095
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15 HE (BiFLMERRE) (@)
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)
(CONTINUED)

RIEERERZERE (i) Amounts recognised in the income statement
2023 2022
Mg DHERE i WE IHERE st
Land use Land use

Properties rights Total  Properties rights Total
AEETR AREFRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

BT (HEte) Amortisation charges (Note 6)
HitRx Other expenses 4,133 - 4,133 = = =
HEMR Cost of goods sold 1,073 20,078 30,151 1574 29,710 31,284
HERMIFEEMA  Seling and marketing expenses 28,034 3,741 31,775 33,973 3,811 37,784
THpE% Administrative expenses 2,928 16,171 19,099 6,440 16,748 23,188
36,168 48,990 85,158 41,987 50,269 92,256

FISBS (5t ABYE ) Interest expense (included in

(Ft3£10) finance cost) (Note 10) 3,215 3,627
IBHTAE S (Mi5E6)  Short-term rental expenses (Note 6) 73,828 68,639
BaRikEs Total charges to income statement 162,201 164,522

R2023FE 2 FHERES R LB 4EEE
A ANR1108,189,0007T (2022
£ AR#107,462,0007T) ©

rEBEEEHRERMETE
ZABRAR

AEBRZIHERREHHIEE
BN AEBBEES R
MAERBE -HH—RUEE
HR=EBREE+F5T1 ERHE
A E NN X (iv)FT 7t I R R 4R A ©

HERZENBRER LB
BB EMRR AR o BREAE A
BAZHEEETHNEFER
Sh > 78 B % 5% I B 0 AE R PR
?UT, HEHEEETSRHIEEEN
& o

FEHA R A8 | E IR A

TEBNETYMERRFHERE
FIEH AR LRI o X F IR
RRREEGOSKEEEE
RAC-FIFAENKBOILESRR
RIPEZBRETRAERTRE
EASHERHBEATRE.
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(iii)

(iv)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was
RMB108,189,000 (2022 :RMB107,462,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how they are
accounted for

The Group’s land use rights are all fully prepaid.
In addition, the Group leases various offices and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of three months to ten years, but may
have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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16 REYE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2023 2022
ARBTFTT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
F1R1H At 1 January 256,417 275,630
ITEE (MI5T6) Depreciation (Note 6) (18,938) (19,213)
R12831H At 31 December 237,479 256,417
R12831 B8RS Cost as at 31 December 494,296 494,296
RETITE Accumulated depreciation (256,817) (237,879)
™12831H At 31 December 237,479 256,417
SEMEMNPEN LB IESE M The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiangsu,
NEKRERE  wEREHA40FM Sichuan and Guangdong Province of the PRC and erected on
50F Ry i ko land with lease periods of 40 and 50 years.
AEBKREYEZINEES ALKEIE Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
mRMTEMBAER - charged to ‘Other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement.
2023 2022
ARBT ARHFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHEUWA Rental income 79,409 77,766
KEEEHRSWAZYEZ  Direct operating expenses from property
BEREKERE that generated rental income (19,060) (16,119)
60,349 61,647
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16 REWE (@)
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HEZH

RECEHERATERZREYET
BAXNMEE-

BEFEETHRE AR TEHHB
BEEB AR EAEE—RE
UHEEEE BN e R e
BB R A TR R EE 2D o
B R 5 B 2 T R M
2 AT EESR

ERREMFEHEZRRREBEEEN
MEEE A 2R EE32.

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise any reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties, refer to Note 32.

KREMEZ AFEHNOT - The fair values of the investment properties are set out as
follows:
2023 2022
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NTE Fair value 783,737 754,117

R2023F K2022F12831H 2 A F &
DEEREEBGRAUNEARNITEZRH A
% (638 AR EZMIRRERBRAA
BITsHEEE o

The fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
determined by management’s self-assessment using
discounted cash flow projection based on significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
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Leasing arrangements (Continued)

unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:

Information about fair value measurements using significant

Rl RBABE
Unobservable inputs
$22023%F12831H
RS ZAFE fH{E Bh IR =
Fair value at
31 December
Description 2023 Rental value  Discount rate
ARBTT ARBT
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
BEEA 9,093
L 49,993 5 10%
Plant A 9,093 per annum
=B 16,658
B 91,590 8% 10%
Plant B 16,658 per annum
i EC 8,638
PR 51,029 55 10%
Plant C 8,638 per annum
BED 12,309
L 73,331 8 10%
Plant D 12,309 per annum
YN 32,152
# L\% . 508,934 8% 10%
Office building 32,152 per annum
& 58 560
55 8,860 8% 10%
Shops 560 per annum
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16 BREMZE (B 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
HEZH (@) Leasing arrangements (Continued)
FA R AR

Unobservable inputs
t2022812831H

NE Z2REE fHE FUETES
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2022 Rental value Discount rate
ARETFTT AREBTFT
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
2 S A 49,093
B 57,510 55 10%
Plant A 9,093 per annum
BER 16,658
& 98,407 55 10%
Plant B 16,658 per annum
E1 8,638
e 33,001 55 10%
Plant C 8,638 per annum
W ED 512,309
e 73,331 . 10%
Plant D 12,309 per annum
mn 30,637
' ) i o 484,946 i 10%
Office building 30,637 per annum
B 432
. 6,832 Al 10%
Shops 432 per annum
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ERSER
Computer
software
ARFT
RMB’000
202251818 At 1 January 2022
%N Cost 115,590
REtie Accumulated amortisation (108,888)
REFE Net book amount 6,702
HE2022F 128310 ILFE Year ended 31 December 2022
FEREFE Opening net book amount 6,702
B Additions 5,971
iy (MIsk6) Amortisation (Note 6) (5,986)
FEREEFE Closing net book amount 6,687
[?2022512H31H At 31 December 2022
D% Cost 121,561
KT Accumulated amortisation (114,874)
REFE Net book amount 6,687
i FE2023F12H31HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2023
FEREEE Opening net book amount 6,687
hE Additions 7,721
i (fiste) Amortisation (Note 6) (6,401)
FREEEFE Closing net book amount 8,007
20235F12831H At 31 December 2023
%N Cost 129,282
RETEH Accumulated amortisation (121,275)
REZE Net book amount 8,007
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17 BB E (8)

B 2 BIE D RISTATITERE S
MEEMMBEERS I R THEN
) 2D AN AREA,721,0007T
AN E#1,036,0007t K& A R #644,000
7t (20224 : AR #5,336,00075 A
K 15487,0007T & AR #163,0007T) ©

18 DIEmZEARNKE

HEEERRBEDHOHEDT

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The amortisation of computer software has been charged to
‘administrative expenses’, ‘selling and marketing expenses’,
and ‘cost of goods sold’ at the amounts of approximately
RMB4,721,000, RMB1,036,000 and RMB644,000
(2022: RMB5,336,000, RMB487,000 and RMB163,000),
respectively.

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2023 2022

AR®BT ARBETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—EBE AR 2 #ia) Interests in an associate (a) 455,827 424,899
REEhEZEImD) Interests in joint ventures (b) 389,770 392,830
845,597 817,729

R2023%F 128318 ZEBE WA B
ERNBREGELEHAEAMS LA
BE AEBEZRHEGLBEE (EFR
EENBHELAAREELENEKREGE
mRHER) WT

All the associate and the joint ventures of the Group as at
31 December 2023 are not significant to the Group. The
amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement of
the Group’s associate and joint ventures, attributable to the
shares of the Group and in aggregate, are as follows:

2023 2022

AREFT ARMEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

FE{L B A B)EF(a) Share of profit of the associate (a) 37,326 42,160
FEhEE B ERFFEE(D) Share of net of profits of joint ventures (b) 12,588 (16,018)
HE12B31HILEEE For the year ended 31 December 49,914 26,142

190
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18 LUHEHZEARNKE (8) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
(@ M—EEEQTZ#ETD (@) Interests in an associate
R—EBEAT 2 #m 2 # 8 The movements in interests in an associate are as
155 follows:
2023 2022
ARETx ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1BE1H At 1 January 424,899 385,938
FEA i Share of profit 37,326 42,160
2R E Dividends received (6,398) (3,199)
®12831H At 31 December 455,827 424,899
b) MEELEZRESR (b) Interests in joint ventures
REeEEbE R EEHMT - The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:
2023 2022
ARET ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1BE1H At 1 January 392,830 426,961
FEAL i ) Share of profit 12,588 (16,018)
B E Dividend received (12,528) (18,095)
BERL Decrease in investments (3,120) (18)
R12831H At 31 December 389,770 392,830
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(b)

18 LU ZARNIKRE () 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
REeghE#E (@ (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
ZRIAEBEREEBNMASE The Group accounts the particulars as joint ventures
AR E S (I FE1E B S after taking into consideration that the Group jointly
EHERE AERRLEEER controls not solo controls the particulars in accordance
REEBhZE. with the articles of association of the particulars.
R2023%F128B31H  ZEBEE The particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at
(2T F FH AL 31 December 2023, all of which are unlisted and
mIERSER) 2 EHSWT accounted for using equity method, are set as follows:
EMRIER/
ARAE HEREH BREL SEBEERE TEEH REE
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Equity interest
Company name incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities Carrying amount
2023 2022 2023 2022
BNTXERERAXREER FEIERM - 50% 50% HREEERERES N1 -
BRAT ((ERAIZREER) 2008577186 1,000,007 3,958,0007 3,524,007
BNIXERERAEREER Suzhou, PRC, RVB Investment management and RMB RVB
BIR/AE] (United Advisor Venture 18 July 2008 1,000,000 advisory services 3,958,000 3,524,000
Management Co., Ltd.")
(“United Advisor Venture
Management’)
ERZRANTIEBRAF FEIE 19,080,000%7¢ 42% 4%  EESEHR AEKR ARE AR
(TEHER)) 200975248 BRFRIHE 53,506,000 53,506,007
ERZRANIEBRAF Guilin, PRC, Usb Production of various types RMB RVB
(Guilin Ziquan Beverage Industries 24 July 2009 19,060,000 of beverage including fruit, 53,506,000 53,506,000
Co., Ltd*) (“Guilin Ziquan”) vegetable, tea and coffee etc.
Greater China F&B Capital Partners 23S 10,700% 7T 50% 50% REEER ARE AR
Ltd. (T Greater China F&B 1) 200845 16H 2,618,0007¢ 2,749,0007T
Greater China F&B Capital Partners Cayman lslands, usb Investment management RMB RMB
Ltd.(‘Greater China F&B’) 16 April 2008 10,700 2,618,000 2,749,000
RERIA—EERAT FERE NS 50% 50% GEREZEER N1 NS
(Uzw:+-90) 2011578298 232,000,0007C 142,024,0007T 140,632,00070
RERIA—CEERAF Wuhan, PRC, RVB Production of various types of RMB RVB
(Wuhan Zijiang President 29 July 2011 232,000,000 plastic products 142,024,000 140,632,000

192

Enterprises Co., Ltd.)
("Wuhan Zijang")
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18 LU ZARNKRE (&) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
b) REEXEZER B (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
HMERIER,
AR KBS HREX FEMERE TEEE REfE
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Equity interest
Company name incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities Carrying amount
2023 2022 2023 2022
SMS Investment Management HEHE 500,000%7T - 50% REEE N ARE
Co., Ltd. (TSMS Investment 20131528 - 1,235,0007
Management 1)
SMS Investment Management Cayman Islands, usb Investment management RMB RMB
Co., Ltd. (“SMS Investment 2 January 2013 500,000 - 1,235,000

Management’)™

ERRnAlERELE (EEem) TEHN N 47.85% 4785% REEE AEH N
2000F4513H  426,500,0007T 146,750,0007T 150,270,00070
EREMAIERERE Suzhou, PRC, RMB Investment management RMB RVB
(China F&B Venture Investments®) 13 April 2009 426,500,000 146,750,000 150,270,000
(China F&B")
EERRMBIZEARAT TEES 19,000,007 35% 3%  EEREEMH AE® AR
2013575230 40,914,0007T 40,914,0007¢
BEARANTIEBRAT Yichang, PRC, usb Manufacturing and sale of RMB RVB
(Ziquan Beverage industries 23 July 2013 19,000,000 beverages 40,914,000 40,914,000
Co., Ltd)
* AXEBLHARNBEEERN . The English name represents the best effort by
HAXLBEIESE - management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.
> SMS Investment Management = SMS Investment Management Co., Ltd. filed for
Co., Ltd.B*2023%10824H liquidation on 24 October 2023 and the Group has
REBE MAEEESH2023 received the investment amount of RMB728,000 on 8
FORESBHWKWEIRERARE September 2023.
728,0007T °
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18 LU ZEARNKRE (B) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
(b) MREELXEZHZR B (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

TXHEINFEBETEHFEFE

A summary of the financial information of the major

194

BrHBENSTE jointly controlled entities of the Group is set out below:
ZEFRom China F&B
2023 2022
AREBTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEBERBE . Summary of balance sheet:
FERIMEE Non-current assets 278,505 278,013
RENEE Current assets 15,578 23,284
EEE Total assets 294,083 301,297
FRBEE Non-current liabilities = =
mEEE Current liabilities (118) (236)
=R Total liabilities (118) (236)
BPEE Net assets 294,201 301,533
KEBDEZEDLE The Group’s % share 47.85% 47.85%
REE DL The Group’s share 146,750 150,270
2EBERBEE . Summary of comprehensive income:
W zs Revenue = -
FEBIE Loss for the year (2,355) (62,510)
KERB DML The Group’s share (1,127) (29,911)
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ZFARNKE (8) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

REELEZ T (@ (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
EEET Wuhan Zijiang
2023 2022
AREBTT ARETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEAERBE . Summary of balance sheet:
ERBNEE Non-current assets 36,535 44,392
RENEE Current assets 311,842 314,157
BEE Total assets 348,377 358,549
FRBEas Non-current liabilities 2,543 -
nE;as Current liabilities 56,237 71,736
meE Total liabilities 58,780 71,736
BEE Net assets 289,597 286,813
KEBRDLZEDLEE The Group’s % share 50% 50%
KEBR DG The Group’s share 142,024 140,632
2EHBRERBE . Summary of comprehensive income:
Wz Revenue 298,846 315,574
FEIHF Profit for the year 27,840 28,705
KEBE DG The Group’s share 13,920 14,353
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19 IREFRER 19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
FIEFMEMEERELEFMSREESD The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
T income tax liabilities is as follows:

2023 2022
AREFT AR¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEFTISIEE Deferred income tax assets
—EBi12@B kBl 2 IEZE - Deferred income tax assets to be
FriSMEE recovered within 12 months 186,315 240,750
—B 2@ B BBl 2 EIE - Deferred income tax assets to be
FTiEMEE recovered after more than
12 months 119,433 161,354
IRIEFTIS I B EARE Total deferred income tax assets 305,748 402,104

B IRHIRIE TSR a A Less: Set-off of deferred income tax

liabilities (50,000) (46,000)
FIEPTISIEE 358 Deferred income tax assets, net 255,748 356,104
RILFTISMREaRE Deferred income tax liabilities
— B2 B REE ZEE - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
FTiEMas settled within 12 months 97,898 6,217
— BB BEE ZIEE - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
FrERas settled after more than 12 months 294,862 361,831
RIEFTIER aEEE Total deferred income tax liabilities 392,760 368,048

B IEHARIEFTISINE E Less: Set-off of deferred income tax
assets (50,000) (46,000)

RIEFTEMRaE 35 Deferred income tax liabilities, net 342,760 322,048
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19 BEIEFRFIR (48)

IEFFSMARB 2 BT ¢

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as

follows:

2023 2022
ARETFT ARHFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
P1BE1H At 1 January 34,056 60,518

REMEEW IO (Mi5E11) Charged to other comprehensive income
(Note 11) (47) (316)

Riz&18% RN (FsE11)  Charged to the consolidated income

statement (Note 11) (121,021) (26,146)
K12831H At 31 December (87,012) 34,056

FARIEFMSREEREGREZED
(K&t R [B — 78 W 18 & 45 BR 2 18 85)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the

WE: offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
RIEFRSIMEE Deferred income tax assets
FEWRR R g BER
FRAGRE RENE itz REEENG @t
Impairment
provision of
accounts Depreciation
receivables of property,
and plant and Accrued Tax loss
inventories equipment expenses benefit Total
ANEEFT NS NS NS AEBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2022E1F1H At 1 January 2022 11,908 20,065 195,425 200,141 427,539
REEBRERIA/ (K Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated income statements 1,207 2,116 7,142 (35,900) (25,435)
120225128318 At 31 December 2022 13,115 22,181 202,567 164,241 402,104
ReEaBRRA/ (1R Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated income statements (3,204) 2,246 (37,632) (57,766) (96,356)
120235128318 At 31 December 2023 9,911 24,427 164,935 106,475 306,748
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19 EEFRFIR (B)

198

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

IRIEFREIREBE Deferred income tax liabilities
R &8 FERAEEE
M £Bak MEFE  HAERE BE EReEN @it
Accelerated Capitalization Post-
Withholding Business depreciation of borrowing  Right-of-use  employment
tax combination of equipment costs assets, net benefits Total
AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT AR%Tx ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1R20225F1 A1H At 1 January 2022 139,164 108,355 110,505 8,911 = 86 367,021
REMEERZRTR  Charged to other
comprehensive income - - - - = 316 316
Rira183% (BtA) /  (Credited)/charged to the
ks consolidated income
statement (25,520) (4,185) 32,448 (2,032) - = "
12022F12531H At 31 December 2022 113,644 104,170 142,953 6,879 = 402 368,048
REMEERZRTR  Charged to other
comprehensive income - - - - - 47 47
RizE1BHEE (BtA) /  (Credited)/charged to the
k% consolidated income
statement 10,720 (4,185) 19,813 (2,026) 343 - 24,665
112023F12531H At 31 December 2023 124,364 99,985 162,766 4,853 343 449 392,760

RIEFISRNEEZERAIEEZB X
KREZRMEFERBEREBEAN D E
MEBH REEETURER A&
E Ik 52023F 12831 H B A MUK
HHEERRBAZREBEELOA
E 900,164,000t (20225 1 AR
#910,604,0007t) HERIELEFTSIR
BEEHARKE224,675,0007T (2022
£ ANR¥227,651,00070) ° 12024
FEIFAZERMPIREBEIED B
HEANRK138,222,0000 AR
220,029,0007t ~ A R 300,694,000
Ty AR ¥142,024,000c & AR 8
99,195,0007T °

R2023F12831 0 WARFE T
BrERESZNZARERRFE
NMMEDELEMEREEARE
107,309,0007¢ (2022F | AR
120,413,0007T) - AEEEEEH
FIEENTERLELZERT P
20283F12831H ZEXRERLREBHNEG
HABARE14ET (20226 1 AR
20fE7T) °

iF— ¥ hE PG A R/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB224,675,000 (2022: RMB227,651,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB900,164,000 (2022: RMB910,604,000) as at 31
December 2023 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB138,222,000, RMB220,029,000, RMB300,694,000,
RMB142,024,000 and RMB99,195,000 will expire in each of
the five years starting from 2024.

As at 31 December 20283, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB107,309,000 (2022: RMB120,413,000) have not been
recognized for the withholding tax that would otherwise be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
The management of the Group currently has no intention
to remit those earnings in the foreseeable future. Such
unremitted earnings totalled RMB1.4 billion (2022: RMB2.0
billion) as at 31 December 2023.
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

BATE
B SARE st

Amortised cost FVPL Total

REEEARRATHNEE Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet

1R20235F12H31H As at 31 December 2023
BEHERAHENSHEE Financial assets at amortised cost
BB ZRA KR ER (HizF22) Trade and bills receivables (Note 22) 585,790 = 585,790
HpgwzE (HizE23) Other receivables (Note 23) 365,257 - 365,257
ReRMRITHEER (H:E25) Cash and bank balances (Note 25) 2,495,284 - 2,495,284
EHTHER (5525) Long-term time deposits (Note 25) 5,070,170 - 5,070,170
BRATEHABANEHEE Financial assets at FVPL (Note 24)

(Kfztod) - 1,618,682 1,618,682
4t Total 8,516,501 1,618,682 10,135,183
120224128310 As at 31 December 2022
BEENAHENEREE Financial assets at amortised cost
EWEZRIRERE (:F22) Trade and bills receivables (Note 22) 819,877 = 819,877
HiteuRE (fiE23) Other recsivables (Note 23) 617,148 - 617,148
BERIRITHEER (F5E25) Cash and bank balances (Note 25) 3,122,038 = 3,122,038
REAEHER (f5£25) Long-term time deposits (Note 25) 3,532,170 - 3,582,170
BATEHABGNEHEE Financial assets at FVPL (Note 24)

(FizE24) - 1,018,521 1,018,521
1Bt Total 8,091,233 1,018,521 9,109,754
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20 BB SNERMITA (&)

20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

Hthiz i iH
AT ER
TRER

Other financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

RERERBRRMTHNER

7R2023F12H31H

FE1T B Z AR (F15528)

HEaE (fEE15)

Hh A RIE KR EET & R
(FBiEFEEmMER)

B8 (fI5¥30)

Hih R HAFE T FIE (FP5E29)

R2022512831H

FE(T B Z RN (Fi5528)

HE&E (F5E15)

HMEMRIBRESTER
FBfEFEEmER)

BE (M5E30)

HMRHAEAFRIE (HI5E29)

“ast

iF— ¥ hE PG A R/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet

As at 31 December 2023

Trade payables (Note 28)

Lease liabilities (Note 15)

Other payables and accruals (excluding non-

financial liabilities)
Borrowings (Note 30)
Other long-term payables (Note 29)

Total

As at 31 December 2022
Trade payables (Note 28)
Lease liabilities (Note 15)

Other payables and accruals (excluding non-

financial liabilities)
Borrowings (Note 30)
Other long-term payables (Note 29)

Total

2,122,561
88,788

1,604,382
990,647
333,311

5,139,689

2,675,047
101,740

1,632,092
767,756
278,591

5,355,226
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21 ¥8 21 INVENTORIES

2023 2022

ARBTFT ARMFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

JRAFHL Raw materials 560,241 768,363

TR Work in progress 165,534 168,881

B fa Finished goods 1,136,538 1,249,849

5 ¥ m Consumables 263,570 335,437

2,125,883 2,522,530
R ARZ T AHE AR H 4G The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
Y Z2EERAOABARE17,51688 included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
70 (20224 : ARM17,761E & L) © approximately RMB17,516 million (2022: RMB17,761 million).
RE E20235F 12831 H LEF E 5t #i6H The Group reversed inventory provision of approximately
CEZHUERFEMS  ~EEE RMB15,337,000 (2022: recognised RMB13,894,000) (Note
ElEFEERENR ART15,337,0007T 6) for the year ended 31 December 2023 in respect of the
(20224 : M58 AR #13,894,0007T) write-down of inventories to their net realisable values. These
(5E6) -~ ZERBEFAEBEmEKLZ amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income

MEHE R A o statement.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 201



EABERRNE o
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

22 BRKEZERMRER 22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEW E Z RN Trade receivables
—RBEE= — from third parties 587,170 816,599
—R B S (H5E33(b)) — from related parties (Note 33(b)) 14,510 18,993
601,680 835,592
R Less: loss allowance (22,033) (19,644)
FEUNE Z RT3 Trade receivables, net 579,647 815,948
FEW ZE 4% Bills receivables
—KBE=H — from third parties 6,143 3,929
FEW B 5 BR R B 224k Trade and bills receivables 585,790 819,877
KEBBERTEPROOREIOXRZE The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
FEHE (20224 : 60K EQOK) 122023 usually 60 to 90 days (2022: 60 to 90 days). At 31 December
F12A31H B E Z RN B @ 2023, the ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
MEBPNRE AT - date of demand note is as follows:
2023 2022
AREFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUNE 5 8RR > 48 %8 Trade receivables, gross
—90K AR — Within 90 days 541,047 761,851
—91&E180% - 91 to 180 days 47,141 62,624
—181E365K% — 181 to 365 days 2,895 10,105
——FUE — Over one year 10,597 1,012
601,680 835,592
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22 BWEZIRIAKREE (18) 22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

FEERKEZRRZREEBELTT
EMEHE :

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
ARBFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEW B ZERERR > 42%8 Trade receivables, gross
—ARTE - RMB 596,223 829,437
—3E7T -UsD 1,626 1,903
—BTT - HKD 3,831 4,252
601,680 835,592

REEBR BREZRRRZENER
HEZEAFERSE-

RESHB AEERAEZRSE
ERED LABREZRRREEREZ
EHE AERTEFETAEER
TER I

AEBRERERBYBREEREIR
WIS ERMARBMENE
mBEMENEEERSEREREES
B M3 (b)EIBRAEFES BRI

B

FR2023F 20225128318 FTA X
EERNNERERABRTRARIER
DHRZEERREAEKRNEAIR
THREMBPEAAIFRAPNPEI K
B W RYT o S FAiRIT 51T 0 ABEA
FEWREHENEERMERAE

EREWESRNAEREAERESR
JR B ~ S B L B K B R EL B 2 B
PEMIEES.1 °
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The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivables as mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all receivables. Note 3.1(b)
provides for details about the calculation of the allowance.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all bills receivables
within the Group are bank acceptance bills since they are
substantially deposited at or issued by state-owned banks
and other medium or large sized listed banks with maturity
dates within 1 year and the credit risks in respect of the bills
receivables are considered to be low.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.
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23 FJEfRMIE-HE R EMELW 23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

TRIE RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SEENE O Prepayments
—FEJIEZ(ER — Prepaid value added tax 198,122 179,887
—TB FHER 28 — Advance payments to suppliers 110,177 135,445
308,299 315,332
FEURRE B 75 7018 (Fi5E33(b))  Amounts due from related parties
(Note 33(b)) 160,088 201,874
HhFEWRIE Other receivables
—EFIE — Interest receivables 254,315 352,090
—H At - Others 50,080 63,184
304,395 415,274
W JERNERER Less: non-current portion (17,567) (27,592)
ENHAER Current portion 286,828 387,682
755,215 904,888
BAIMFBENTIE B REMER Substantially all of the prepayments, deposits and other
MEHZAREBSE - REEH #E receivables are dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts
HEREEEERTERE- approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
Hth FE WL R IE B RLE B R E AR BT 5 Information about the impairment of other receivables can be
3.1(b)(ii) ° found in Note 3.1(b)(ii).
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVPL represented the structured deposits
at banks. Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVPL

are recorded in “Other gains — net” in the income statement.

— B
B AFE
HZE2023%F HE2023F FHABEN
12B3181 12B31AK EREELEN
SRMEEEN (AR%TT) SHEEHE BREmMA NFHE AL RBENEE  FEHEEA
Investment Fair Value Percentage
Number of Cost as of as of in terms of
Categories of the Financial 31 December 31 December  Total Financial Weights to Expected date
Financial Assets (RMB’000) Assets 2023 2023 Assets at FVPL Total Assets of expiration
HEELER 14 1,600,000 1,618,682 100.00% 7.31%  202451F10BE
2024%F12H27H
Structured Deposit 10/01/2024-
27/12/2024
HRATE
HE2022F HE2022F FAE@EN
128318/ 12318 EREELEN
SMEELN ARETT) TREEYE BEfA RTHE At GREENRE  BHEESH
Investment Fair Value Percentage
Number of Cost as of as of in terms of
Categories of the Financial 31 December 31 December Total Financial Weights to Expected date
Financial Assets (RMB’000) Assets 2022 2022 Assets at FVPL Total Assets of expiration
BRIEER 6 1,000,000 1,017,609 99.91% 4.67% 2023%F7H12HE
2023F12828H
Structured Deposit 12/07/2023-
28/12/2023
REES 1 907 912 0.09% 0.01% BB AT BE O]
Investment Fund Redeemable at
any time
7 1,000,907 1,018,521 100.00% 4.68%

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

25 REIEHEH R &IR1T 25 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH

4EER AND BANK BALANCES
2023 2022
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RHEHER Long-term time deposits 5,070,170 3,532,170
Re RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 2,495,284 3,122,038
RIT A FEIRELEST Total of cash at bank and on hand 7,565,454 6,654,208
MIREREXRENME BT AFHE A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and
HeBlReEBYW 2 HROT cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statements is as
follows:
2023 2022
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITRFEIRE Cash at bank and on hand 7,565,454 6,654,208
B RAEHAEBBE =AM Less: Long-term and short-term
REIAKGHATEHER time deposits with original
maturity over three months (6,625,313) (6,542,866)
ZREIRITFER Restricted bank deposits (8,146) (2,823)
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 931,995 108,519
R2023F 128310 » ZEBERIRIT As at 31 December 2023, the effective weighted average
HNERESEMETHFENERBIATE rate on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 3.47%
(20224 : 3.77/8) o (2022: 3.77%) per annum.
R2023F 128310 > X RFIIRITER As at 31 December 2023, the restricted bank deposits of
AR #7,600,0007t (20224 | AR RMB?7,600,000 (2022: RMB2,300,000) represented deposits
2,300,0007T) 161EA 2 T REREM at bank pledged as security for issuance of letter of credit for
BTN ERASEREELMERNIRER the purpose of purchase of equipments.

TRk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 REAEHEM RERRT

KR ()

K2023%F 128318 ZRHIWITHEM
AR #546,0007T (20224 : AR
523,0007T) IE1EA A E B RESZ KK
R ERNIRITENR

7R2023F12H31H  IRIT A FERE
et LI T ERETE

B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

25 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH

AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2023, the restricted bank deposits of
RMB546,000 (2022: RMB523,000) represented deposits at
bank pledged as security for gas charge of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, total of cash at bank and on hand
were denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022

AREFT AR¥TF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

— AR - RVB 7,558,218 6,652,294
—3£7T - UsD 1,345 941
—B7T - HKD 3,784 949
—Hfth — Others 2,107 24
7,565,454 6,654,208

ARBEERLIERAIRERKRTESEB B
RMZEB - RARBRBBINE R
AR E L REIRINAR P E KRB
fio Z SNEE HI IR B R AR B P AR IR

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 207

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated
by the PRC authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

26 RREKKDEER 26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ACCOUNT
EE
Authorised
LERHE R RArE
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to
TERT AEBTR
HKD’000 RMB’000
20231 B1HE At 1 January 2023 till
20235128318 31 December 2023 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
ERTRAR
Issued and fully paid
L E] & KEira R EER Bt
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total
TEr  ARETR  ARETRT AEETR
HKD’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1202351 B1HE2023E12831H At 1 January 2023 il
31 December 2023 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663
ETE
Authorised
BERYE A RAtrS
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to
TET ARBTT
HKD'000 RMB’000
2022 1B1EE At 1 January 2022 il
2022128318 31 December 2022 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BETRAE
Issued and fully paid
RAEE e e RIDRER &t
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total
FAT AEETFR ARETFR AEETFR
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
14200241 B1HE20206 1258316 At 1 January 2022 till
31 December 2022 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663
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27 OTHER RESERVES

| | BAMBRRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2023F 128318 LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

AR ATERE EEHE @it
Contribution Fair value Statutory

surplus reserves reserves Total

ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

1202251810 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2022 1,144,299 343 2,399,060 3,543,702
HEERENRBNENIE Remeasurement on post-

employment benefit obligations S 1,262 S 1,262

BRELTERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - = 313,149 313,149

#2022F 128310 2 & i Balance at 31 December 2022 1,144,299 1,605 2,712,209 3,858,113

#2023 F1 B 18 2 & i Balance at 1 January 2023 1,144,299 1,605 2,712,209 3,858,113
HEHEENRBNENIE Remeasurement on post-

employment benefit obligations - 188 - 188

BRELERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 388,642 388,642

®2023%F12831H 2 & ¢ Balance at 31 December 2023 1,144,299 1,793 3,100,851 4,246,943

(@) HWARER

2 N/NSIEERF

(a)

BHIEELAQT

RP LB ZAEARATDERRFAA

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions

BER EHEETZEAMFR
2B R BRFFH D IKBIAEER
PRA

REHERESZREER ZF
BABBRADIKTEARBNEDR
BB A

to the equity holders of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 209
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R 75 = MY 5

27 Hithf#tE (48)

210

(b)

EEEB

o B A 12 A IR B R TE R 5
BWRE w8 En A AFREF
DIKBINE S BEVAEM B RKRF
BRI EF PR (ERBEUESE
ENRFAEER) TRE-EN
EEME -FIREEAERBILIME
EERMIEER -

FRIEBEBELEXENMANEL X
MR INTENEAR TE
TEFERRBEN DIKE > A
ROEE N B ERZ10% R F A E
BRABE EELIERHBARE
EADRATZEMERS0%%
Eettih WERABDTERZBE
FEHBRE TR BOBFRR G
FEEAT TR R IEAL R R E
EREBABT - FRRIEGEL
EhEFMALNPENE R
BCEHEEEFENHERET
BB EE RN B BB AETE
e

EEBBAREREANBHAAL
ANEE - ERARATANEELS
WIBMATEZA

iF— ¥ hE PG A R/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

27 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are appropriated from the net profit
as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years and before profit distributions to equity
holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific
purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.

o Annual Report 2023 &
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H E2023F 128318 LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

FE1T B 5 AR X 28 TRADE PAYABLES
2023 2022
AR¥FT ARMFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FET B Z RN Trade payables

—$= — to third parties 1,516,293 2,004,296
—RAR A (MEE33(0)) — to related parties (Note 33(b)) 606,268 670,751
2,122,561 2,675,047

HEBRFAEBZERIPBEEA30
KEIOK cjR2023F 128310 FER &

The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
30 to 90 days. At 31 December 2023, the ageing analysis

RN BB E BB 2RI DT of trade payables based on the date of demand note is as
T follows:
2023 2022
ARBTT ARF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEfT B Z AR Trade payables
— 30K LA — Within 30 days 1,574,934 2,144,316
— 31&E90k — 31-90 days 469,295 451,248
— 91E180%k —91-180 days 37,163 32,732
— 181&365% — 181 to 365 days 16,188 18,989
—F D — Over 1 year 24,981 27,762
2,122,561 2,675,047

PRERNESRFIEUARESE-
REER REZREABEEELQTER

e sheet dates.

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
amounts approximated their fair values as at the balance
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20 HthFEHRIERESER 29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2023 2022
ARETF T ARMET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

R RESHESZESTER  Accruals for promotion and

advertising expenses 567,511 557,989

BT T & KA F) Salary and welfare payables 284,547 374,875
BRSNS Deposits from customers 464,097 414,736
KSR R TUA Payables for purchase of equipment 262,350 166,310
HMENRIEREStE R Other payables and accruals 772,465 896,389
2,350,970 2,410,299

W - SERDEAER 3 Less: non-current portion (331,318) (277,139)
ENERER Current portion 2,019,652 2,133,160

HiEARIERESTERN  Non-current portion of other payables

JERNERERA and accruals:
BRI NS Deposits from customers 333,311 278,591
B Z B @) Post-employment benefits (a) (1,993) (1,452)
331,318 277,139
BRI EHMENRIBRESTER I Substantially all of the other payables and accruals are
ARBSHEBE RNEEH KEZEEE dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximated
BEAFERE- their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

21 2 H— ¥ hEERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%}
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H E2023F 128318 LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

29 HMENHREREHER 29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(48) (CONTINUED)
(@) BEEBEFN — TEEFGE (@) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit
plan
TRETAEENVHERRHNE The table below outlines where the Group’s post-
BERESBRIEENEE- employment amounts and activity are included in the

financial statements.

2023 2022
ARBTT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FATSNIBEEMNEESGERX Balance sheet obligations for:
=
— ERERINEEF — Defined pension benefits (1,993) (1,452)
BEEEBRANEE Assets in the balance sheet (1,993) (1,452)
T 5IE B R EE R Statement of profit or loss charge
BIEREFERMWZHEA :  included in operating profit for:
— TRERIANEEF — Defined pension benefits 75 77
75 77
MTHFIEBMNEHE: Remeasurements for:
— FRRRIREEF — Defined pension benefits 235 1,578
235 1,578
HETEERNANBARRKS The income statement charge included within operating
HEEIRRRBE A F]E A profit includes current service cost, interest cost, past
38 7 BR 75 BX A DA e 48 B Ke 8 R RY service costs and gains and losses on settlement and
BE- curtailment.
KREBENEEBNEAKFTENE The Group operates defined benefit pension plans in
BB - AEESEE L HER Taiwan. The Group engaged independent valuer to carry
ETHBEEANGE HER out a valuation on post-employment benefits. Projected
FER T TAtBAIEEMAE unit credit cost method was applied in the valuation.

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 21 3
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29 HthENRERESER
=)

214

(a)

BREEN — EBREMNEE

(&)

EHEEMNAREFRRENREES

29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Post-employment benefits - defined benefit
plan (Continued)

The net defined benefit liabilities and fair value of the

BENATESHIWT : Pension Fund assets were as follows:
2023 2022
ARBTT AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

ERREH RBHVIRE Present value of defined

benefit obligations 9,253 11,376
BARESEEMNAFE  Fair value of Pension Fund assets (11,246) (12,828)
ERRANEE TR Net defined benefit assets (1,993) (1,452)

BAREEATHEEINRZRBENR
B 20283512831 BEAME
2EZHP HERBHECXEEEMN
RHBRAE (MEER) (BEN
BAUGEKRBEN) &7 T RIA—
RIEEGE TEEMNEBNIR
B~ 18RIRY BRI AR 75 Ak A & i@ 1
ARFE A A BB TAST B (I BFAST
EoATZEEMEMANEE
BREEWT -

() RHEERBHIEERE

ATETHEEME REE2023
F12A31HIEFERMT1.20%
BIARIREE (20224 1 1.25%) ° F 1M
E— S BRREE2023F12831H
HFER T EIBEE22.00% (2022
£ 12.00%) °

#F—1 ¥ hE PG AR/2AE Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the Pension
Fund and present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out with 31 December 2023 as
the valuation reference date by ClientView Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Actuary”), an independent
qualified actuary in Taiwan. The present value of the
defined benefit obligations, and the related current
service cost and past service cost were measured
using the projected unit credit method. The principal
assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial
valuations were as follows:

()  Discount rate and expected rate of salary
increase

For the purpose of actuarial valuation, a discount rate
of 1.20% for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
1.25%) was adopted. It was further assumed that the
expected rate of salary increase for the year ended 31
December 2023 was 2.00% (2022: 2.00%).
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B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

29 HhEMNREREER
(&)

(a)

RERREN — ERENE

(%)
(i) EMFRIFALEE
(1) ZECE

AENRRTEEREGETR
T ol ERE R

@ EEEFE

BERAETERNERXZEBRS
ErEREBENBEBCERIER
EMBVE K ERERE ©

B BHE

REAEEBETNERRER 58
THRESREREMNEE RS
BERREMNE AREMGEDK
T THRARE

BRZABHEEERFORERSE
B > TR KRB 655 B R RRHY
EE GI68mER A

FHs BAAE
Vi 15%
Z+1R E645% 3%
655% 100%

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Post-employment benefits — defined benefit
plan (Continued)

(i)  Rate of employment termination
(1) Death rate

The 5th life table as adopted by the insurance industry
in Taiwan was used in the actuarial valuation.

(2)  Resignation rate

The resignation rate used in the actuarial valuation was
decided with reference to the past resignation records
of the Group and the database of the Actuary.

(3)  Retirement rate

Based on the past retirement rate of the Group, the
employee movements as published by the Directorate —
General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive
Yuan of Taiwan, and the database of the Actuary, the
following retirement rates were adopted in the actuarial
valuation:

It was assumed that Z was the earliest retirement age
of the relevant employees. It was also assumed that
employees who did not retire upon reaching 65 years
old would retire when they reach 68 years old.

Age Retirement rate
Z years old 15%
Z + 1 years old to 64 years old 3%
65 years old 100%

o Annual Report 2023 £ #§

215



N e -
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

29 HthEMRERESER 29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(#&) (CONTINUED)
(a) BEFEEF — EREFE (a) Post-employment benefits - defined benefit
€=) plan (Continued)
(i) 1EFFIFEARLEZE (4B) (i)  Rate of employment termination (Continued)
) FEEE (4)  Disability rate
AR ANBI IR B IE T ZEM10% © The disability rate being 10% of the death rate was
adopted.
BEABHEERUWTEHT The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
2023 2022
ALIR = Discount rate 1.20% 1.25%
FEBHTEIERX Expected rate of salary increase 2.00% 2.00%
30 BE 30 BORROWINGS
2023 2022
AREEFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DHARITEE  mIgH Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 990,647 767,756
REFBZBEBRN—FEREER- The Group’s borrowings were repayable within one year.
BEZREBEENGERZATE The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated
HBE LR T EHEEE their fair values as at the balance sheet dates, and were

denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022

AR¥F AB#TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 990,647 767,756

21 6 H— ¥ hEERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 &%}
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B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

30 &8 (&) 30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
N EEE B 2B R REHIT The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
IS G balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
2023 2022
RITHEE BT Bank borrowings, unsecured
— AR - RMB 3.03% 3.29%
AEBBB T RIENRZIBTEEEE The Group has the following undrawn bank borrowing
B facilities:
2023 2022
ARETFT ARHFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EFIE At floating rate:
— —FERNEH — Expiring within one year 5,378,163 3,189,962
— — L EEHA - Expiring beyond one year 1,081,553 4,040,971
6,459,716 7,230,933

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 21 7
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31

218

SEEEZRE 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2023 2022
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRPTIEM AR H Profit before income tax 2,239,924 1,730,829
T ZIBEEH ZHE . Adjustments for:
— DIREARZIEERIE - Gains on investments accounted for
(MF5E18) using equity method (Note 18) (49,914) (26,142)
— YE-BEKRREINE — Depreciation of property, plant and
(Mi5E14) equipment (Note 14) 1,021,274 1,023,585
— FEREEEEN (ff5515) - Amortisaton of right-of-use assets
(Note 15) 85,158 92,256
— BREWETE (i5E16) — Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 16) 18,938 19,213
—mEEE®H (FsH17) - Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17) 6,401 5,986
— HEYE - BMEKRRKRERN - Losses/(gains) on disposal of
&8, (F1E) (MEE7) property, plant and equipment
(Note 7) 1,702 (3,211)
— HEGHAREENFR — Gains on disposal of right-of-use
(MS5E7) assets (Note 7) (353,257) (1,000)
— HERAFESAEBEN - Gains on disposal of financial assets
EREEZHE (MW7) at FVPL (Note 7) (35,239) (35,347)
— (BE) MWHEEEA — (Reversal of)/write-downs of
IR FE (fi5E21) inventories to net realisable value
(Note 21) (15,337) 13,894
— BB S ERIUREEE — Provision for impairment of
trade receivables 2,393 6,385
— BATESAEZMNEEL - Change in value of financial assets
BEEZEEZE (MW7) at FVPL (Note 7) (18,682) (17,494)
— MEREZ (FEE10) — Interest expenses (Note 10) 53,747 60,676
— EREE FB) — Foreign exchange losses/(income)
(MFzE10) (Note 10) 5,374 (150)
2,962,482 2,869,480
EEETED Changes in working capital:
— BN E SRR EE — Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills
b, () receivables 231,698 (177,732)
— FEHIE e R EME - Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
WeERIER L, (35 0) deposits and other receivables 149,673 (142,557)
— HAIERNHAE W R IE — Decrease/(increase) in other
B (g0 non-current receivables 10,025 (10,456)
— F&RL, GEm) — Decrease/(increase) in inventories 411,984 (143,918)
— BB SR GBL) — (Decrease)/increase in trade payables
1 (552,486) 556,999
— HMEMRIBRESEA - (Decrease)/increase in other payables
CRbZL) 1810 and accruals (208,700) 69,732
— BHa/‘Em el — Increase/(decrease) in contract
liabilities 565,311 (975,208)
— HAIEBNEAME (I RRIBIGE M - Increase in other non-current
payables 54,179 8,739
— ZREIRITERBIIE M — Increase in restricted bank deposits (23) =
BEEFZIRE Cash generated from operations 3,624,143 2,055,079

#H—1b ¥R EERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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31 EEELEZHE (B) 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
REERERT HEVE - BEKR In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
B -REVMEREREEEZMENIE property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
BIE - right-of-use assets comprise:
2023 2022
AR®BTT ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REVFE Net book amount 274,768 8,008
HEME BEAHRE Gains on disposal of property, plant and
EREEEFIE equipment, right-of-use assets
(MF5E7) (Note 7) 351,555 4,211
HEadERD Decrease in lease liabilities (1,420) (1,673)
HEWME BERERE Proceeds from disposal of property,
THMERRREREEEY  plant and equipment, land use rights
PSR I8 and right-of-use assets 624,903 10,546

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 21 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

31 BEEXZ2HE (88) 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

KEFIBEIEFRENS 2 HAEEEF D This section sets out an analysis of the movements in net

220

Mo debt for each of the periods presented.
HEARE (Y= st
Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
ARETFIT AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1220215128318 As at 31 December 2021 37,419 112,300 149,719
RBeERg . Cash flows:
METHRERA Inflow from financing activities = 13,352,981 13,352,981
MEEHRS AL Outflow from financing activities (38,823) (12,697,525) (12,736,348)
REREEE Recognition of right-of-use assets 104,817 - 104,817
BB EREEE Derecognition of right-of-use assets (1,673) - (1,673)
120225128311 As at 31 December 2022 101,740 767,756 869,496
RERE : Cash flows:
BMETHRERA Inflow from financing activities = 18,306,317 18,306,317
MEEHRS AL Outflow from financing activities (34,360) (18,083,426) (18,117,786)
BRAERAEEE Recognition of right-of-use assets 22,828 = 22,828
BUBHRFEREEE Derecognition of
right-of-use assets (1,420) - (1,420)
1220235128310 As at 31 December 2023 88,788 990,647 1,079,435

#F—1 ¥ hE PG AR/2AE Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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B ZE2023FE12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

32 KiE 32 COMMITMENTS
(a) BEAXEE (a) Capital commitments
REBEARKENT : The Group's capital commitments are as follows:
2023 2022
ARETT ARHFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
I ER YR Property, plant and equipment
— BETREREE — Contracted but not provided for 439,916 508,282
(b) KEHEKIE (b) Operating lease commitments
FTEFEZEAMA . The Group is the lessee:
KEBBRER=ZBEE+FANE The Group leases various offices and warehouses
MZ R HEHK S EREZE under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
MAERBEE - ZEHREREF 3 months to 10 years. The leases have varying terms,
FEIHAMR ~ FHARIE R R B A - A escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
HEgEMEEEER terms of the leases are renegotiated.
KEBENZESHERRDEBHE The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these
EE CEIAOEEHAREEEE leases, except for short-term and low-value leases, see
B E— P ERFERMEE150 Note 15 for further information.
MEZRSHERENT . The operating lease commitments for properties are as
follows:
2023 2022
ARBTFT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
LYES Properties
— —FREFEZFHE - Lease expiring within one year 7,604 5,706
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32 KIE (B

222

(b)

R 75 = MY 5

EMEERE (@) (b)
FEFEBLHTN -

AEBRBESIBBENECERS
WmE THEREYME BB AR
w-REHEMNATEHRRLE
HE - ER I HBENEERE W
ZTAERERREBERNRERES

32 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Operating lease commitments (Continued)
The Group is the lessor:

The Group leases out investment properties, plant
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under these non-cancellable operating leases are as

HEZBUNR - follows:
2023 2022
AR®T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB —F Not later than 1 year 117,162 66,720

BE—FERBEASE Later than 1 year and

not later than 5 years 49,085 55,976
BEEE Later than 5 years = 23,074
166,247 145,770
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33 FMARB 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
KERB 2 REERABIAR—TLERD The ultimate holding company of the Group is #—1> 2% {5
BRARE (Mr—10%) » HREEEM BFRAE (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®) (“‘UPE”),
IR EEESRAMBRAR L™ a company incorporated in Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan
ZRBE AN BDEERARR—EEZN Stock Exchange Corporation. The directors of the Company
BRrElkAEBzEEtERBE AT are of the view that the subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures
WRIEREG 5 o and associates of the Group are regarded as related parties.
() HiFAEEFEITHRS ! (@) Transactions with related parties:
HRAMG HETHRZAT - The following transactions are carried out with related
parties:
2023 2022
Mk AREBTRT ARBTx
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEME R miEE Sales of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
— Hm—1EZKHBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 180,968 207,264
— mEFZEEMER - Joint ventures and associates
i O/N] of the Group 13,659 9,732
194,627 216,996
R e R SR iR BE Purchase of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
— 1 - UPE 22,675 20,920
— H—1EZKBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 5,537,859 5,063,768
— NEEZEERER - Joint ventures and associates of
= YNE the Group 727,003 683,735

6,287,537 5,768,423

MRRFBHES Logistics service expense: 0]
— —1¥EZEAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 109 118
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33 FAEA RS (B)

224

(a)

R 75 = MY 5

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

BIRAB S EITHR S - (B) (@) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)
2023 2022

=S AREFT AR¥F T

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BRSO - Consultation service income: ()

— H—1EZMIBAE - Subsidiaries of UPE 49,405 54,864

— REBZAEEDER - Joint ventures and associates of
i L/N] the Group 8,293 5,946

57,698 60,810

HEUWA - Rental income: (ii)

—H—EZHEBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 73,985 73,813

— RERZEE MR - Joint ventures and associates of

BE A E] the Group 1,647 1,647
75,632 75,460

* BYNLBIIHAADEEEBSE * The English name represents the best effort by the
NP LTEENEF o management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.

() LS E IR R MR K AL 0] The above sales and purchases of raw materials and
BSYRRY IR BB R finished goods, receipt of logistics service and provision
THIRIEAE R ek 2 R FUETT © of consultation service are carried out in accordance

with the terms of the underlying agreements.

(iy FAEIEREMEZWA - WIREE (i)  Rental income represents income from lease of
BESE iz RT3 4 properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
BV e of agreements made between the parties.

#F—1 ¥ hE PG AR/2AE Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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33 FAEkARH (&) 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(b) EARAEG S 4EER (b) Balances with related parties:
R2023%F12831H  AEEHEH The Group has the following significant balances with its
Bl 5 B A T ERAGRR . related parties as at 31 December 2023:
2023 2022
AR®BTx ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE W e gt 75 B B Balances due from related parties:

FEUL B ZBRFX (MiizE22) : Trade receivables (Note 22):

— — ¥ ZWEBAS - Subsidiaries of UPE 14,510 18,993
FETRIE R EH A Prepayments and other receivables
FEUWERIE (MT5E23) : (Note 23):
—m—1hZE - UPE 6 56
— H—1EZHBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 155,340 189,325
— REFZAEEMERK - Joint ventures and associates
BE AT of the Group 4,742 12,493
160,088 201,874
174,598 220,867
FE 1< B Bt 75 85 88 Balances due to related parties:

FEH B 5 BR= (f5E28) | Trade payables (Note 28):

— m—1E - UPE 3,196 2,905
— #H—1E MBS - Subsidiaries of UPE 532,981 609,223

— NEEZEETER - Joint ventures and associates
i O/N=T of the Group 70,091 58,623
606,268 670,751
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33 FAEA RS (B)

(b) EARAETSASER @ ()

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Balances with related parties: (Continued)

2023 2022
AREFT ABR#FT
RMB’000 RMB’000

H e RIB K Other payables and accruals (Note 29):

FEstE A (Mf5E29) :
— —1EZHEAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 29,759 32,813
— REBEAEPER - Joint ventures and associates

LN of the Group 12 5,482
636,039 709,046

HEB O ERSEREER RER
AREREE-

& WS R A RV Bk 75 A5 R BV BRI (B
BHRNEERZ AT ERE-

) EEEEASHM :

The balance with related parties are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the balances due from and
due to related parties approximated their fair value as at

balance sheet dates.

(c) Key management personnel compensation:

2023 2022

AREEFT AR®FT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e fEA R EMEF]  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 18,014 14,923

FHPFAIRBE Z #r s TEAL R EM
B ERERTBH A o L5 B
FE29(a)FT i BRI BRI R BRI R &
BREEERASEHFHNE
IRRIE (20224F @ #8) ©

226

#F—1 ¥ hE PG AR/2AE Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The salaries, bonus and other welfares disclosed above
were all paid as at year end. In addition, the post-
employment benefits disclosed in Note 29(a) include no
obligations payable to the key management personnel
(2022: nil).
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34 mATIEEBBERKIHAGE 34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

5| MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(@ ETAREBEEEER (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2023 2022
AR¥ETT AE®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—KMBATZIRE Investment in a subsidiary 8,048,137 7,976,325
R—REE AT 2% Interest in an associated company 1,597 1,664
MEMER&E Property, plant and equipment 1 1
8,049,735 7,977,990
REEE Current assets
B HRIEBE R Prepayments and other receivables
Hfh FEWFRIE 425 419
AL YN Amounts due from subsidiaries 6,429 7,384
RERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 716 866
7,570 8,669
BEMRE Total assets 8,057,305 7,986,659
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34 FTREIEEEBEBERKRH#EESE) 34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
(48) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(@ TAFEEABR @) (a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
2023 2022
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Uiy EQUITY
(&N Share capital 39,764 39,764
& 10 i B ER Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
HifE Other reserves 1,381,076 1,381,076
RERBF Retained earnings 1,531,144 1,734,563
KRR Total equity 7,781,883 7,985,302
af& LIABILITIES
mEAafE Current liabilities
H e RIBE & Other payables and accruals
FEst&ER 1,922 1,357
Bt Borrowings 273,500
275,422 1,357
el Total liabilities 275,422 1,357
HEmRkEEREE Total equity and liabilities 8,057,305 7,986,659
KRBIEEBEKRENR20245F3H The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
CHEZEESHE TAHUTES the Board of Directors on 6 March 2024 and were
AREEo signed on its behalf by the following Directors.
BEE EIE TS
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HITESE HITESE
Executive Director Executive Director
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(48) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(b) EABEEES (b) Reserve movements of the Company

BMARE  ATERE BEERN At

Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
ARETT AREBETR AR%®TR ARETx
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

2021128318  Balance at 31 December 2021

pd =3 1,381,078 2 1,836,545 3,217,621
EEER Profit for the year - - 1,705,385 1,705,385
B f2021€ 288 Dividends relating to 2021, paid - - (1,807,367) (1,807,367
#202212831H  Balance at 31 December 2022

24 1,381,078 @) 1,734,563 3,115,639
FE&H Profit for the year = = 1,262,805 1,262,805
B J2022F 2 )RE  Dividends relating to 2022, paid - - (1,466,224) (1,466,224)
2023%12831H  Balance at 31 December 2023

pd = 1,381,078 2 1,531,144 2,912,220
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35 EFEAIRER 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
(@ EFkZRETBRASZME (@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
BEERREITHRABZHME The remuneration of every director and the chief
SR executive is set out below:
RIKER
HEZ
ik #Hit WBEL EEEE O HftEE  EIMX st
Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary Housing Other benefit
BENS Name of Director Fees Salary  bonuses allowance allowance scheme Total

ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

2023 2023
HTEE Executive directors
BEREE M Lo Chih-Hsien

(BE%R) 57 460 4,156 - 11 = 4,684
IFELLE  Mr Liu Xinhua
(BI3E) 50 1,344 2,265 240 = 68 3,967

FEHTESE  Non-executive directors
BE8AE  Mr SuTsung-Ming

(EF=80) 50 = - - - - 50
BEEELE  Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
(FRED1E) 50 = - - - - 50

$HMZE  Ms. Chien Chi-Lin
(R2023%  (BREM)

3H8H (appointed on
B2 8 March 2023) 40 - - - 8 - 40
BIUIEHT  Independent
B non-executive directors
BEES/BLAE M Chen Sun-Te
() 255 - - - 33 - 288
SBCEEL DrFanRenDa,
Anthony GE{Z%2) 255 - - - 33 - 288
BEELE M LoPeter (BE2E) 255 - - - 33 - 288
EELE M Chen Johnny
(HEER) 255 - - - 21 - 276
1,267 1,804 6,421 240 131 68 9,931
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35 EEREMKRiED (B

@ EFkEsSTHRAEZME
(&

BESEhRBTHRABZFHME

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief

) executive is set out below:
EARET
HElz
ik e HETA RBEER  HtRE  BEEX st
Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary Housing Other benefit
EENL Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses  allowance  allowance scheme Total
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
20226 2022
PTEF Executive directors
BEEEE M Lo Chih-Hsien
(BB%) 56 452 2,552 - 1 = 3,071
YHELE M Liu Xinhua (21372 48 1,344 1,274 240 = 63 2,969
JEHTEE  Non-executive directors
BEEE  Mr SuTsung-Ming
(B=38) 48 - - - - - 48
BEEIE&LLE M Chen Kuo-Hui
(BRE) 48 - - - - = 48
BUERT  Independent
S non-executive directors
BEE4EE M. Chen Sun-Te
(FREfE) 251 - - - 29 = 280
SECEBL DrFanRenDa,
Anthony (B{Z3%) 251 - - - 29 = 280
BEELE M LoPeter (8% E) 251 - - - 29 - 280
ERIEE M Chen Johnny
(BSER) 251 - - - 17 = 268
1,204 1,796 3,826 240 115 63 7,244

H— ¥ hEZERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2023 & 3§ 231



4 AL

717 g e |
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] F2023F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
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35 EFEMKRiE= (B)

232

(a)

(b)

EEREBITHRABZMNE
(&)

B E2023F KX20225F12831H
FEFEE N FTHEHBAEZEENNIS
AT IRBEAEENGTBERIAE
TE o MNE E2023F K2022F 128
STHLEFE BEAABEEK
BERRARHRBEEAMEN L
A5 B 78 b 4 6] 4F 7] 2 2 52 1
EEAREEMBLAERRZNE
MR BN EABERLE
7 £ [ B9 A (] BB 4L o

EE LT

AABWERAER Z EHT L
AABDEENETHEBEERED
(TmaEENBE) > BREXE
FE 45 OR Ry B A £ 2 A R s R 41D
REMZEAR G ZHRELK -

#F—1 ¥ hE PG AR/2AE Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
discretionary bonuses paid to the relevant Directors
were determined based on the financial performance
of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, no arrangement was in place under which a
director of the Company waived or has agreed to waive
any emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the
Company to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Interests of Directors

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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36 SUBSIDIARIES

B E2023F 1283318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

AMBEIER,
AR 2R B BETREERE Frfsie e FTEEE TEE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2023 2022
ERER Directly owned
F-mNERBRAT HEHS 933,180,000 7T 100% 100%  REZR/HEHEES
200665290
B—ENERERAT Cayman Islands, USD933,180,000 Investment holding/
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. 29 June 2006 Cayman Islands
HiEEE Indirectly owned
H—o% (FE) REBRAF FE s 1,122,470,000% 7 100% 100%  WEER/TE
1998435 10H
1% (PE) KREERATR Shanghai, PRC. USD1,122,470,000 Investment holding/PRC
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) 10 March 1998
Investments Ltd.”)
nER—tERRERAT FRESEAE 37,500,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERHEHNRER/
199251 5 13H FE
WRR—CERERERAR Urumaj, PRC. UsD37,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Uni-President Enterprises 13 January 1992 beverages, food/PRC
(Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd.")
WEGF— R RBERAT B A B 65,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  4ERHEEGNKRER/
1993F4F 14H 8
BBFE—CE£BRERAR Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Chengdu President Enterprises 14 April 1993 beverages and food/PRC
Food Co., Ltd.")
BLS—tERRERAS FEEL 96,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERHEHRRER/
1993558 14H FE
RUA—TEERBRATR Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Kunshan President Enterprises 14 May 1993 beverages and food/PRC
Food Co., Ltd.”)
HEG—CXRRBRAT R 2 59,600,000% 7T 100% 100%  4ERHEEGNKRER/
1993%F7H7H 8
BRER—CE£B8RERAR Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Wuhan President Enterprises 7 July 1993 beverages and food/PRC
Food Co., Ltd.")
ENR—EEBRAS FEE) 75,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERHEHRRER/
199451255H FE
BMNGE—EBRAE Guangzhou, PRC. UsD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Guangzhou President 5 December 1994 beverages and food/PRC

Enterprises Corp.”)

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Co., Ltd.")

#F—1 ¥ hE PG AR/2AE Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 MBAT (4&) 36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
FAMAIER,
SR R R A BETREERSE FrisietE TEEE/TENE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2023 2022
RER—CERRAT FEER 39,900,000%7¢ 100% 100%  FERHERNKRER/
199568 15H e
KBEFR—EEBRAR Shenyang, PRC. 1USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shenyang President Enterprises 15 June 1995 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
BRG—CEBRAT HE AR 60,000,000% 7% 100% 100%  EERBESRHRER/
199825 23H HE
BRGE—rEBRAE Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hefei President Enterprises 23 February 1998 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
RAER—CERRAT RER TR 29,200,000%7¢ 100% 100%  FERHERNKRER/
1998425 26H i
BREG—EERAR Harbin, PRC. USD29,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Harbin President Enterprises 26 February 1998 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
ERB—RRBRAT HELER 52,900,000%7¢ 100% 100%  EEREEHRR/FE
2001428201
ERGE—BRERRAT Beijing, PRC. USD52,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Beijing President Enterprises 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
Drinks Co., Ltd.")
MERA—CERRAT FEREE 44,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  FERHERNKRER/
200145818H i
HEA—TEERAR Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Nanchang President Enterprises 18 May 2001 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
—EERAF FREIRM 20,000,000% 7% 100% 100%  EERBESRHRER/
2001478190 HE
BINR—EERAT Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Fuzhou President Enterprises 19 July 2001 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
BNA—GCERRAT FEIEN 37,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  FERHERNKRER/
20024F6825H i
—EBRAR Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Zhengzhou President Enterprises 25 June 2002 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
fi— (LR) BEERAR FE L 8,600,000% 7t 100% 100% B RERESR/ FE
2005105178
fi— (B BEERAT Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages and
(President (Shanghai) Trading 17 October 2005 food products/PRC
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AMAIER,
AR 2R A BETREERE FrfsiefE TEEE TEE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2023 2022
RCBXRGBERAT = 1,000,000%7 & & 100% 100% ANEREE/ A%
2006125281
RCBERNHBRAT Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited®) 28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
ERf—t2eRERAT hE R 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERBEANERER/
200741188H )
RREA—TERRERAT Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Kunming President Enterprises 8 November 2007 beverages and food/PRC
Food Co., Ltd.”)
E¥EFARAT Ba 1,711,920 7 100% 100%  HEER/EBE
20085F645H
EZELBRAT Hong Kong USD1,711,920 Investment holding/
(Champ Green Capital Co., 5 June 2008 Hong Kong
Limited)
BESA—BRKERAF FEEE 4,150,000%7¢ 100% 100%  EERBEHR/FE
200942820H
BEA—BRKERRAE Bama, PRC. UsD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Bama President Mineral Water 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.)
G- EESEERBERAT aE 5,143,435,600 7T 100% 100%  REZRKRES
2009445308
R—EBEERERAL Hong Kong HKDS5,143,435,600 Investment holding and
(Uni-President Hong Kong 30 April 2009 trading
Holdings Co., Ltd.)
EZRCEEESH (LB ARAR HELE 150,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEHH
2009558120
SEMEEIRHH (LF) BERAE  Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
(Champ Green (Shanghali) 12 May 2009
Consulting Co., Ltd.")
ROG—GEBRAT HEED 30,000,000%7T 100% 100%  4EREEGNKRER/
201059815 F
EVFE—£BRAT Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Changsha President Enterprises 1 September 2010 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
WEAF—TDHEBEGSEARAT  FEMAS A K %1,000,0007T 100% 100%  BERESTE
2010485 24H
BEFE—ITEEEEARAR  Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful 24 August 2010

Noodle Restaurant Dining
Culture Limited Company®)

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

FAMAIER,
SR R R A BETREERSE FrisietE FTEEY SN
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2023 2022
BIFE—EBRAE HEET 25,000,000% 75 100% 100% SERBESRNKEAR/
2010105280 HE
BIG—rEBRAR Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Zhanjiang President Enterprises 28 October 2010 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
HER—CERRAF FEmE 30,000,000%7¢ 100% 100% SERBESNKER/
2010F11816H HE
HER—LEBRLAE Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Nanning President Enterprises 16 November 2010 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
RESR—GERRAT FEESE 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FEREEHN/PE
201012528
—EBRAR Changchun, PRC. 1USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Changchun President 02 December 2010 beverages/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
MRsfi—rEER Hh [ e 5 20,000,000%7¢ 100% 100% AR RS/ E
2010125158
MR- tEERAT Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
(Akesu President Enterprises 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
EMNFE—CERRAT HEI =M 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  SERBEESNKRER/
20114 1528H HE
EMNFE—LEBRAR Taizhou, PRC. 1USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Taizhou President Enterprises 28 January 2011 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
—EBRAF FEEE 33,600,000%7¢ 100% 100% BOERMALEERL
2011525168 TE/HE
BEER—EBRAR Chongging, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-
(Chongging President Enterprises 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
Co., Ltd.®) products/PRC
BRF—CEBRAA FREIHIR 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  SERBEESNKEER/
201125241 HE
HER—EERAT Baiyin, PRC. 1USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Balyin President Enterprises 24 February 2011 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
LER—BRRAEXERAR FE L AE160,000,0007c 100% 100% BEE®,/TE
200385 1H
tER—EBRRABEERAT Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC

(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly
Century Co., Ltd.")

#F—1 ¥ hE PG AR/2AE Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMAIER,
AR 2R A BETREERE FrfsiefE TEERTEN
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2023 2022
LER—CEEEZABR HELE A E#20,000,00075 100% 100%  REZK/TE
2003%7518H
LER—CEEEERERAT Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
(Uni-President Shanghai 18 July 2003
Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.)
BRA—CEERAR hEEE 22,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  4ERHEGH/FE
20114388H
BER—CEBRAT Chengmai, PRC. USD22,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hainan President Enterprises 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
RRIG—CEERAT FRARE 35,000,000 7% 100% 100%  EERBEANERER/
2010118150 FE
AREGR—TEERRAT Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shijiazhuang President 15 November 2010 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”)
BEA—CERRAT HEEE 30,000,000%7T 100% 100%  4EREEGNKRER/
2011445181 F
BRf—E£BRAT Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Jinan President Enterprises 18 April 2011 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
BEBG—EARAT TEER 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EERBEANERER/
2011E786H FE
ERR—EBRRAE Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Guiyang President Enterprises 6 July 2011 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.)
RAF—tEBERKERAT FEIER 4,800,000& 7T 100% 100% EERRK/TH
20114 786H
BNF—ERRKERAR Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
(Wuxue President Enterprises 6 July 2011 water/PRC
Mineral Water Co.Ltd.*)
LEREEREZERAT HE 950,000% 7T 100% 100%  BEERRRIEERM
2011564288 &/HE
tEGEERESERAR Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(President (Shanghai) Private 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
Label Marketing & Trading PRC

Co., Ltd.")

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

FAMAIER,
SR R R A BETREERSE FrisietE FTEEY SN
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2023 2022
MNFE—CERRAT FEMN 85,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  SERBEESNKRER/
2011E6521H HE
—EBRAT Hangzhou, PRC. 1USD85,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hangzhou President Enterprises 21 June 2011 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
BNFE—EBRAR BRI 33,000,000%7¢ 100% 100% SEREESN/TE
2011495 2H
BINR—EERAT Xuzhou, PRC. USD33,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Xuzhou President Enterprises 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
#-wg EL) BRAT FEEL 10,000,000% 7 100% 100%  BEEEERNE/PE
201243528H
m—EmBRLBRAR Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(President (Kunshan) Trading 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
RS- EBRAT HE AR 43,100,000%7¢ 100% 100%  EEREEHRR/FE
20124F359H
Amf—rEERAE Henan, PRC. USD43,100,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Henan President Enterprises 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
MAER—EERRAT IR ES 50,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  SERBEESNKRER/
201247R6H HE
BAEG—CEERAR Shaanxi, PRC. USD50,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shaanxi President Enterprises 6 July 2012 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
IHA—ERRAR FEIER 30,000,000%7¢ 100% 100% SERBESNKER/
2012411850 H
IHG—CEERRAT Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Jiangsu President Enterprises 5 November 2012 beverages and food/PRC
Co., Ltd.*)
RAWG—% G BRABR  HESH AR #180,000,0007T 100% 100%  FEERK/FE
NG| 201335 15H
RAWLGA—E (G BRABR  Jiin, PRC. RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
R 15 March 2013 water/PRC

(Changbaishan Mountain
President Enterprises (Jilin)
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.”)

#F—1 ¥ hE PG AR/2AE Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2023F 128318 LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

HEMRIER
AR 2R A BETREERE FrfsiefE TEERTEN
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2023 2022
A% R BEXREERRE  FEEL AR #60,000,0007T 100% 100%  RBHE/FE
20134890
—{¥ (EWL) BXMHEERAE  Kunshan, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) 9 April 2013
Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.")
BB EERAT FER) || 16,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERFEEHN/PE
20135F4H228H
EEA—ERRAR Yinchuan, PRC. USD16,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Ningxia President Enterprises 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
AREH—EEERAT REIIEA S 30,000,000% 7% 100% 100%  EERBEANERER/
20135890 HE
NELR—EEERRAE Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Uni-President Enterprises 9 May 2013 beverages and food/PRC
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.")
LEA—CEFRAT FEEH 30,000,000% 7% 100% 100%  FERFEEHN/PE
2013%985H
LA —CEERAR Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shanxi President Enterprises 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
LRS- EBRAT E LS 40,000,000%7T 100% 100%  EELELHETE
2001108140
LG EERAR Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Uni-President Enterprises 14 October 2001 food products/PRC
(Shanghai) Co.,Ltd *)
TEEA-CEFNNINEER  TEMTEE 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  4ERHEGH/FE
’z}ﬂ 201311818
WEEG—tEEMARMEBR  Hutubi, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
"T 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC
(Uni-President Enterprise (Hutubi)
Tomato Products Technology Co.,
Ltd.") Co., Ltd.")
rEfE—rERHERER HE L 80,000,000% 7% 100% 100%  GSERBESNKRESR/
201458150 H
LR CERHNBERERAT Shanghai, PRC. USD80,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Uni-President Enterprises 15 May 2014 beverages and food/PRC

(Shanghai) Drink&Food Co.,Ltd.")

i—1 ¥ hEEAR B PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 MBAT (4&) 36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HEMRIER
ARLTE R R A BEITREERSE iRt TEEETENE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2023 2022
KEG—ERRAT hEIK R 22,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FEREEHRPE
2014%8R 158
KEFE—EBRAT Tianjin, PRC. USD22,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Uni-President Enterprises 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC
(Tiandin) Co.,Ltd")
ERFA BN TERBRAR FEES AR #100,000,0007¢ 100% 100% SERBERN/TH
2009E6H9H
EaFA R TEBRAE Yantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries 09 June 2009 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd")
G—-t% EL) eRNXERAT  FEEL 1,200,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERBEREKK/FE
19955F12827H
m—1% (BU) BRBEARAR  Kunshan, PRC. USD1,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) 27 December 1995 seasoning/PRC
Food Products Technology
Co., Ltd.®)
PREMI REAME - 88 Kk EEHIME All subsidiaries located in the Mainland China, Taiwan and
NEIEBBREXTSR - NHEHEH Hong Kong are limited liability entities. One subsidiary
Iz —RNB ATV ERREZER incorporated in the Cayman Islands is an exempted company
ERRBE-FMAERFEMILZHEBAE] with limited liability. Al subsidiaries established in the PRC are
HAEIIEEERE- wholly foreign owned enterprises.
* BNLBILARNBERERIFHRX * The English name represents the best effort by management of
LIBEIESE the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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